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VISION & MISSION STATEMENT

To be recognized as a responsible asset manager respected for continuingly realizing goals
of its investors.

Statement

To build JS Investments into a top ranking Asset Management Company; founded on
sound values; powered by refined know-how; supported by a team operating within an
accountable framework of social, ethical and corporate responsibility — a strong and reliable
institution for its shareholders to own; an efficient service provider and value creator for
clients; an exciting and fulfilling work place for employees and a participant worth reckoning
for competitors.

Annual Report 2021 ‘ 02 //JS inveSfmenfS

Managing Mutual Funds Better!




CODE OF BUSINESS CONDUCT AND ETHICS

Our long-term corporate success depends, among other things, on our ability to conduct business in a responsible
manner. JSIL has adopted the 'The Asset Manager Code of Professional Conduct' formulated by the CFA Centre
for Financial Market Integrity for the purposes of strengthening corporate governance, enhancing compliance
culture, and promoting ethical and professional standards among employees. The code defines core values
that all employees, especially fund managers, are required to follow when performing business operations or
when interacting with colleagues, clients and other stakeholders. It also plays an important role in guiding the
Company's efforts to inspire and maintain the trust and confidence of all its stakeholders.

The Code of Conduct and business ethics are essential for every organization. It spells out the behavior expected
from employees, reflecting fairness, transparency and accountability. It guides staff members to conduct
themselves with honesty and integrity in all actions representing the organization.

We are committed to conduct our business in accordance with applicable laws, rules and regulations as
defined by our regulators. It always abide by ethical standards and consider it to be a key business priority. Our
Code of Ethics requires that it is necessary to ensure that the appropriate standards of behavior are followed to
the letter and spirit in accordance with the approved and agreed Code of Conduct by the employees of JSIL.
Adherence of Code of Conduct is mandatory for all employees of JSIL.
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BROAD POLICY OBJECTIVES

M Value creation for clients on a sustainable basis.

;ll Maintain high standards of ethical behaviors and fiduciary responsibilities.

al
© P Manage investments with prudence and with the aim of providing consistent

v returns better than that of peers.
LA

Take products and services to the people; create awareness on understanding
financial goals, risks and rewards.

Professional Excellence - Adapt, Evolve and Continuously Improve.

Maintain highly effective controls through strong compliance and risk

management.

@i A talented, diligent and diverse HR.
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ORGANIZATIONAL
STRUCTURE
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COMPANY INFORMATION

Board of Directors

Mr. Suleman Lalani Chairman

Ms. Iffat Zehra Mankani * Chief Executive Officer
Ms. Aisha Fariel Salahuddin Independent Director
Mr. Asif Reza Sana Independent Director
Mr. Hasan Shahid Non-Executive Director
Mr. Imran Haleem Shaikh Non-Executive Director
Mr. Mirza M. Sadeed H. Barlas*** Non-Executive Director
Mr. Zahid Ullah Khan** Non-Executive Director

*  Ms. Iffat Zehra Mankani appointed in place of Mr. Hasnain Raza Nensey w.e.f April 15, 2021.
** Mr. Zahid Ullah Khan appointed in place of Mr. Kamran Jafar w.e.f March 18, 2021.
*** Mr. Mirza M. Sadeed H. Barlas appointed in place of Mr. Tahir Ali Sheikh w.e.f August 09, 2021.

Chief Executive Officer
Ms. Iffat Zehra Mankani

Chief Financial Officer
Mr. Zeeshan Khawar

Chief Operating Officer & Company Secretary
Mr. Muhammad Khawar Igbal

Statutory Auditors
KPMG Taseer Hadi & Co, Chartered Accountants

Legal Advisors
Bawaney and Partners

BOARD COMMITTEES

Audit Committee

Mr. Asif Reza Sana (Chairman)
Ms. Aisha Fariel Salahuddin
Mr. Hasan Shahid

Human Resource & Remuneration Committee
Ms. Aisha Fariel Salahuddin (Chairperson)

Ms. Iffat Zehra Mankani

Mr. Suleman Lalani

Executive Risk Managment Committee
Mr. Suleman Lalani (Chairman)

Ms. Iffat Zehra Mankani

Mr. Imran Haleem Shaikh

Share Registrar
CDC Share Registrar Services Limited (CDCSRSL)
CDC House, 99-B, Block-B, S.M.C.H.S., Main Shahra-e-Faisal, Karachi

Registered Office

JS Investments Limited

19th Floor, The Centre, Plot # 28,

SB-5 Abdullah Haroon Road, Saddar,
Karachi-75600

Tel: (92-21) 111-222-626 Fax: (92-21) 35165540
E-mail: info@jsil.com

Website: www.jsil.com
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OWNERSHIP STRUCTURE

Ownership Structure

JSCL holds 75.02% in JSBL

JSBL holds 84.56% in JSIL

JSIL
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PROFILE OF BOARD OF DIRECTORS

(@) Mr. Suleman Lalani- Chairman

Mr. Suleman Lalani joined Jahangir Siddiqui & Co. Limited (“JSCL”) on March 1, 2012 as Chief Executive Officer.
Prior to joining JSCL he was Executive Director Finance & Operations and Company Secretary of JS Investments
Limited where he served as CFO and Company Secretary for seven years.

Mr. Lalani started his career with JSCL in 1992 where he worked for over eight years. In year 2000 he was
promoted to the position of Chief Operating Officer of Jahangir Siddiqui Investment Bank Limited, a subsidiary
of JSCL. In January 2002 he joined The First Micro Finance Bank Limited as its Chief Financial Officer and
Company Secretary. Mr. Lalani is a Fellow member of The Institute of Chartered Accountants of Pakistan and
has over 25 Years of experience in the financial services sector. He has also completed the Board Development
Series Certificate Program conducted by the Pakistan Institute of Corporate Governance.

Other Directorship:

Jahangir Siddiqui & Co. Limited - CEO
Al Abass Sugar Mills Limited - Director
Shahtaj Sugar Mills Limited - Director
TRG Pakistan Limited - Director

(b) Ms. Iffat Zehra Mankani- Chief Executive Officer

Iffat Mankani joined JS Investments Limited in April 2021. She brings with her over 20 years of global experience
in both public and private markets across multiple asset classes. During her 11 years working in capital markets
in Pakistan, she held various senior strategy and research roles, both on the buy and sell side of the industry.
She was associated with JSIL during 2004-2007 as their Chief Investment Officer and in a similar capacity later
with BMA Funds from 2007-2012.

In these buy-side roles, she led the successful implementation of a disciplined asset and risk allocation process,
resulting in consistent top quartile performance for funds under management. These included some pioneering
products in the industry, such as the asset allocation fund, capital protected fund, index fund, an offshore
fund, and separately managed accounts. In her most recent role, Iffat was working in the Deals Advisory team
at PwC Canada, where she made significant contributions in the space of complex financial instruments and
private debt valuations amongst others, helping to steer the business toward sustainable growth. Moreover,
she also held diversified roles in the risk management groups of leading Canadian Banks (Bank of Montreal
and CIBC) associated with their quants and trading risk oversight teams.

Ms. Iffat holds a Master of Finance from Rotman School of Management (University of Toronto) and a Master
of Business Administration from the Institute of Business Administration, Karachi.
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(©)

(d)

Ms. Aisha Fariel Salahuddin - Independent Director

Fariel’s career spans journalism, investment banking, energy policy advisory and entrepreneurship. She is the
founder and Chief Executive Officer of UpTrade, a unique bartering model enabling off-grid farmers to use their
livestock as currency in developing rural economies. She has over 10 years of international experience in energy
finance, project development and energy policy. Her geographical experience spans Indonesia, Egypt, Pakistan,
and the Middle East, North Africa region where she has advised governments and private sector or energy policy,
pricing and reforms.

Fariel has done her MPA from Columbia University, New York and BSc from Lahore University of Management
Sciences, Lahore.

Other Directorship:
Pakistan Paper Products Limited — Director
Mr. Asif Reza Sana- Independent Director

Mr. Asif Reza Sana is a senior banker. He is a Private Equity, Banking, Finance, marketing and Corporate Advisor.
He was a member of Board of Directors of Askari Bank, Chairman of the board audit committee and member of
board risk management committee. His prior career has been with world leading multinationals in the disciplines
of Finance, General Management and Marketing.

He has carried out the due diligence assignments of United Bank, Emirates Bank and Askari Bank in Pakistan,
Mashreq Bank in Sri Lanka and Habib Sons Bank in South Africa to determine the enterprise value for acquirers
running into more than Rs. 50 billion collectively. He was part of the core team managing the former Union
Bank of Pakistan. He was appointed advisor to the board of directors in 2000. He was appointed SEVP in Union
Bank and was also elected a member of the board of directors. As the executive director of the bank he was
also member of the management team, ALCO and the custodian of the monthly business performance review
of country group heads of all departments of the bank. He searched, negotiated and closed the sale of Union
Bank to Standard Chartered at a landmark price of PKR 29 billion (US$ 485 million) at the highest multiple in
the banking industry.

In 1988 he was headhunted by Philip Morris, then the largest consumer products company in the world (now
split into Philip Morris International, Altria Group and Kraft Foods). Here, he was at the forefront of price wars of
1980s between Philip Morris and RJR Nabisco. In 1989 at the beginning of Soviet Block countries disintegration
he became member of a task force to establish Philip Morris business in newly formed countries of Central and
Eastern Europe through acquisitions, licensing and joint ventures. In 1991, based at the international headquarters
in Switzerland, he was appointed to the coveted position of Group Brand Manager of worlds legendary and
Philip Morris's flagship brand Marlboro that had annual worldwide sales of $ 26 billion at that time.

He holds an MBA from Quaid-e-Azam University, Islamabad and got his executive training at Institute of
Management Development in Lausanne, Switzerland and INSEAD France.
Other Directorship:

The Bank of Punjab — Director
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(e)

(f)

(9)

Mr. Hasan Shahid- Director

With over twenty years of experience in the fields of finance, auditing, internal controls evaluation and
re-designing, compliance and taxation, Mr. Hasan Shahid is Chief Financial Officer of JS Bank Limited where he
joined in November 2019.

Prior to JS Bank, he was the Director Finance and Company Secretary of the Jahangir Siddiqui & Company Ltd.
(JSCL); where he joined as Manager Finance in 2006. He also served as Chief Financial Officer of JSCL from 2012
to 2018. His role encompasses a wide range of matters ranging from financial management, reporting, audit,
taxation, compliance with laws and other secretarial matters.

Mr. Hasan Shahid is a fellow member of the Institute of Chartered Accountants of Pakistan (ICAP) and Pakistan
Institute of Public Financial Accountants (PIPFA) and holds a Masters degree in Economics from University of
Karachi.

Other Directorship:
JS Engineering Investments 1 (Private) Limited - Director & CEO
Mr. Imran Haleem Shaikh- Director

Mr. Shaikh is Senior Executive Vice President at JS Bank, one of Pakistan’s fastest growing banks, with branches
located across Pakistan as well as an international presence. The Bank is a leader in the digital banking, SME &
consumer loans space. JS Bank has been recognized on multiple international and national forums including the
prestigious Asia Money, Asian Banking and Finance, DIGI and Pakistan Banking Awards. The Bank is part of JS
Group, one of Pakistan’s most diversified and progressive financial services groups.

His role encapsulates both an advisory role to the President & CEO as well as responsibility to lead the Bank's Product,
Marketing and Retail Banking teams. Mr. Shaikh is also the primary liaison with the Board of Directors for
alignment of the Bank'’s overall strategic oversight, continuing policy development and performance monitoring.

In addition to his professional commitments, Imran dedicates substantial energy towards social & philanthropic
causes through voluntary engagements. He also serves on the Board of JS Bank’s charitable partner, Mahvash
and Jahangir Siddiqui Foundation. He has been a prolific contributor to various leading publications and a
speaker at numerous multilateral conferences. Recognized for his dedication and commitment, Mr. Shaikh
strives to build synergistic, long-term, value-adding partnerships & associations.

Mr. Shaikh believes in challenging status quo to bring about a positive change. He graduated with a majors in
Marketing from the Institute of Business Management (loBM) in 2005. Imran has attended a number of executive
development courses worldwide including the Global Branding Forum, National Security Workshop at the
National Defense University and the Executive Development Program at National School of Public Policy.

Mr. Mirza M. Sadeed H. Barlas - Director

Sadeed has over thirty-three years of experience out of which banking experience is above 26 years. He worked
for seven years with Siemens in its Medical Division, after getting an Electrical Engineering degree from UET,
Lahore. Thereafter, he did his MBA from Lahore University of Management Sciences (LUMS) in 1993 and was
awarded Silver Medal with distinction in Statistics and Quantitative Methods.
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He started his banking career in Corporate Banking and worked in Commercial Banking, SME Banking, Digital &
Microfinance during his career in local and multinational banks. Major part of his career has been in Risk where
he worked in all facets of Risk Management covering Credit Risk, Operational Risk, Basel, Market Risk, Consumer
Risk, etc. He worked in local and foreign banks such as MCB, UBL, Barclays, Telenor Microfinance Bank, and JS
Bank in the capacity of CRO and Group Head Risk, etc. His longest stay was with UBL for about 17 years.

Sadeed also served as a member of BOD of UBL Funds Managers, a subsidiary of UBL from 2015 to 2018 as a
UBL nominee director and Chaired the UBL Fund’s Board Risk and Compliance Committee as well during this
assignment. During his work period at UBL, he has been assigned as Group Head Risk International looking
after the risk of UBL branches in foreign countries covering UAE, Qatar, Bahrain, etc.

Currently, he is working as CRO JS Bank Ltd, looking after all risk management functions, including Consumer
risk, ERM, Mkt risk, Ops risk, Risk Policies, Information Security, etc.

(h) Mr. Zahid Ullah Khan- Director

Mr. Zahid Ullah Khan has been associated with the capital markets on the buy side for over 15 years. Prior to
joining Jahangir Siddiqui & Co. Ltd. as its Chief Investment Officer, Mr. Khan was Chief Investment Officer at JS
Investments Limited since 2016, where he was responsible for managing fixed income, money market, equity,
venture capital, and pension Unit Trusts.

Previously, Mr. Khan was at JS Bank Limited since 2012, where he served as a Senior Vice President for the
bank’s risk management function and then moved on to Corporate and Commercial Credit. His core responsibilities
included development of various risk management frameworks, modeling term structure of interest rates,
engineering tailor-made interest rate products for corporate clientele, devising efficient mechanisms for
various equity based margin trading products, and maintaining corporate relationships.

Prior to joining JS Bank Limited, Mr. Khan served as a senior fund manager at JS Investments Limited from 2010
to 2012 where he managed a suite of equity and balanced Unit Trusts.

Preceding his role at JS Investments, Mr. Khan was associated with JS Group as Senior Vice President in a technical
role where he developed and deployed High Frequency Trading (HFT) platforms for equities. This function
involved extensive development of in-house statistical arbitrage models dependent on instantaneous market
variables. Mr. Khan also advised group companies on buy side risk management and for launching ETFs and
Market Making initiatives on the asset management and brokerage side. His other assignments included
research work on various green field projects in the private equity space.

Mr. Khan started his career with ABAMCO Limited (now JS Investments Limited) in 2004 as a research analyst,
and covered Banking and Insurance sectors along with following the money market and developing interest
rate models on the fixed income side. Additionally he was given the responsibility to develop and launch new
products for the growing AMC. During his tenure at ABAMCO Limited, Mr. Khan developed the first proprietary
free float-adjusted market capitalization index in Pakistan and launched the first Open end index fund based
on it. He also carries to his credit the launch of first Open end Fund of Funds scheme with an elaborate asset
allocation strategy, a Capital Protected Fund and several other in-house initiatives. In 2005, he was promoted
as a fund manager, and managed several Unit Trusts.

Mr. Zahid holds a Masters degree in Business Administration from Lahore University of Management Sciences;
a Masters degree in Economics from Lahore University of Management Sciences; and a Masters degree in
Finance from London Business School.

Directorships:

JS Petroleum Limited
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MANAGEMENT TEAM

Ms. Iffat Zehra Mankani
Chief Executive Officer

Iffat Mankani has joined JS Investments
Limited in April 2021. She brings with
her over 20 years of global experience
in both public and private markets
across multiple asset classes. She was
associated with JSIL during 2004-2007
as their ClO and in similar capacity later
with BMA Funds from 2007-2012. In
her most recent role, Iffat was working
with the Deals Advisory team at PwC
Canada. In addition to working for over
6 years with leading Canadian Banks in
Capital Markets Risk Management and
Quantitative teams. Iffat holds MFin. from
Rotman School (UofT) and MBA from the
Institute of Business Administration
(IBA).

Mr. Hussain Haider
Chief Investment Officer

Hussain holds two decades of global
experience in investment management,
equity advisory & private banking.
More recently, he was associated with
JS Global Capital as their Chief
Strategist & won various CFA
Excellence Awards for the firm. He has
also been voted as Pakistan’s Best
Economist and Best Strategist in the
AsiaMoney Broker Polls, 2020. An IBA
graduate, a CFA Charterholder & a
CIPM Certificant, Hussain has also
served as Director & Chair, Public
Awareness on the Board of a local CFA
Society in Canada.

Ms. Samina Faisal
Country Head | Business
Development

Samina Faisal has joined JSILin 2021 &
brings with her an overall 32 years of
extensive experience in Institutional &
Corporate Sales, Wealth Management,
& Distribution of Mutual Funds &
Bancassurance. Prior to joining JSIL,
she was operating her own consulting
firm. She has also held key manage-
ment roles in SCB, Societe Gen. Bank,
Pakcom Ltd., Pak-Kuwait., & Citibank.
Ms. Faisal holds a Masters in Business
Administration degree from the
Institute of Business Administration
(IBA), Karachi.

Mr. Abdul Basit Siddiqui
Head of Marketing, Distribution
& Customer Experience

Basit has 20+ Years of Diversified
Experience of segments like Private
Banking, Retail Branch Banking, Wealth
Management , Consumer Assets,
Islamic Banking and Emerging Banks.
He has developed and managed
substantial portfolios, along with
extensive exposure of Integration &
mergers of banks. Hold Various Top
performers & Role Model Awards.

Mr. Khawar Igbal
Chief Operating Officer
& Company Secretary

With over more than 27 years of
diversified  experience, 2019 to
February 2022. Throughout his career
Mr. Igbal has implemented a system of
continuous review and introduced
changes to bring in efficiencies,
simplifications and improvement in
the overall quality of his departmental
deliverables. His role encompasses a
wide range of matters ranging from
financial management, reporting,
internal control, compliance with laws
applicable to the Company and other
secretarial matters.

Mr. Malik Zafar Javaid
Chief Compliance &
Risk Officer

Malik Zafar Javaid carries over 29+ years
of experience of capital market
operations, Corporate Laws/Regulations
and managing business operations. He
has expertise in managing business
operations of the Financial Sector,
Capital Markets, Corporate Affairs,
Business Transformations and digitization
of Customer On-boarding, automation
of KYC/AML system, payment solutions
and back-office operations leading
towards efficient control and management.
He has been part of JSIL's team since
2006.

Mr. Zeeshan Khawar
Chief Finance Officer

Mr. Zeeshan Khawar has around 19
years of experience covering the
ambits of Financial Strategy, Project
Management, Internal & External Audit
& Risk Management. He is a qualified
Chartered  Accountant,  Certified
Internal Auditor & Certified Internal
Controls Auditor. Mr. Khawar's last Job
was in Al Ghurair Foods UAE & Sri
Lanka as CFO. Prior to this, he was
working with Al-Ghurair Investments
UAE as Group Audit & Risk Head for
3.25 years & has also worked with State
Audit Institution — UAE for 3.5 years.
Mr. Zeeshan started his career with
KPMG & besides Pakistan has worked
in UK & UAE for 7 years.

Mr. Muhammad Anwer
Head of Information
Technology

Mr. Anwer has 18 years of experience
covering Infrastructure, ERP implementation,
Data Centre, DR & Project Management.
Prior to JSIL he was working with
Dawood Family Takaful as Head of
Information Technology, where he
lead the ERP, CRM, Online Digital
Payment, Portal development &
implementation teams and was given
an additional responsibility of Chief
Information Security Officer. In the
past, Mr. Anwer served Pak Qatar
Takaful, Millennium Software, PICIC
Insurance, & International General
Insurance Limited (IGI).
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MILESTONES

Established as the First Private
Sector AMC of Pakistan

— @

i

Launched Pakistan’s First Open
End Shariah Complaint Fund - JS
Islamic Fund

=

Introduced the First Asset
Allocation Fund - JS Aggressive
Asset Allocation Fund

i

Became the only AMC to get
listed on Pakistan Stock
Exchange

&

Merger of JSAAAF & JS KSE 30
with and into JS Large Cap Fund
{(JSLCF)

Announced second buy back of
its shares

=

Introduced the First Smart Beta
ETF,
JS Momentum Factor ETF

1995
® 1997 Launched Pakistan’s First Balanced
Fund - Unit Trust of Pakistan (UTP)
[a¥.n)
2002 3K
® 2004 Launched Abamco Composite Fund
— The Largest Closed End Fund
2005 @’)}
Introduced the First Index Fund - JS
@
2006 KSE 30 Index Fund
® 2010 Launched the First Principal
Protected Fund cobranded with SCB
&
2014 T
Announced first buy back of its
@
2015 shares
2016
Merger of JS Value Fund with and
e 2021 into JS Growth Fund
[
[
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CERTIFICATE OF MERIT

Best Corporate Report 2020 Awards

Certificate of Merit

15 Investments Limited
Sector: NBFls and Modaraba

Friday, 27th Auvgust, 2021

Karach

The joint Committee of Institute of Chartered Accountants of Pakistan and Institute of Cost
and Management Accountants of Pakistan awarded Certificate of Merit to the Annual

Report of 2020 of JS Investments Limited under Best Corporate and Sustainability Reports
Awards 2020.

SAFA

SOUTH ASIAN FEDERATION OF ACCOUNTANTS

Commaies for improsemanl i Trasapanency. Ascouniandity § Govmancn

Beal Prosorted Assasl Raport Awards, integrated Reporting Award and
SAART Annbversary Award fof Corg G Diuch N

Certificate of Merit
Cotegoey. Franoial Sevvice

J5 Investments Limited
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LICENSES

SECP has granted renewed license No. AMCW/11/JSIL/AMS/05/2019, dated June 14, 2019 to JS Investments Limit-
ed under Rule 5 of the Non-Banking Finance Companies (Establishment and Regulation) Rules 2003 as amended
through S.R.0.1131 (1) 2007, S.R.0.271(1)/2010, S.R.0 570(1)/2012 and S.R.O 1002(i)/2015 (the "Rules"), to undertake
asset management services.

Investment Advisory

SECP has granted renewed license No. AMCW/11/JSIL/AMS/05/2019, dated June 14, 2019 to JS Investments Limit-
ed under Rule 5 of the Non-Banking Finance Companies (Establishment and Regulation) Rules 2003 as amended
through S.R.0.1131 (1) 2007, S.R.0.271(1)/2010, S.R.O 570(1)/2012 and S.R.O 1002(i)/2015 (the "Rules"), to undertake
investment advisory services.

Voluntary Pension Scheme Management

SECP has granted Registration No. SECP/PW/Reg-03/2007, dated January 8, 2007 to JS Investments Limited under
Rule 5(2) of the Voluntary Pension System Rules 2005, to undertake business as a Pension Fund Manager.

Private Equity and Venture Capital Fund Management Services

SECP has granted license No. SECP/JSIL/PE&VC/03/2021 dated September 15, 2021 to JS Investments Limited
under Rule 5 of the Non-Banking Finance Companies (Establishment and Regulation) Rules 2003 as amended
through S.R.0.1131 (1) 2007, S.R.0.271(1)/2010, S.R.O 570(1)/2012 and S.R.O 1002(i)/2015 (the "Rules"), to carry out
Private Equity and Venture Capital Fund Management Services.

REIT Management Services
SECP has granted license No.SCD/PRDD/REIT/JSIL/2020/02, dated July 28, 2020 to JS Investments Limited under

Rule 5 of the Non-Banking Finance Companies (Establishment and Regulation) Rules 2003to carry out REITMan-
agement Services.
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PRINCIPLE BUSINESS ACTIVITIES AND MARKETS INCLUDING
KEY BRANDS, PRODUCT AND SERVICES.

MUTUAL FUND CONVENTIONAL

JS CASH FUND

JS INCOME FUND

JS GROWTH FUND

JSCF is an open-end 'Money Market
Scheme' that mainly invests in low risk
short term fixed income instruments
including money market instruments
to provide a regular and reasonable
return to investors while ensuring
high liquidity. The Fund shall invest
primarily in short duration instruments
and may even hold some or all of its
assets in cash for the purpose
maintaining liquidity.

Category: Money Market Scheme
Launch Date: 29 March, 2010
Risk Profile: Low

Mainly Invest In: Short duration
Instruments

JSIF is an income fund that aims to
preserve investor’s capital while
providing a regular stream of
current income on an annual basis
which is higher than that offered by
commercial banks on deposits of a
similar liquidity profile as this fund.
The fund operates a diverse portfolio
of investment-grade debt securities,
government securities and money
market instruments.

Category: Income Fund Scheme
Launch Date: 26 August, 2002

Risk Profile: Medium

Mainly Invest In: Debt Securities,

Government Securities and Money
Market Instruments

The objective of the JSGF is to
enable its investors to participate in
a diversified portfolio of high quality
equity securities aiming at maximizing
the investment return by prudent
investment management.
Category: Equity Scheme

Launch Date: 06 June, 2006

Risk Profile: High

Mainly Invest In: Equity Securities

UNIT TRUST OF PAKISTAN

UTP is a balanced fund that aims to
preserve and grow investor’s capital
in the long term while providing a
regular stream of currentincome on
an annual basis. The fund operates a
diverse portfolio of equity and fixed
income investments whereby the
equity component is meant to
provide the growth in capital while
dividends on the equity component
along with the fixed income investments
help generate the current income.

Category: Balanced Scheme
Launch Date: 27 October, 1997
Risk Profile: High

Mainly Invest In: Shares and Fixed
Income instruments

JS FUND OF FUNDS

JSFoF is a fund of funds that aims to
grow investor’s capital in the long
term while diversifying the asset
manager risk bundled together with
the benefits of an asset allocation
fund. The fund operates a diverse
portfolio of equity, balanced, fixed
income and money market funds
(both open and closed ended) with
the option to adjust the asset mix as
equity markets rise or fall and the
economy strengthens or weakens.

Category: Fund of Fund Scheme
Launch Date: 31 October, 2005
Risk Profile: Medium

Mainly Invest In: All categories of
Mutual Funds

JS LARGE CAP. FUND

JSLCF is an open-end Equity
Scheme that aims to benefit from
an attractive Capital Market in an
economy with growth potential, to
maximize the total investment
return consisting of a combination
of capital appreciation and
dividend income. Consistent with
its investment objective, the Fund
shall invest primarily in equity
securities of listed large-cap
companies with market capitaliza-
tion of over Rupees one billion.

Category: Equity Scheme
Launch Date: 14 May, 2004
Risk Profile: High

Mainly Invest In: Equity Securities
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MUTUAL FUNDS - SHARIAH COMPLIANT

JS ISLAMIC DAILY DIVIDEND FUND ﬂn;

The Objective of the JSIDDF is to
meet liquidity needs of the
investors by providing daily
dividend through investment in
Shariah Compliant money market
instruments.

Category:  Shariah  Compliant
Money Market Scheme

Launch Date: 03 September, 2020
Risk Profile: Low

Mainly Invest In: Money Market
Instruments

JS ISLAMIC INCOME FUND

The objective of JSIIF is to generate
stable returns and ensure capital
preservation over medium to long
term, by investing primarily in quality
Sukuks, Shariah-compliant Government
Securities, Shariah-compliant Bank
Deposits and other Shariah-compliant
debt instruments.

Category: Shariah Compliant Income
Scheme

Launch Date: 05 June, 2013

Risk Profile: Medium

Mainly Invest In: Shariah Compliant

Government Securities, Bank
Deposits and Debt Instruments

i
oy

JS ISLAMIC HYBRID FUND OF FUND.  NMNY"
W/

JSIHFOF  offers investors with
long-term capital growth through
prudent investment management
and diversification across Asset
Manager and Asset classes. The
Fund maintains a diversified portfolio
of Equity, Balanced, Fixed income
and money market Funds.

Category: Shariah Compliant Fund
of Funds Scheme (CPPI) - Allocation
Plan

Launch Date: 07 June, 2017
Risk Profile: Medium

Mainly Invest In: All categories of
Shariah Compliant Mutual Funds

JS ISLAMIC DEDICATED EQUITY

JSISF offers investors with Shariah Compliant equity-based
performance through prudent investment management.
The Fund maintains a diversified equity portfolio of Shariah
Compliant listed companies offering higher value and/or
potential growth.

Category: Shariah Compliant Equity Scheme
Launch Date: 27 December, 2002
Risk Profile: High

Mainly Invest In: Shariah Complaint Equities

The objective of JSIDEF is to provide other ‘Fund of Funds'
schemes a Shariah compliant avenue for taking exposure in
Shariah Compliant Equities.

Category:Shariah Compliant Equity Scheme
Launch Date: 21 March, 2018
Risk Profile: High

Mainly Invest In: Shariah Complaint Equities

EXCHANGE TRADED FUND

JS MOMENTUM FACTOR ETF

maintained by the Pakistan Stock Exchange.
Category: Exchange Traded Fund

Launch Date: 07 January, 2022

Risk Profile: High

Mainly Invest In: Equity Securities

JSMFETF shall invest in a particular basket of equity securities with a view to track the performance of the Benchmark index. The
Benchmark Index is called “JS Momentum Factor Index” and shall be constituted by Management Company and periodically
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VOLUNATARY PENSION SCHEMSES

JS PENSION SAVINGS FUND

JSPSF provides a reliable source of savings and retirement income to individuals. JSPSF provides individuals the flexibility and
portfolio customization through allocation of such contributions among equity, income and money-market sub-funds suited to
specific needs and risk profile of the investor.

Category: Voluntary Pension Scheme
Launch Date: 26 June, 2007

Risk Profile: Investor Dependent

Mainly Invest In: Equity and Fixed Income

JS ISLAMIC PENSION SAVINGS FUND kh

JSIPSF provides a reliable source of savings and retirement income to individuals. JSIPSF provide individuals the flexibility in
contributions and portfolio customization through allocation of such contributions among equity, income and money-market
sub-funds suited to specific need and risk profile of the investor.

Category: Shariah Compliant Voluntary Pension Scheme
Launch Date: 16 June, 2008

Risk Profile: Investor Dependent

Mainly Invest In: Equity, Fixed Income and other Halal Investments Avenues

Separately Management Account

A customized investment solution for high net worth and large corporate customers. An SMA is a portfolio of
investments that is managed on customer’s behalf by a dedicated Investment Manager. The portfolio is custom-
ized according to customers’ financial requirements and risk tolerance.

Digital Customer Onboarding

A completely digital & seamless customer on boarding of regular & sahulat sarmayakari customers through the
website. So that people can start investments for anywhere and anytime.
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COMPETITIVE LANDSCAPE AND MARKET POSITIONING

(considering factors such as the threat of new competition and substitute prod-

ucts or services, the bargaining power of customers and suppliers, and the
intensity of competitive rivalry).

Strength: Below are the Strengths in the SWOT Analysis of JS Investments:

1. Part of JSCL, first securities company in Pakistan with a Wall Street Pedigree
2. A diversified investment product suite to cater to the needs of all investors
3. Strong brand with decades of experience

4. Technology and innovation based forward thinking management

Weaknesses: Below are the Weaknesses in the SWOT Analysis of JS Investments:

1. Concentrated Asset Under Management
2. Clientele targeted towards a singular segment

Opportunities: Below are the Opportunities in the SWOT Analysis of JS Investments:

Expand its operations in different geographies

Include more products in the portfolio

Potential to grow the overall investor base through education
Potential for improvement in equity market outlook

AN =

Threats: Below are the Threats in the SWOT Analysis of JS Investments:

-

Dependent on market economic indicators resulting in unpredictable future

2. Heavy competition from AMCs and new investment opportunities e.g. crypto & NFTs leading to
limited market share
3. Low income & high inflation of the country, leading to a lower saving and investment ratio
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CHAIRMAN'’S REVIEW

I am pleased to present the report on the overall performance of the Board and the effectiveness of its role in achieving
the Company’s strategic business objectives as well as ensuring overall compliance with The Companies Act, 2017
and The Listed Companies (Code of Corporate Governance) Regulations, 2019. The Board performed its duties
diligently in the best interest of the Company. |, as Chairman of the Board, ensured that the board meetings are held
in a congenial atmosphere focusing on achieving the objectives.

During the year under review, the Company faced many operational challenges especially due to prevailing
circumstances caused by the Covid-19 outbreak. The Management of the Company is putting its best efforts to
achieve profitability and market share.

The composition of the Board of Directors reflects a mix of varied backgrounds and rich experiences in business, finance
and banking. It represents an excellent balance of executive and non-executive directors including independent directors,
having strong financial and analytical abilities, core competencies, and industry knowledge to lead the company.

During the year, the Board of Directors focused on the future strategy including setting the financial and operational
targets. The Board regularly tracked the progress against the budgeted targets. The sub-committees of the Board also
performed their functions as per their terms of reference during the year under review. The Board reviewed its
effectiveness and performance during the year, which has been satisfactory.

During a year of macro-economic headwinds and extremely volatile market movements, the growth was driven by
investor demand for low-risk investment solutions like Income and Cash Funds. The sluggish economy, on account of
COVID 19 and the commodities boom led to disappointing equity market performance. The funds under management
of JSIL also witnessed significant attritions during the year leading to a loss of PKR 300 million. However, with the
team efforts and support of the customers, JSIL managed to avoid any reduction in Assets under Management (AUM)
and kept them stable at PKR 22.77 billion in CY 2021.

The Company has recently launched a new product, namely JS Momentum Factor Exchange Traded Fund. Going
forward, the Company is targeting sustainable AUM growth by offering innovative niche products, as well as customized
investment solutions covering the entire risk/return spectrum. The Company is expected to achieve profitability in
the future due to a shift towards a leaner and more cost-efficient model, driven by technology and automation. The
optimization in organizational structure is aligned with the aspirations of the Board and the shareholders.

| would like to acknowledge the contribution of all members of the Board who put in a lot of time and effort. A
well-composed board brings a diverse range of expertise, perspectives and knowledge to provide quality strategic
direction to the management. The Board has performed its duties and responsibilities diligently and has contributed
effectively in guiding the Company in its strategic affairs. The Board recognizes that well-defined corporate governance
processes are vital to enhance corporate accountability and is committed to ensuring high standards of corporate
governance to preserve and maintain shareholders' value.

| wish to place on record my appreciation for the support received by the Company from the Securities & Exchange
Commission of Pakistan which has exhibited itself to be a model Regulator in 2021 with its response to the COVID
crisis and has set a new standard concerning the resolution of industry issues, thereby paving the way for the Trillion
Rupee Assets under Management (AUM) mark and beyond. Needless to say, other key stakeholders who deserve
appreciation are the dedicated staff of JS Investments, unitholders who entrusted us with their savings and our
shareholders for their continued support and confidence.

Suleman Lalani
Chairman

Karachi
February 23, 2022 )
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DIRECTORS' REPORT TO THE SHARE HOLDERS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2021

We are pleased to present the audited financial statements and auditors’ report of JS Investments Limited (JSIL) for
the year ended December 31, 2021.

PRINCIPAL BUSINESS

JSIL, a public listed company, was incorporated in Pakistan in 1995. The company operates under the licenses of
Investment Advisory, Asset Management Company, Pension Funds Manager, REIT Management Services, and
Private Equity & Venture Capital Fund Management Services. All licenses were obtained from the Securities &
Exchange Commission of Pakistan (SECP) under applicable laws.

ECONOMY:

Similar to the latter half of 2020, global economies navigated through a managed re-opening of economies supported
by accommodative monetary and fiscal policies. To recall, Pakistan saw the Central Bank and Federal Government
embark on an expansionary stance from March 2020 through most of 2021. The policy rates were slashed to 7% by the
State Bank of Pakistan (SBP) while the Federal Government introduced a Rs. 1.25 trillion fiscal support package. Accom-
modative fiscal and monetary policies led the country to record a GDP growth of 3.94% for FY2021.The prime indicator
for manufacturing activity in the country, the Large Scale Manufacturing Index (LSM), marked a 3-year high of 15%
during the year. IMF Extended Fund Facility (EFF) program was resumed successfully during the year along with the
successful issue of Eurobonds.

The recovery of the global economy amid supply chain bottlenecks led to an across the board increase in ferrous and
non-ferrous commodities. Resultantly, headline inflation rose -continuously during the calendar year. Food inflation
inched up from 7.3% to 11.7% between January and December. Headline numbers rose as well; from 5.7% in January
2021 to 12.3% in December 2021. This unprecedented rise became a major concern for the State Bank of Pakistan
(SBP). Further, external pressures were seen rising as the Current Account Deficit (CAD) reached USD 10.2 billion
against CAD of USD 1.3 billion last year. Rupee devalued against US Dollar by 10.3% to close at 176.5 from a level of
159.9 at the beginning of the year. These factors led the SBP to reverse its dovish stance and tighten monetary policy,
by increasing the policy rate from 7.0% to 9.75%.

Going forward, we note the current challenges to the macroeconomic landscape are well addressed through various
policy tools. Our confidence further stems from the size and pace of monetary tightening, increased Cash Reserve
Requirement for banks, free-market determination of the exchange rate, tighter import controls, and increased duties
on non-essentials. These measures are expected to reduce the stress on Current Account Deficit (CAD) and control
inflation. On the other hand, the revival of the IMF EFF program should make way for multilateral flows and introduce
discipline on the macro front.

EQUITY MARKET PERFORMANCE:

The KSE-100 initially peaked with a 8.2% return as of June 2021. Fruits of accommodative policies and vaccination
roll-out helped the economy resurface setting the pace for healthy economic growth. Further, the resumption of the
IMF program and a growth-oriented Federal Budget for FY22 improved market sentiments although the improvement
was short lived as concerns emerged in the latter half of 2021.
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During 2021, global demand staged a V-shaped recovery as successive waves of the corona virus did not result in
higher mortality rates. As COVID became the new normal, economic activity resumed. The impact of record global
monetary and fiscal stimulus resulted in deepening the pockets of the average consumer through unemployment
benefits, cash cheques by governments and reduced expenditure due to work from home policies. The combina-
tion of a sharp recovery in global demand and persistent supply chain bottlenecks led to a rise in commodity prices
that considerably worsened Pakistan’s CAD during the second half of the year.

The KSE-100 reversed course after June 2021 and ended the year up 1.9% and down 6% from its mid-year peak as
the market priced in changing fundamentals.

Technology & Communication, Commercial Banks & Fertilizer were the largest positive contributors to the index
while Cement, Oil & Gas Marketing, Refineries, and Pharmaceuticals underperformed. Traded value for the year rose
to Rs. 16.9 billion from Rs. 12.3 billion last year, an increase of 37% on a year-on-year basis. Foreigners continued to
remain net sellers in the market with an outflow of USD 359 million. The liquidity was primarily absorbed by individ-
uals (USD 245 million) and companies (USD 107 million).

MONEY MARKET PERFORMANCE:

For the majority of 2021the SBP maintained negative real interest rates in order to revive demand amid the pan-
demic. However, worsening inflation and CAD due to higher commodity prices led the SBP to embark on monetary
tightening with a cumulative hike of 275bps at the tail-end of the year to bring the policy rate to 9.75%. This yield
curve shifted upward and flattened as spot rates rose more than longer tenor yields..

With the focus of SBP and the Ministry of Finance aligned to promoting economic growth, we're expecting interest
rates will peakin 2022. Investors are currently in a risk-off mode as many risks abound on the commodity prices and
geopolitical front are major headwinds for monetary policy outlook. Therefore, investor interest remained primarily
towards the shorter tenor papers. During CY2021, the cut-off for the 3M, 6M and 12M T-bill has increased from
7.14%, 7.19% and 7.29% to 10.39%, 11.32% and 11.48%, respectively.

THE ASSET MANAGEMENT INDUSTRY

At the end of CY21, Assets Under Management (AUM) of the mutual fund industry stood at Rs. 1.126 trillion (exclud-
ing Fund of Funds structures) showing a growth of 19% (Rs. 179.3 billion) from a December 2020 level of Rs. 946
billion. AUMs of conventional schemes grew by 19% to reach Rs. 690 billion (excluding Fund of Funds structures) at
the end of the year. AUMs of shariah compliant schemes grew by 15% i.e. Rs. 56.9 billion to reach Rs. 435 billion
(excluding Fund of Funds structures).

CY21 was a volatile and uncertain year due to COVID-19 as the rise in commodity prices and geopolitical tensions
led to worsening fundamentals and weaker sentiment. The SBP raised the policy rate from 7.0% to 9.75% due to
external imbalances and mounting inflationary pressures.

Dampened equity market performance and rising fixed income yields led to a net inflow in the Cash & Income
Funds category of Rs. 126 billion for the whole industry. The split of this inflow was Rs. 93 billion in the conventional
space and Rs. 33 billion in the Shariah Compliant space.
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PRINCIPAL RISKS & UNCERTAINTIES

Key sources of uncertainty emanating from the challenging environment the company operates in, pose
political, social, technological, economic and/or legal risk factors. JSIL's management has performed a
robust and systemic review of those risks that could affect the company’s performance, prospects, reputa-
tion, or ability to deliver on its commitments. JSIL's overall risk management program focuses on the
unpredictability of financial markets arising from those risk factors and seeks to minimize potential adverse
effects on its financial performance.

Assets under management (AUM) of the asset management industry showed promising growth in FY21
and crossed Rs.1 trillion. Due to the risk averse stance of many corporates amid rising fixed income yields,
AUMs in this asset class showed promising growth. However, the retail mutual fund penetration in Pakistan
remain very low and in addition to increasing awareness, the government is encouraging sset Manage-
ment Companies (AMCs) to enhance access to mutual funds to a wider geographical reach by leveraging
technology. As a result, asset management companies are upgrading their existing unit management
systems and sales processes to enable digital on boarding for their clients and accelerate client acquisition.
Concurrently, the government is also cautious on issues relating to ‘Know Your Customer (KYC) require-
ments to cope with ‘Anti Money Laundering’ (AML) and ‘Combating the Financing of Terrorism (CFT), which
puts high regulatory responsibility on AMCs to diligently perform Customer Due Diligence (CDD). JSIL is
committed to ensuring compliance with these regulations.

PERFORMANCE REVIEW

Due to stagnant equity market performance on account of COVID 19, the industry-wide main focus has
been on low margin products like Cash & Income Funds category resulting in a substantial decline in the
management fee earned by the company. The recovery of mutual funds/VPS portfolio values going
forward are expected to contribute positively to the profitability of the Company. JSIL posted a net
after-tax loss of Rs. 300.08 million (LPS of Rs. 4.86) as of December 31,2021 vs. a loss of Rs. 39.80 million (LPS
of Rs. 0.64) in 2020. The pre-tax loss was reported at Rs. 288.74 million in 2021 vs. a loss of Rs. 22.99 million
in 2020. Gross income of Rs. 52.85 million was earned during the year vs. Rs. 333.65 million last year. The
company earned fee from funds under management (including Separately Managed Accounts - SMAs) of
Rs. 157.36 million compared to Rs. 174.83 million during the corresponding period last year. The assets
under management (excluding SMAs & Fund of Funds) were Rs. 22.77 billion compared to Rs. 23.8 billion
as of December 31, 2021, depicting a decrease of 4%.

Year ended Year ended
Summary of operating results for the year December 31, December 31,
2021 2020
Rupees in thousand
Shareholders’ Equity 1,504,448 1,774,987
Management Fee (Including SMA) 157,362 174,834
Sales Load (Net) 465 4,096
Investment (Loss)/Income (104,977) 154,716
Total Revenue 52,850 333,646
Operating expenses (331,829) (336,458)
Operating Loss (278,979) (2,811)
Other net operating Loss (9,756) (20,181)
Loss before tax (288,735) (22,992)
Taxation-net (11,340) (16,808)
Loss after tax (300,075) (39,801)
Loss per share - basic and diluted (Rs.) (4.86) (0.64)
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MATERIAL CHANGES AND COMMITMENTS

No material changes and commitments affecting the financial position of the company occurred during the period
to which the balance sheet relates and the date of this report.

FUTURE OUTLOOK

The investment management industry is still in a nascent stage despite upside surprises over different economic
cycles. With assets under management of Rs 1 trillion of which 45% are invested in cash funds only, we feel there is
a lot to be done on this side of the world. Due to technological advancements and an enabling regulatory environ-
ment in the recent past, we are excited about the future prospects and believe these developments will enable us
to create outreach and increased financial literacy while simplifying operational processes.

Building trust, maintaining relationships, and delivering investment returns are the foundations of our business.
While these qualities will endure and remain our focus, we understand that regulatory scrutiny around value for
money and transparency, disruptive technology, and new investor preferences, necessitate that firms adapt and
innovate if they are to flourish in the new order. Revisiting our original strength i.e. “Product Innovation,” we will
strive to develop investors’ (especially middle class investors) thought process and asset allocation habits in the
next five years beyond traditional asset classes. Our growth strategy is focused on the understanding that the finan-
cial industry will always be moving forward and changing with the world around it. Therefore, we will constantly be
rethinking and finding new and better solutions for our clients. Recognizing that algorithms and rule-based deci-
sion-making have become ever more ingrained in the investment universe internationally, we have launched our
first smart beta ETF JS Momentum Factor ETF in 2022. In the next steps, we plan to launch products in the alternate
space including real estate and venture capital.

We are also simplifying the operational processes and digital on boarding for our funds across different online plat-
forms. In this connection, we have partnered with a technology services company to launch a new digital on board-
ing journey for our retail customers. The solution will allow individuals to open accounts digitally, covering all the
key AML and KYC controls with an intuitive and customer-friendly journey. We are also continuously rationalizing
our product suite and therefore consolidating similar strategy funds along with re-aligning our organizational
structure in line with our vision and enhancing the operational capacity of staff members through different
segments of training programs. We also look forward to augment our market reach in new cities and increase our
customer base by adopting new marketing strategies.

SIGNIFICANT EVENTS DURING THE REPORTING PERIOD

During the year the company focused on streamlining its product suite. Firstly, two of JSILs equity funds; namely
the JS Growth Fund and JS Value Fund were merged into one entity bearing the former’s name. This was done in
order to simplify our equity offerings. In addition to this, we also extended the life of our constant proportion port-
folio insurance (CPPI) products. JS Capital Preservation Allocation Plan 5,6,7,8 were initially launched with a 2 year
maturity and their life was further extended by another 2 years. Finally we also closed the JSIHFOF Mustahkem and
JSIHFOF Mufeed baskets to reduce and simplify our hybrid product offerings.

On 19 February 2021, the Board of Directors of the company passed a resolution approving a Scheme of Amalga-
mation under Section 284(1) of the Companies Act, 2017, to amalgamate its wholly owned subsidiary, JS ABAMCO
Commodities Limited with and into the company, which was approved by SECP on 24 June 2021. Thereafter, as of
the effective date 31 March 2021, the entire undertaking of JS ABAMCO Commodities Limited is merged with and
into the company.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE AND FINANCIAL REPORTING FRAMEWORK

The Directors are pleased to state as follows:

a. The financial statements, prepared by the management of JSIL present fairly the state of affairs,
results of its operations, cash flows, and changes in equity;

b. Proper books of account have been maintained by JSIL;

C. Appropriate accounting policies have been consistently applied in the preparation of financial statements
and financial estimates are based on reasonable and prudent judgment;

d. International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS), as applicable in Pakistan have been followed in
the preparation of the financial statements, and any departures therefrom have been adequately
disclosed and explained;

e. The system of internal controls is sound in design and has been effectively implemented and monitored;
f. There are no significant doubts about JSILs ability to continue as a going concern;
g. There has been no material departure from the best practices of Corporate Governance as contained

in Listed Companies (Code of Corporate Governance) Regulations, 2019;
h. A summary of key financial data of last six years is given in this Annual Report;

i. Outstanding taxes, duties, levies and charges have been fully disclosed in the annexed audited
financial statements;

j- JSIL keeps an effective and efficient internal financial controls system that remains active through
consistent innovation and monitoring. The internal audit and compliance functions of JSIL evaluate
the financial controls and ensure that there is an effective control environment throughout the
company. Based on the evaluation processes, the BoD considers that the existing internal financial
control system is adequate and has been effectively implemented;

k. The Code of Conduct has been disseminated throughout JSIL along with supporting policies and
procedures and

I The value of investments of the Staff Provident Fund of JSIL of June 30, 2021, was Rs. 7.16 million.
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CORPORATE AFFAIRS

The following directors served on the board during the year:

Mr. Suleman Lalani

Chairman / Non-executive Director

Ms. Iffat Zehra Mankani*

Chief Executive Officer

Mr. Hasan Shahid

Non-executive Director

Mr. Zahid Ullah Khan**

Non-executive Director

Mr. Imran Haleem Shaikh

Non-executive Director

Mr. Mirza M. Sadeed H. Barlas***

Non-executive Director

Mr. Asif Reza Sana

Independent, Non-executive Director

Ms. Aisha Fariel Salahuddin

Independent, Non-executive Director

Mr. Kamran Jafar Resigned
Mr. Hasnain Raza Nensey Resigned
Mr. Tahir Ali Sheikh Resigned
* Ms. Iffat Zehra Mankani appointed as Chief Executive Officer of the company in place of Mr. Hasnain Raza

Nensey w.e.f April 15, 2021.

** Mr. Zahid Ullah Khan appointed as Director of the company w.e.f March 18, 2021, in place of Mr. Kamran Jafar.
¥*¥*  Mr.Mirza M. Sadeed H. Barlas has been appointed as Director w.e.f August 09, 2021, in place of Mr. Tahir Ali Sheikh.

Composition of the Board of Directors

Executive Female Director - CEO 01
Non-executive Director 05
Independent / Non-executive Directors [including one female director] 02

Meetings of the Board of Directors

During the year five meetings of the Board of Directors were held. The attendance of each director for these meet-

ings is as follows:

Name Meetings Eligibility Meetings attended
Mr. Suleman Lalani Five Five
Mes. Iffat Zehra Mankani Four Four
Mr. Hasan Shahid Five Five
Mr. Asif Reza Sana Five Four
Mr. Imran Haleem Shaikh Five Three
Ms. Aisha Fariel Salahuddin Five Five
Mr. Zahid Ullah Khan Four Four
Mr. Mirza M. Sadeed H. Barlas* Three Two
Mr. Hasnain Raza Nensey** One One
Mr. Tahir Ali Sheikh** Two Two
* Mr. Mirza M. Sadeed H. Barlas appointed as Director w.e.f August 09, 2021.

** Mr. Hasnain Raza Nensey and Mr. Tahir Ali Sheikh have resigned as CEO and Director of JSIL respectively,

during the year.
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Meetings of the Board Audit Committee

During the year, four meetings of the Board Audit Committee were held. The attendance of each director for these
meetings is as follows:

Name Meetings Eligibility Meetings attended
Mr. Asif Reza Sana Four Three

Ms. Aisha Fariel Salahuddin Four Four

Mr. Hasan Shahid Four Four

Meetings of the Board Human Resources & Remuneration (HR&R) Committee

During the year, one meeting of the Board Human Resources & Remuneration (HR&R) Committee was held. The
attendance of each director for this meeting is as follows:

Name Meetings Eligibility Meetings attended
Ms. Aisha Fariel Salahuddin One One
Mr. Kamran Jafar One One
Ms. Iffat Zehra Mankani One One

Meetings of the Board Executive Risk Management Committee

During the year, five meetings of the Executive Risk Management Committee were held. The attendance of each
director for these meetings is as follows:

Name Meetings Eligibility Meetings attended
Mr. Suleman Lalani Five Five
Mes. Iffat Zehra Mankani Four Four
Mr. Imran Haleem Shaikh Five Four
Mr. Tahir Ali Sheikh* Two Two
Mr. Hasnain Raza Nensey* One One
* Mr. Hasnain Raza Nensey and Mr. Tahir Ali Sheikh have resigned as member of Executive Risk Management

Committee of JSIL, during the year.
Directors’ Training Program
Seven out of eight Directors on the Board are certified under the Directors Training Program (DTP).
Directors' Remuneration Policy

The remuneration of the Board members is approved by the Board itself. However, in accordance with the Code of
Corporate Governance Regulations, 2019, it is ensured that no Director takes part in deciding his own remunera-
tion. The company does not pay remuneration to non-executive directors except fee for attending the meetings.
The company’s remuneration policies are structured in line with prevailing CCG Regulations and Section 227 of the
Companies Act, 2017. For information on remuneration of Directors and CEO in 2020-21, please refer to the Note
No. 30 to the Financial Statements.
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Board Evaluation

The Board considers its performance assessment as a key contributor to good governance, as it provides feedback
from the Directors on their perceptions of how the Board is currently performing its role and responsibilities. Envis-
aging the same, the Board devised an in-house questionnaires based on emerging and leading practices to assist
performance of the board as a whole, of its committees and of its members. The company Secretary presents the
summarized report for discussion and review of the Board annually.

Disclosure of Interest by Directors

During the period the following trades in JSIL shares were carried out by Directors and Chief Executive Officer:

. Mr. Imran Haleem Shaikh - Director — purchased 500 shares.

. Mes. Iffat Zehra Mankani — Chief Executive Officer — purchased 500 shares.
. Mr. Zahid Ullah Khan - Director — purchased 500 shares.

. Mr. Mirza M. Sadeed H. Barlas - purchased 500 shares.

Disclosures related to the aforesaid transactions have already been made to the Pakistan Stock Exchange.
PARENT COMPANY

JS Bank, the holding company of JS Investments Limited, holds 84.56% of the equity.

EARNING PER SHARE

The loss per share of the JSIL during the period is Rs. (4.86).

INTERNAL FINANCIAL CONTROLS

The system of internal financial controls is sound in design and has been effectively implemented and monitored
by the Directors of the company.

PATTERN OF SHAREHOLDING

A statement showing the pattern of shareholding in JSIL and additional information as of December 31, 2021 is
available in this Annual Report.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Related party transactions are disclosed in Note 31 to the audited financial statements for the year ended Decem-
ber 31, 2021.

DIVIDEND

As the company incurred a loss before tax of Rs. 288.74 million the Board of Directors has opted not to declare a
dividend for the year ended December 2021.

CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY

The business practices of JSIL have no adverse impact on the environment. We are continuously looking at options
to become environmental friendly with efforts such as reducing paper by switching to electronic forms and meth-
ods especially in the area of customer statements and marketing collateral.
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JSIL strongly believes in giving back to society and regularly conducts events that benefit the larger community.
JSIL contributes to philanthropic activities in partnership with ‘Future Trust, which is actively engaged in the areas
of education, health care, improvement of socio-economic conditions, and humanitarian relief. On Independence
Day, JSIL promoted investing in the unexplored talent of Pakistan by sponsoring a young talented cyclist from Lyari
- Sumera Ahmed Ali, who despite being from an underprivileged background, pursued her dreams of becoming a
cyclist on a national level.

ADDITIONAL MATTERS
a. No changes have occurred during the financial year concerning the nature of the business of the company.
b. JSIL is not involved in defaults in payment of any debt.

ASSET MANAGER AND ENTITY RATING

Pakistan Credit Rating Agency (PACRA) has assigned JS Investments’ Management Quality Rating of AM2 with a
"stable" outlook. The rating denotes High Management Quiality.

AUDITORS

The Board of Directors, on recommendations of the Audit Committee, has proposed the re-appointment of M/s.
KPMG Taseer Hadi & Co, Chartered Accountants for the ensuing year ending December 31, 2022.

ACKNOWLEDGMENT
The Directors express their gratitude to the Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan (SECP) and Trustees of

Funds under its management for their valuable support, assistance, and guidance. The Board also thanks to the
employees of JSIL for their dedication and hard work and the shareholders for their confidence in the management.

On behalf of the Board
Iffat Zehra Mankani Hasan Shahid
Chief Executive Officer Director

February 23, 2022
Karachi

Annual Report 2021 |30 //JS investments

Managing Mutual Funds Better!



0l enefin o ) o
2021 piessd 310l daisea Sy g, A0 35 o1 57 g o) i

G2 ST 3 Bt e STLOSINEA S A L LI b i 2001 45 314
g/

sl 655

5 P B B bl A e QIS /"'{UJ";.?WU’{‘L&{ 2l Las G T 21995 ISIL
Sl A0k FEe (SECP)E| Q.JTJ*[C’{M /m@/“’u(&_wf”m}*‘;md“ KIS aley e 2 ZEREIT
_Jtes

..‘
[SRREE RSt

s A QU B P e 1 LT s o U G P2 S 500 S 2020
mz,/‘LuMgdh@d!_uff’%@/‘fwww@;J2021 = 2020 Ly)};(}“Gu;l.,@d)//uﬁquf‘LuL_&
3.94% 3,2 2021 S LUt E L 1) S EF Ky QM Sl 125 L e Bbanils/ P CF 7%
FE A F omd Josa S8 (ML St b $nSe§ Ll (nfor
el ol AL I 6L iy Sy (EFF V&K1 G Tnd I B 15%
FTUEIBANCPI e ft £ L 1Tt s 3t a1 (o st Qs A L F S St B Sz
2021 5 S ok e 5.7% Ut 2021 $s32 Uk s i e -8t 11.7% o e 7.3% o S 85251 852 e 351
T S Gy 2 2o K RS L L ((SBP )W LT e 51 - L 12.3% F
g 10.3%ui’u3Ja?_uui’é..L€»£)b"uf /Lg@/usu:ho.z/;zr_/!sgf /!uf' 13 ZJus2F (CAD )ols6erigies)
S Pk 975% o 7.0%.2ass s SBP oL L Ml (st 17652 LU 15994367 Jus s
FAob-c bt FUAEIL 5L st it %szu%ﬂf%ﬁusgd s S L Sz y LT
f.yz”gé’Jnyzgfgud/,ﬁj/,t&utJ;ﬂdﬂnu:;uﬁwtd/'Ka/z.";i{u,swuﬁaj,ﬁ&/g/ﬂééu,%uﬁiwuﬁé
Bl Sy IS ST S e AL Pl b 3l CAD AL UG B ety
BN NS Y PPN SRV R VAL 1) 11)

;J;J‘fuf@-‘..f)‘* g;-'..)é.‘

M SFES 32 e 25T g‘fﬁ{mu’:ﬁ’ ! j‘/.lﬁ{@}/jbz':C.’U"S.Z%/?/)b&w:’KSE-1 00F 20217
S L e 0ol I 22 3658y P2 LZFY 22 5L nls Sl U IMF g oS post s
LB T e ot idl 2001 B S L fE

Annual Report 2021 |31 //JS investments

Managing Mutual Funds Better!



AU L COVIDS ot U1 Ut 1T S £ Us e s S U b A G I 6 TE S U2 L Fle i 2021
S /e K Al G e PSSP S e JEE L ;,I?IL_J//JQLJL&:"/@/-@;C}/&ME}JQL{A/’;JJ L3S
_uj/mu:u“lu:fuﬁ}/uJ,/,’ai.ALu@:u/'ua,?,Jwgz’g

GG £SUH G Ut 2 Z 6% o 1.9% e (g SUb-bos g BIZ Il U 4/t £ 2021 2 & KSE-100
vt o

K S T Fonr ity Pl e ot f o B e fpmde oGt A A ol s F A P S
Z 58 1350 $ 5 sl 37% 4)&%JJL{JV¢J%6;ME16.9@‘/.L?LU%‘&12.3JL-':;.’}C/38/$JV@DM_Q(
2L U UBE ATE10D AP 1*245) b 5o G Aoz B 233 JUPG  2 L FLL 5
A

j-‘;ﬁfg;@é.f)‘-ﬂ@-ﬁ

Srobie wlibet it fie o FEEL L0 3 n S 372 (5BP) /L ST e iuimd CY21
e odUt T F AN AL S LIGAL Sy o 275 UATEJed L5 0F 9.75% Secs5?Li SBP =
~L ool Mg St bes LB e s L6 AL iy

3 STl 1 e & IS T Ut Aot tstgg % 20225 L o3 483 P 37 G 0Ll s1Fstiasl SBP
SEL e e S GBS U i (1L L L S e B e e QB iU S e B
1039% Jo% <Pl 7.29% a1 7.19% «7.14% ST KA G AL wu$ol 12290 6:3clnd 2021 Jrteb_ 503 b8

- 11.48% sl 11.32%

i 330 AMC

§19% (34185 B0l Y ug et 1126 (AUM \elbp I bip 30§ i i Sy o U1 2021 JLskedf
de 16269001 8151 19% AUM L A5 (g Ubeser™ 946 22020, 75) 26 (& ser 1793) 5L
LEFCL, /HjﬁaT;jﬁuu&)%uuﬁ 435005 (o 15%AUM£(5¢,£ u;fg 2 LG GA 26 5T 2l

s st A1 g 2 E U U U T G Ut 2 L 1@ Gt L1ALL COVID - 19 21 Lok
~B3IE 9.75% < 7% u:u%/u’fgéuufg_ﬂb@:,é%nug

/,lz?_u&.&%uﬁdﬁ;"//@(:%%fb Juut -LZ?L:/@,“E 126 5[4J’Lu‘jl&uﬁJ%u;{/?d/@u(jﬁfljayji;}o,&;uﬁwwz
ettt l ety

(S ) Sl plad (g5 e

S Ut 7 396 G SN Gl L2 ELs ot £ S S U sl = e QI UL LR
ng[L«.:,wu&LKJ&?%QD-A?%,!MMJ Kt Bl 1S ISIL Ut 2 nd e (6 s e 5
I EE 5, SIS Qs B3 S AN Setssin & 2 B ISIL G 2E it 21y 2 S g e
el e

Annual Report 2021 |32 //JS investments

Managing Mutual Funds Better!



$ 19 - U0 Lt 1 a1 Er ALt 21 JLGL (AUM kb L 0§ e o s
S S S UL A JFE KT ol e b Sundieaf et e o S o SENbL 2o Ke o
U S B S SO QIR E L I B1es e IS AMC P FLALL G T s Pl Fen et Sl
T, ’ij‘f.iu,&/féuufmg@J&/f'/fé%,iﬁ“&éf&gamy%uﬁ%&%’muL%":’_‘L S st 28yt
b UL e sl (AML ) " kU S el 1L b QS U UrP L Uk 6l oS 9654
kg (AMC ) Asdiantl 02 e b8 e b e UsBL 1 (KYC) Eedf ¥t ' (CFT) L L2
e Tek ot 25 FE 2 St L §in S S bir2 ) B s Pl U1 (CCD) ﬁgsJulfo,f9fJ)’ud/1;
—e &L G S350 22 306 81 ISIL et 31t 3 SHAL (AMC) st =
’}5‘9‘{;4;)‘-{

L PG S S B e e o SR AP Su i liest Lz, SIS INE £ 1= = COVID 1911
LIS L1351 bt g mai S AMC U9 Soskssdds vps 1 185w 8TE et $uTS A S F £ E
Sl & 13| 4.86)e 1300.08 5 2021 531Uk il (P73 UL L5 0.64 Do 1 39.80 L2020
Ko s, 288.74 2021 il T L 22.99 U 2020- 4 et B SFENI G (T
ey

AL easidods &G 3nsng 3uTS e net 5285 Utd 5L o not 33365 wbnLl s ulE SUL&5
L e = (SMAs_ 5K B I B QL L 15736 UL s 174,83
ré%ucjj‘2277 uf.LG'»L%ucj:& 23.8 W3 2021 5 31 (G375 %8s SMAs a}!k)élgi’l:‘"&’/’i)ﬁx»@"-élf

_SrdS a0 &

2020531 20217531 L .»u%ét:d/gugéédv
u'.f/%é:_u

1,774,986 1,504,448 &K1 s
174,834 157,362 ( SMAUSD) U285

4,096 465 (L) sk
154,716 (104,977) ST /() Sl
333,646 52,850 ST
(336,458) (331,829) =LA T
(2,811) (278,979) s BT
(20,181) (9,756) LS /T
(22,992) (288,735) Jgﬂfubﬁl
(16,808) (11,340) e
(39,801) (300,075) Jg}wuuﬁ

(0.64) (4.86) N ARk B

Annual Report 2021 ‘ 33 //JS investments

Managing Mutual Funds Better!



a2e 9,9 pliasd gala

AP - G s e s 6 e sl Uk oS s Sy e b S Ll e

Gblal S Jaitia
21eFL LA St —e U QeI CEEIS pk woE e nl £ Gl Sk g s e 2 Ut UG el
J:éJJ.)uQ’_%,,{%gL/uizglég;fuz+//J/ﬂ“¢de/K,,L/u:ﬂa‘ﬂ.}/g{%%r_u:u’«jt/ai_»tg
Oz LT e e U e GBS U g e & e bl S5 e e L UG H A Dtz sz S,

—Up e L2 § ez St U T s SR T 1AL L S L

G AN e 3hp S g St s 6L o il U 5B s e UG sk GRS sl 1 e S o el S
u:dl%ﬂﬁfbadﬂ/bgf/}jﬁ'églﬁf]@({u;z{dl./ul&)%’dl}'@ﬁjwlﬁaﬁuﬁu’é@&@i@ug&jg“&?f
Sk 8 I oSl o feciont £ & nh 6 R FL eIy Gree IS T G g o GBI 22
e 2 s =l 2 G UL S SE ISy bl S AP 21l et I GV E i Z g ST
e Gh AL G S LTt ene Q0T o od S PSP St o S L v o LT
S b Skt e it a1 L gy e S P s Iz b A e f 1
s S SIS U & e S D J1 sl e csde a1 L D1 e POLe i e Sy -
ETF;Q"(’“'"”/ Js (ETF)ﬁé/”Z:’;i{' BETA b likg (1% 2022 Lﬂ.%&ﬁd?a}&)da%divﬂué&{’U}J/U}UL’:’)?L‘?
_ugJL’;J?:%"u;'MlJfJufgﬁ%L‘/:’Zigﬂﬁ/?uﬁfd:ﬁumuVz:uﬁd’l/ﬁﬂ_lgc!/.ig

b lid £ A B a1 AUt &1t e sl g TS STIFS S S 2 1L o e f bk AU T aa
PG b s 1 S B 361, SIS e S AL § s G L0 S S B ST
4Junu3‘¢/tddﬁ”ﬂ¢mw,{%tﬂ K LUSEAL s ol Hlor = L5 2 KYC sIAML 4
LWZ/&,?MJ;?/?TJU{/'LgéﬁéUWJE;Lur'/j{&f/"ﬂ"%:%:}u@u&lbféc)ﬁéﬁ"%'félﬂfg_ﬂg:%’
o b= G eSSt b S i NG I U2 e s PP T e S S AL
— AL Sy

Silally pal My 3T olypa S caae K, 0,

WU FT ks 1S 84S JS cre UL BEANL ISIL &L e Sy e S e Ty 10 F ol b
(CPPI) odde sy 65 G ol -GV L b WO 16 e b 5L 10t e
2oz S 2AL A SN2 L8121 8 7 < 65 WP Thicf i SF s - S & IS b S5y
_g;/fv'.u”ffu’”cp:b JSIHFOF/}I(‘? JSIHFOF “Léé_u.uw‘m&QP%JJ’@,&/Q'%ua'_ﬂuﬁf'T_ffJ@“?JJL/
S f iz sz s $ S @IeFl 284 (1 WL 2017 wEIEE A Ty £ G 2021 Sss 19
2 FEG B SIS F s S LGS USACL) 234 s ABAMCO (3 dh = S U1eFL A
T AL G R Lk 23 )s ABAMCO F Bt Sl 2021 31l J1GL0EY 2021 w24 L SECP
e bl

Annual Report 2021 |34 //JS investments

Managing Mutual Funds Better!



Sy pad hﬁ"—‘u—p St g Guign o5 Eayyg0,187

NG AN HIR L IPP SIS (%

S SO muﬁﬂé&éux/ﬁuuyﬂ&,uwéw/?ﬂ&w;n}ﬁ}ﬁgr_.s/u@» S JsiLo s
EE NPl e e A8 ISIL .

— G UE Bl e L e ol UG BT b U S SUst G-

Kot S w1 F S Gaz Sy Ol F6 Ut T oo (RS 3 41y PP 6 P21t o Suans Bl e
e FE o Lol S 4

‘+$7J&uf,i&wuﬁr(utj,u+gﬁc/@¢£&v(wégw‘@um_&

— e i 5 FE G e S S KL ISIL =

e LnUE2019 N U ey KT U 2 e T DI S e e e H S5 eeg 6 —C
U e e AL AL UL 2

— LUEI A Sy Ut Ut Qb ST 2 sl Us= 2 g e U2

B G 20 U ST ISIL e b Wa 3L QI 5 6r e 3 2 ST 2SIt
A PGS srn S e 5 5 Thste o Sy 2 iy Bl s S\ W S Sy S B 2 S
L LB NN S b

e S UISILe ot AL 6 st s S s

-u’;uc/f‘ 7.16 4 2021 230 =SS b S Bt hrny &SI ISILS

Sdalas cb.a.._,#_,\f
e S el L
L5 R ot dusold_ts
ATHEE | s Iy
s R At
s AL ** bl bz
s R Ctunftn

Lo ALt SV IR PPN

}6’1552@? IJbeiz dog b K losse T
L5 MR e, g LIS 2 T o
& et
& SE
‘3,;.,, 50[‘/:%«6%
st S 2021 ) 4 1sdfuj/n_»U?.J?JJ%L}/@:"’_,C%L&:?J/&T%)@_@J&{&é»oﬂjw,,}f*
ce SISt 2021 Bl 18 2058 FL PR 6t HAL GRS biat s e
LA FES Bl tae 2021 =100 SUiles 43l 170 Lawex
Annual Report 2021 | 35 AN investments

Managing Mutual Funds Better!




01 CEO - L 415056 5L
05 I T
02 L3056 L™ 2215 HE 16/ o S 2

w%’é}@/jf '5..).)‘."

3OS AL S S Ul L e o & A5 3T s L

S e!

RS A4"]

ct

%

&l &L Ul bz
e e Qrn pimis o 77
&L L St
e o N Sy oS

Z:A?cﬂ/fb/te

@\
i

%’J!C/Wd/gizj(&pﬂ}{

\
1§

*JVshol

E
H -

s Elgs

2

Erb

_8nS FH e 2021 =1 008U 5 sl st
e FT AL 5 CEO UL ISIL B b a5 Los Tt clnsdl JLx

:ugdj;'&wdﬁuJ}{/"f/;u:uyugtut_anﬁw’ﬂuu,autgé‘jﬁﬁm’m sl Ju

S bynJ U b igs J U et
54 e Eosae Tt
e e LA
e e LB

Annual Report 2021 ‘ 36 //JS inveSfmenfS

Managing Mutual Funds Better!



odla] S el it rtios) Buol juu sty cpapss <]

L3S A S Pt eI (HR &R) Sl S s ST el b
byl =iyl ct

L L AW 2 o

g gy duvoidts

L Y Qmrpimitn @

wudla) 5 At diramise Ly M,C/
U0 Lazd/w///u/u*uruatunééwu’w6L£u‘~f¢/ﬁ,@wffﬂuw£w

A bumUle! eetlm Ul ct
6 &L duvgb iz
o o Qmr it ¥
&L &L 55(@’/%45?
2 2 *%‘/wvb
L Y L

W oS B St B S D} LEE bt g el Jt

RGOSR I

U Bl e EL OTPY Ly B A e e A T

crid ptiat G

I bl Gk 1L 2019 2N ey KT A b b2 sl L b
uygﬁﬂ/u(&vf_%@/uﬁ;lj;baéﬁ;wéJ»‘;“ii:fﬁuﬁuyugtﬁ}{ﬂj{fg)?!utu’{L;yuﬁL/ﬁféKﬁﬁ‘/ﬁ
U N F L CEO st 2020 - 21—t Bk el 227 FEL 2017 L Pl 2, CCG
B 30 Aol il QW d L

&la S

Uk iibs /G 18 S I gt 56l e 305, e 0 rbon S G 70 L 6 G
It L AL Lsu Gt SIS NE S U S 1 g b §E sz 2 S5 e sp 1L A
LS B b Lo a5 IS e b LG R

Annual Report 2021 | 37 AN investments

Managing Mutual Funds Better!



caagelapae S AG

TSt mut 7SI L_/L?J/éfzif@?ub@g,,u}{;uw,,g.;,,
ce 4 I 500 A5 C(f’vb

kP 500 L AT Iy (i P

_;,37'1/’-9 500 A5 btz

S AP 500 - Ul 8 sl it

-@g@;@%@i{tu@uu@as%&*’"’;wuﬁuﬁ

ul.\._fcb:aj.u

, “* fat 4

e e S G A 8856% e B e S22 T 35 o s
ce e (486) TGS ISIL L e

oS lalle g,
= &U’iu@;gf‘zu}’}?/?JlZ_J}’://’lfé(j.‘g;l%uuuﬁcflz;"(w‘] s AU sel

/.L £ & o L
Sadl,e b Gl QR
ez Uy sl LK 20217531 Gl bt QLobslEin AT A R SIL

wé‘ﬁjj‘;)‘;iﬁﬂam
ce Ut 31 2L B QesT UL 2021 531 P ot B

(38525 ) Adosaitin pilie

U6k g5 £ 2021 5L AT LT Lo 28874 S

G Aed b Eugy 0 S

AL etz AISL e oA, T L 6L e 3L Plomsle (o 2 LB folsL
S8 ISIL -t STt U e QU S b b Gl (Pt e Wo St U 2
LS e ) G i i 2o Ut S men 9 sl e ol ety U Jr\AIE B RU AL
‘f‘/ﬂ JS :/?5;»&5;1;7(4'9%&@;%&&6.@ }L.agCL/,ru%u:,u:;/ugmfuzwz_/l;ydwt{.guu,wg Y
el 12 I P S Aobs KA Ut ek r n S L gl o

Annual Report 2021 |38 //JS investments

Managing Mutual Funds Better!



uiw’éJ;mj%é-g@g/uy}%&& /“yfl//?i/d};ﬁ;gﬁé;ﬁ;ﬁ‘g‘vw%}%d@z S L
S UL it T e Pt gt T s g S TS L2t B S g (1 des
N Y-

AMalea Al
e JEUA e UL oKk B U L S iml Ju Gyl
_‘Lufaﬁuté_mmtgﬁmd/,z}&( JISL-—

Ky, e 5 e g
PEAL et rstabler B2 S Gie ) amzr Sl A iz L (PacrA s FIE S
ce QS FIL o B

3
S Fuhnd EJedini Y 2002,4531 S0 SIS 2EE AL S fp DS ATl 55T
27

A gl
sl s SIS AIL 328081 15 i SECPY T, ST B e sy Bl s inbons 3 22125005
e I A P B S ISIL g sl P 2 ST Sl

= SAi

-Vl &&»oﬁjaﬁf
s ATEL
2022 $1/f 23: 410

Annual Report 2021 |39 //JS investments

Managing Mutual Funds Better!



FINANCIAL AND BUSINESS HIGHLIGHTS

2021 2020 2019 2018 2017 2016
KEY INDICATORS
Performance
Return on assets % (13.99) (1.64) (3.47) 1.66 1.14 7.06
Assets turnover 0.02 0.14 0.13 0.15 0.12 0.16
Receivables turnover Days 24.55 28.65 35.21 31.72 27.00 37.49
Return on equity % (18.30) (2.22) (4.57) 2.02 1.36 8.53
Leverage
Debt:Equity 0.16 0.19 0.15 0.02 - -
Liquidity
Current 9.72 11.16 10.96 7.56 9.28 11.72
Valuation
Earnings per shares Rs. (4.86) (0.64) (1.40) 0.52 0.40 2.49
Breakup value per share Rs. 24.36 28.74 29.38 24.66 26.97 32.10
Price earning ratio times - - - 15.37 23.39 6.22
Market price to break up value times 0.51 0.81 0.55 0.32 0.35 0.48
Market value per share - year end Rs. 12.50 23.25 16.21 8.00 9.40 15.50
Market value per share - High Rs. 23.60 25.50 18.50 11.50 17.50 17.49
Market value per share - Low Rs. 12.00 9.86 6.31 7.65 9.95 13.51
Market capitalization (Rs. in Million) 772.18 1,436.25 1,001.36 641.37 753.62 1,242.66
Historical trends
Management fee (Rs. in Million) 154.83 172.97 198.77 195.07 198.37 155.35
Operating (loss)/profit (Rs. in Million) (278.98) (2.81) (91.94) 17.18 35.58 181.89
(Loss)/Profit before tax (Rs. in million) (288.74) (22.99) (59.00) 57.01 67.50 209.80
(Loss)/Profit after tax (Rs. in million) (300.08) (39.80) (86.65) 41.73 32.22 199.70
Assets under management (Rs. in million) 22,773.21 26,007.37 25,130.95 20,847.76 14,453.00 13,521.00
No. of funds under management 15 17 16 14 14 12
Share capital (Rs. in million) 617.74 617.74 617.74 801.72 801.72 801.72
Shareholders equity (Rs. in million) 1,504.45 1,774.99 1,814.79 1,976.79  2,161.94  2,573.74
Total assets (Rs. in million) 1,984.86 2,305.29 2,562.03 2,435.73 2,599.12 3,074.01
Contribution to the national exchequer (Rs. in million) 45.88 62.38 48.13 51.31 30.58 29.01
Payouts
Cash dividend % - - 4 - 0.50 5
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KPMG Taseer Hadi & Co.
Chartered Accountants

Sheikh Sultan Trust Building No. 2, Beaumont Road
Karachi 75530 Pakistan
+92 (21) 35685847, Fax +92 (21) 35685095

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REVIEW REPORT

To the Members of JS Investments Limited

Review Report on the Statement of Compliance contained in Listed Companies (Code of
Corporate Governance) Regulations, 2019

We have reviewed the enclosed Statement of Compliance with the Listed Companies (Code of
Corporate Governance) Regulations, 2019 (the Regulations) prepared by the Board of Directors
of JS Investments Limited (“the Company”) for the year ended 31 December 2021 in
accordance with the requirements of regulation 36 of the Regulations.

The responsibility for compliance with the Regulations is that of the Board of Directors of the
Company. Our responsibility is to review whether the Statement of Compliance reflects the
status of the Company's compliance with the provisions of the Regulations and report if it does
not and to highlight any non-compliance with the requirements of the Regulations. A review is
limited primarily to inquiries of the Company's personnel and review of various documents
prepared by the Company to comply with the Regulations.

As a part of our audit of the financial statements we are required to obtain an understanding of
the accounting and internal control systems sufficient to plan the audit and develop an effective
audit approach. We are not required to consider whether the Board of Directors’ statement on
internal control covers all risks and controls or to form an opinion on the effectiveness of such
internal controls, the Company's corporate governance procedures and risks.

The Regulations require the Company to place before the Audit Committee, and upon
recommendation of the Audit Committee, place before the Board of Directors for their review
and approval, its related party transactions. We are only required and have ensured compliance
of this requirement to the extent of the approval of the related party transactions by the Board
of Directors upon recommendation of the Audit Committee. We have not carried out
procedures to assess and determine the Company's process for identification of related parties
and that whether the related party transactions were undertaken at arm'’s length price or not.

Based on our review, nothing has come to our attention which causes us to believe that the
Statement of Compliance does not appropriately reflect the Company's compliance, in all
material respects, with the requirements contained in the Regulations as applicable to the
Company for the year ended 31 December 2021.

Date: 16 March 2022 KPMG Taseer Hadi & Co
Chartered Accountants
Karachi
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STATEMENT OF COMPLIANCE WITH LISTED COMPANIES
(CODE OF CORPORATE GOVERNANCE) REGULATIONS, 2019
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2021

This statement is being presented to comply with the Listed Companies (Code of Corporate Governance) Regulations,
2019 (the Regulation). The purpose of the Code is to establish a framework of good governance, whereby a listed
entity is managed in compliance with the best practices of corporate governance. The company has complied with
the requirements of the regulations in the following manner:

1.

The total number of directors are 8 as per the following:

1) Male: 6
2) Female: 2

The composition of the Board is as follows:

Category

Names

Independent Directors Female

Ms. Aisha Fariel Salahuddin

Male

Mr. Asif Reza Sana

Executive Director

Ms. Iffat Zehra Mankani- Chief Executive Officer*

Non-Executive Directors

Mr. Suleman Lalani - Chairman
Mr. Hasan Shahid

Mr. Imran Haleem Shaikh

Mr. Mirza M. Sadeed H. Barlas***
Mr. Zahid Ullah Khan**

¥ Mes. Iffat Zehra Mankani appointed as Chief Executive Officer w.e.f April 15,2021 in place of Mr. Hasnian Raza Nensey.
** Mr. Zahid Ullah Khan appointed as Director w.e.f March 18, 2021 in place of Mr. Kamran Jafar.
*** Mr. Mirza M. Sadeed H. Barlas appointed as Director w.e.f August 09, 2021 in place of Mr. Tahir Ali Sheikh.

The independent directors meet the criteria of independence as defined under section 166 of the Companies Act,
2017 (Act).

3.

The directors have confirmed that none of them is serving as a director on more than seven listed companies,

including this Company.

The company has prepared a code of conduct and has ensured that appropriate steps have been taken to
disseminate it throughout the company along with its supporting policies and procedures.

The board has developed a vision/mission statement, overall corporate strategy and significant policies of the
company. A complete record of particulars of the significant policies along with the date on which they were
approved or amended has been maintained.

All the powers of the board have been duly exercised and decisions on relevant matters have been taken by the
board/ shareholders as empowered by the relevant provisions of the Act and these Regulations.

The meetings of the board were presided over by the Chairman and, in his absence, by a director elected by the
board for this purpose. The board has complied with the requirements of Act and the Regulations with respect
to frequency, recording and circulating minutes of meeting of the board.
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10.

11.

12.

13.

14.

15.

The board has a formal policy and transparent procedures for remuneration of directors in accordance with
the Act and these Regulations.

Out of eight directors on the board seven are certified under the Directors Training Program (DTP). During
the period the following CEO/ Director completed Directors’ Training Program:

. Ms. Iffat Zehra Mankani
. Mr. Zahid Ullah Khan

The board has approved appointment of chief financial officer, company secretary and head of internal
audit, including their remuneration and terms and conditions of employment and complied with relevant

requirements of the Regulations;

The financial statements of the Company were duly endorsed by chief executive officer and chief financial
officer before approval of the board.

The board has formed committees comprising of members given below:

Committees Members
Mr. Asif Reza Sana (Chairman)
Audit Committee Ms. Aisha Fariel Salahuddin

Mr. Hasan Shahid

Ms. Aisha Fariel Salahuddin (Chairperson)
Ms. Iffat Zehra Mankani

Mr. Suleman Lalani

Mr. Suleman Lalani (Chairman)

Ms. Iffat Zehra Mankani

Mr. Imran Haleem Shaikh

Human Resource and
Remuneration Committee

Executive Risk Management
Committee

The terms of reference of the aforesaid committees have been formed, documented and advised to the
committee for compliance.

The frequency of meetings of the committees is as follows:

a) Audit Committee; four meetings of the committee were held during the year.
b) Human Resource and Remuneration Committee; one meeting of the committee was held during the year.
C) Executive Risk Management Committee; five meetings of the committee were held during the year.

The board has outsourced the internal audit function to BDO Ebrahim & Company, Chartered Accountants
who are considered suitably qualified and experienced for the purpose and are conversant with the policies
and procedure of the company.
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16.  The statutory auditors of the company have confirmed that they have been given a satisfactory rating under
the Quality Control Review program of the ICAP and registered with Audit Oversight Board of Pakistan, that
they or any of the partners of the firm, their spouses and minor children do not hold shares of the Company
and that the firm and all its partners are in compliance with International Federation of Accountants (IFAC)
guidelines on Code of Ethics as adopted by the ICAP and that they and the partners of the firm involved in
the audit are not a close relative (spouse, parent, dependent and non-dependent children) of the chief executive
officer, chief financial officer, head of internal auditor, company secretary or director of the company.

17.  The statutory auditors or the persons associated with them have not been appointed to provide other
services except in accordance with the Act, these Regulations or any other regulatory requirement and the
auditors have confirmed that they have observed IFAC guidelines in this regard.

18. We confirm that all requirements of mandatory regulations 3, 6, 7, 8, 27, 32, 33 and 36 of the Regulations
have been complied with; and

Please note non mandatory regulation no.5 of the Regulations was not applicable this year. In addition the
Company is maintaining record of significant policies as required under non mandatory regulation no.10 (4) of the
regulations.

19.  The two elected independent directors have requisite competencies, skills, knowledge and experience to
discharge and execute their duties competently, as per applicable laws and regulations under which hereby
fulfilled the necessary requirements; not warrant the appointment of a third independent director.

Iffat Zehra Mankani Hasan Shahid
Chief Executive Officer Director

February 23, 2022
Karachi.
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AUDIT COMMITTEE AND ITS TERMS OF REFERENCE

The board of directors of JS Investments Limited has established an Audit Committee, comprising three
non-executive directors.

The Audit Committee meets at least once every quarter of the financial year. During the year under review four
meetings of the Committee were held which were attended by the members as follows:

Mr. Asif Reza Sana (Chairman).........eeeeeeeeeeeenee. 3
Mr. Hasan Shahid (Member)......eeeeeeeeennns 4
Ms. Aisha Fariel Salahuddin (Member).................. 4

The Audit Committee shall, inter alia, recommend to the Board of Directors the appointment of external auditors,
their removal, audit fees, the provision by the external auditors of any service to the listed company in addition to
audit of its financial statements. The Board of Directors shall give due consideration to the recommendations of the
Audit Committee in all these matters and where it acts otherwise; it shall record the reasons thereof.

The terms of reference of the Audit Committee shall also include the following:

The board of directors of every listed company shall determine the terms of reference of the audit committee. The
board of directors shall provide adequate resources and authority to enable the audit committee to carry out its
responsibilities effectively. The terms of reference of the audit committee shall be explicitly documented and shall
also include the following:

a) Determination of appropriate measures to safeguard the listed company’s assets;

b) Review of quarterly, half-yearly and annual financial statements of the listed company, prior to their approval
by the Board of Directors, focusing on:

i)  Major judgmental areas;

ii) Significant adjustments resulting from the audit;

iii) Going concern assumption;

iv) Any changes in accounting policies and practices;

v) Compliance with applicable accounting standards;

vi) Compliance with listing regulations and other statutory and regulatory requirements; and

vii) Significant related party transactions.

c) Review of preliminary announcements of results prior to publication;

d) Facilitating the external audit and discussion with external auditors of major observations arising from interim
and final audits and any matter that the auditors may wish to highlight (in the absence of management,
where necessary);

e) Review of management letter issued by external auditors and management’s response thereto;

f)  Ensuring coordination between the internal and external auditors of the listed company;

g) Review of the scope and extent of internal audit, audit plan, reporting framework and procedures and
ensuring that the internal audit function has adequate resources and is appropriately placed within the
listed company;

h) Consideration of major findings of internal investigations of activities characterized by fraud, corruption and
abuse of power and management's response thereto;

~—~ o~ o~ o~ o~ —~
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Ascertaining that the internal control systems including financial and operational controls, accounting
systems for timely and appropriate recording of purchases and sales, receipts and payments, assets and
liabilities and the reporting structure are adequate and effective;

Review of the listed company’s statement on internal control systems prior to endorsement by the board of
directors and internal audit reports;

Instituting special projects, value for money studies or other investigations on any matter specified by the
board of directors, in consultation with the Chief Executive Officer and to consider remittance of any matter
to the external auditors or to any other external body;

Determination of compliance with relevant statutory requirements;

Monitoring compliance with the regulations and identification of significant violations thereof;
Review of arrangement for staff and management to report to audit committee in confidence, concerns, if
any, about actual or potential improprieties in financial and other matters and recommend instituting
remedial and mitigating measures;

Recommend to the board of directors the appointment of external auditors, their removal, audit fees, the
provision of any service permissible to be rendered to the listed company by the external auditors in
addition to audit of its financial statements. The board of directors shall give due consideration to the
recommendations of the audit committee and where it acts otherwise and shall record the reasons thereof.
Consideration of any other issue or matter as may be assigned by the board of directors.
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DIRECTORS ORIENTATION

Every new member of the Board upon induction apprised about business operations, strategy, goals organizational / group
structure, subsidiaries, associates and other related parties, Company’s visions etc. In addition, to the training programs offered
to the Directors for enhancement of their skills. On every quarterly board meeting, management also acquaints the board about
new laws introduced during the period as well as amendments in the existing laws and accounting standards.

DIRECTORS TRAINING PROGRAM

Following Director & CEO have duly completed the Directors' Training Program during the year:

Ms. Iffat Zehra Mankani
Mr. Zahid Ullah Khan

DIRECTORS REMUNERATION POLICY

Preamble
This policy has been developed pursuant to the provisions of the Listed Companies (Code of Corporate Governance)
Regulations (hereinafter referred to as the "Regulations”). The Regulations bear the heading “Formal Policy”
which is reproduced herein below:

The board of directors shall have in place a formal policy and transparent procedure for fixing the remuneration
packages of individual directors for attending meetings of the board and its committees.

In respect of Directors' Remuneration, The Articles of the Company states that;

"The remuneration of directors for attending meetings of the Board shall from time to time be determined by the
directors in their meeting, provided that neither the Chief Executive Officer nor any director in whole time remunerated
service with the Company shall be entitled to any payment for attending meetings of the Board. A Director may
also be paid all travelling, hotel and other expenses properly incurred by him in attending and returning from the
meetings of the Directors or any Committee of the Directors or General Meeting of the Company or in connection
with the business of the company”

Guiding Factors

1. The remuneration of Directors including the Chairman, Chief Executive Officer, Executive Directors, Non-Executive
and Independent Directors will be fixed by the Board.

2. Theremuneration to be paid to any director for attending the meetings of the board or a committee of directors shall
not exceed the scale approved by the company or the board, as the case may be, in accordance with the provisions
of the Articles or as may from time to time be permissible by Law.

3. Neither the Chief Executive nor any director in whole time remunerated service with the Company shall be entitled
to any payment for attending meetings of the Board and/or sub-committees.
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4. A Director shall be entitled to be paid reasonable travelling expenses, hotel charges and other expenses incurred by
him for attending Board, Sub-Committee and General Meetings.

5. If any Director is called upon to perform extra services within or outside Pakistan for any of the purposes of the
Company or in giving special attention to the business of the Company as a member of a Committee, the Company
may remunerate the Director either by a fixed sum or by a percentage of profits or otherwise as may be determined
by the Directors, and such remuneration may be either in addition to or in substitution for his or their share in the
remuneration above provided for the Directors.

CHAIRMAN OF THE BOARD
The Chairman of the Board of Directors may be entitled to such extra remuneration as the Board of Directors may
determine.

CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

The remuneration of Chief Executive Officer shall be governed by the terms and conditions of her contract of employment
as approved by the Board keeping in view of his qualifications, expertise, effectiveness etc. The annual increases and
performance bonuses, if any, will be determined by the Board from time to time in line with the contract of employment.

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

The remuneration of Executive Directors shall be fixed by the Board keeping in view of their qualifications, expertise,
effectiveness and the time given to the Company. The remuneration may include but not limited to salary, transport,
medical, telephone, medical insurance for self and spouse, club and/or other memberships and other privileges and
benefits incidental or relating to their office in accordance with Company's policies.

The annual increases will be determined by the Board, in consultation with Human Resource and Remuneration
Committee with effect from January 1° every year. He may also be entitled to annual performance bonus as determined
by the Board. The Board as it may deem fit consult the Human Resource & Remuneration Committee in fixing the
increases.

NON- EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS AND INDEPENDENT DIRECTORS

The remuneration of Non- Executive Directors for attending the meetings of Board and its Sub-Committees shall be fixed
by the Board from time to time. Similarly, the remuneration of Non-Executive Directors for the extra services performed
shall be fixed by the Board from time to time as and when they perform extra services
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POLICY ON RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Every director (including spouse, children, step children and parents) of the JSIL who is in any way, whether directly or
indirectly, concerned or interested in any contract or arrangement entered into, or to be entered into, by or on behalf of the
JSIL shall disclose the nature of his concern or interest at a meeting of the board. No director of the JSIL shall take any part
in the discussion of, or vote on, any contract or arrangement entered into, or to be entered into, by or on behalf of the JSIL.
If he/ she is in any way, whether directly or indirectly, concerned or interested in the contract or arrangement.

DEFINITIONS

“Applicable Laws” means all applicable laws, statutes, ordinances, rules, and regulations, applicable to the Company in the
context of Related Party Transactions, whether or not having the force of law, and including all official directives,
consents, approvals, authorizations, guidelines, orders and policies of any authority having or purporting to have authority
over the Company and all general principles of common law and equity, including but not limited to Companies Act, 2017,
COCG and NBFC Laws, and rules and regulations issued thereunder.

“Board” means the Board of the Company.

“COCG" means the Code of Corporate Governance for Listed Companies issued by the Commission as amended from time to time.
“Commission” means the Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan.

“Committee” means the Audit Committee of the Board.

“Company” means JS Investment Company Limited.

“NBFC Laws” means NBFC (Establishment and Regulation) Rules, 2003 and Non-Banking Finance Companies and Notified
Entities Regulations, 2008 as amended from time to time.

“Policy” means this Policy for the regulation of Related Party Transactions.

“Related Party” means a Related Party as defined under the Applicable Laws.

“Related Party Transaction” means a transaction between the Company and a Related Party with respect to a subject matter
provided under Applicable Laws, provided that transactions executed between the funds, under the management of the
Company, and/ or transactions executed between funds and the Company or any of its associated or group companies shall
also be deemed to be a Related Party Transaction.

PREAMBLE

The Policy has been developed to ensure compliance with the Applicable Laws in relation to Related Party Transactions. In
the event of any inconsistency between the provisions of this Policy and any Applicable Laws, existing or new laws or
directives applicable to the Company, the latter shall take precedence over this Policy. Management of JSIL will ensure that
all applicable laws / regulations / requirements are complied with in letter and spirit for undertaking Related Party
Transactions.

PURPOSE

This Policy is intended to ensure the approval and reporting of Related Party Transactions between the Company and a
Related Party in accordance with Applicable Laws.

EFFECTIVE DATE

This Policy shall be deemed to be effective from the date of its approval by the Board and shall continue to remain in force
until amended or rescinded by the Board.
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APPROVALS FOR RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

1. The Company may enter into Related Party Transactions in its ordinary course of business on an arm’s length basis
without the prior approval of the Board.

2. The details of all Related Party Transactions other than clause (1) above, shall be placed before the Committee for
review and upon recommendations of the Committee, the same shall be placed before the Board for its approval.

3. If the Committee determines not to recommend a Related Party Transaction to the Board, the Committee, as it

deems appropriate, may direct additional actions including, but not limited to, immediate discontinuation or
rescission of the transaction.

4, In case of a Related Party Transaction which is not on an arm’s length basis, necessary justification shall be placed
before the Committee and the Board explaining why the transaction is proposed to be executed other than on
an arm’s length basis.

5. If a Related Party Transaction requires approvals or clearance from the Committee/Board in terms of clause (2)
above, the same shall be obtained before the execution of such transaction provided that the Board may, at its
discretion, modify or waive any provisions/requirements of this Policy.

6. Where appropriate, the following factors amongst others should be evaluated and presented by the Management
to the Committee/ Board, for approval of a Related Party Transaction:

a) the Company'sinterest, benefit and purpose of the transaction;
b) whether the anticipated transaction falls under the normal course of Company’s business;

(c) isthere any Related Party’s interest in the transaction,
( whether the terms and conditions are on an arm’s length basis;
(e) conflicts of interest in the proposed transaction, if any;
(f)  whether the transaction is proposed to be executed at a group level;
(g) whether parties other than a Related Party is also participating in the proposed transaction;
(h)  whether the proposed transaction includes any potential reputational risk issues that may arise as a result of orin
connection with such proposed transaction.
7. If the Board or the Committee requires further clarification before approving or recommending a Related Party
Transaction, as the case may be, it may direct the management to submit such information or take such actions
as it deems necessary.

e

CONFLICT OF INTEREST

8. Any Board member who has any interest in a Related Party Transaction shall restrain from participating and voting
on the approval of such transaction at the Committee/Board level.
9. If majority of Board members are interested in any Related Party Transaction, the matter shall be placed before

the general meeting for approval through a special resolution.
RECORD RETENTION AND DISCLOSURES

10. The Company shall maintain a detailed record of all Related Party Transactions (including those covered under
clause (1) above) entered into in each financial year, along with all relevant documents and information in the
manner as may be prescribed under the Applicable Laws.

11 All Related Party Transactions shall be disclosed in the Director’s Report / Annual Report as per the disclosure
requirement(s) set forth in the Applicable Laws and accounting standards.
12. The particulars of all the Related Party Transaction entered into with the approval of the Board of Directors shall

be entered into the Register of Contracts or Arrangements in which Directors are interested, maintained by the
Company as per the provisions of the Companies Act, 2017.

RATIFICATION

13. Any Related Party Transaction entered into by a director or employee of the Company, without following the
procedures laid out in this Policy, may be ratified by the Board or shareholders in a general meeting, as the case
may be, within ninety (90) days from the date such transaction is executed or such other period as may be
prescribed under Applicable Laws. If the transaction is not ratified, as above, it may be voidable at the discretion
of the Board.
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ROLE OF CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

The Code of Corporate Governance (“Code”) requires that the Chairman and the Chief Executive Officer
(“CEO"), by whatever name called, shall not be the same person except where provided for under any
other law. Further, the Chairman shall be elected from among the non-executive directors of the listed
company. The Code also requires that the Board of Directors of a listed company shall clearly define the
respective roles and responsibilities of the Chairman and CEO.

Accordingly, the following description set out clear division between the roles and responsibilities of
the Chairman and CEO.

ROLE AND RESPONSIBILITY OF CHAIRMAN OF BOARD

The Chairman shall be responsible for leadership of the board and shall ensure that the board plays an
effective role in fulfilling all its responsibilities. In particular, he shall:

1. Ensure effective functioning of the Board and committees of the Board in accordance
with the highest standards of corporate governance;

2. Ensure effective communication with shareholders and other stakeholders of the Company to
understand their views.

3. Ensure that such an agenda for the Company is set which primarily focus on strategy,
performance, value creation and accountability, and ensure that issues relevant to those areas
are regularly considered by the Board.

4. Ensure that the Board discussions promote constructive debate and effective decision-making.

5. Ensure that the Board determines the nature and extent of the significant risks to the Company
and that the Board reviews regularly the effectiveness of risk management and internal control
systems.

6. Ensure that adequate time is allowed for discussion of all agenda items and to ensure that
complex or contentious issues are dealt with effectively, making sure in particular that non-
executive directors have sufficient time to consider them.

7. Ensure that the Board members receive accurate, timely and clear information relating to
agenda items and, in particular, about the company’s performance.

8. Ensure that the Board delegate appropriate authority to the management.

9. Ensure that all Board committees as required under the Code are properly established,
composed and effectively operated.
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10. Ensure to build an effective Board, its composition and balance, diversity, including gender, and
succession planning for the Board and the appointment of senior executives.

11. Liaise with the Human Resource & Remuneration Committee regarding remuneration of the
executive directors and senior executives.

12. Ensure that the chairman of the Board Committees properly brief the Board regarding
proceedings of their Committees.

13. Ensure proper disclosure in the annual report as required under the Code of Corporate
Governance;

14. Ensure that the directors continually update their skills and the knowledge and familiarity with
the company to fulfill their role both on Board and Board Committees including in terms of the
code of corporate governance.

15. Communicate with the Chief Executive Officer whenever need be.

16. Ensure that the performance and effectiveness of the Board, its committees and individual
directors is formally evaluated on an annual basis.

17. Establish a harmonious and open relationship with all executive directors and Chief Executive
in particular providing advice and support while respecting the executive responsibilities.

18. Ensure that conflict of interest issues are adequately addressed at Board level.
ROLE AND RESPONSIBILITY OF THE CEO

The Chief Executive Officer shall be responsible for the leadership of business and subject to the control and
direction of and the authorities delegated to him/her by the Board of Directors, be responsible for the
management of affairs of the company. In particular, he/she shall:

1. Develop strategy for the Company for Board approval and ensure that approved corporate
strategy is duly reflected in the business.

2. Inconjunction with the Chief Financial Officer, develop an annual budget and the cash flow plan
consistent with approved corporate strategies, for presentation to the Board for approval. This
should include developing processes and structures to ensure that capital investment proposals
are reviewed thoroughly, that associated risks are identified and appropriate steps are taken to
manage the risk to the business.
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10.

11.

12.

13.

14.

15.

Be responsible to the Board for the performance of the Business consistent with approved
business plans, corporate strategies and policies and keep the Board as a whole update on
progress made against such approved plans, corporate strategies and policies.

Plan human resourcing to ensure that the company has the capabilities and resources required
to achieve its plans and ensure that robust management succession and management

development plans are in place and presented to the Board from time to time.

Develop an organizational structure and establish processes and systems to ensure the efficient
organization of resources.

Ensure that financial results, business strategies where appropriate, targets and milestones are
placed before the Board.

Develop and promote effective communication with shareholders and other stakeholders.

Ensure that business is conducted in accordance with the highest standards of corporate
governance.

Ensure that the flow of information to the Board is accurate, timely and clear.

Establish a close relationship of trust with the Chairman, reporting key developments to him in
timely manner and seeking advice and support as appropriate.

Ensure that the reporting lines within the Company are clearly established and are effective.

Ensure that proper procedures are in place to ensure compliance with all applicable laws, rules
and regulations.

Ensure an effective framework of internal controls including risk management in relation to all
business activities.

Ensure that the company has a suitable system and policy for the timely and accurate disclosure
of information in accordance with regulatory requirements.

Ensure that conflict of interest issues are adequately addressed at management level.
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CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY

As a responsible corporate entity, JS Investments Limited (JSIL) strives to support Corporate Social Responsibility
(CSR) initiatives that support economic growth, social progress and environmental protection in Pakistan.

JSIL carries out major philanthropic activities in partnership with the Mahvash & Jahangir Siddiqui Foundation
(MJSF) and Future Trust. A fundraising campaign was initiated in collaboration with ‘Future Trust’ to support
research for Covid-19 testing kits in which the employees of JSIL voluntarily contributed their one-day gross salary.
Future Trust is actively engaged in the areas of education, health care, improvement of socio-economic conditions,
and humanitarian relief. We are continuously looking at options to become environmentally friendly with efforts
such as reducing paper by switching to electronic forms and methods especially in the area of customer statements
and marketing collateral.

MAHVASH & JAHANGIR SIDDIQUI FOUNDATION

In 2003, entrepreneur and former Karachi Stock Exchange President, Jahangir Siddiqui with his wife Mahvash,
retired university professor, founded the Mahvash & Jahangir Siddiqui Foundation (MJSF).

The foundation aims to create sustainable livelihood opportunities and provide support to empower disadvantaged
members of society. In addition to projects directly managed by MJSF, partnerships have also been formed with key
international organizations including United Nations agencies, Acumen and Oxfam.

Following is an overview of MJSF's activities:

Education

The population of Pakistan is continually growing with over half the total population stated to be below the age of
25 years. These individuals have tremendous potential and the importance of education and vocational training for

them cannot be understated. MJSF realizes that to ensure a bright future for the nation's children; creative ideas
and a desire to make a difference can go a long way. MJSF's educational programs focus on providing grants for:

. Higher education

. Mainstream education including schools for children with special needs
. Vocational training

. Specialized summer exchange programs

MJSF has provided support to leading educational institutions of Pakistan including Lahore University of Management
Sciences, Karachi School for Business and Leadership, Institute of Business Administration Karachi, Progressive
Education Network, JS Academy for the Deaf, Fakhr-e-Imdad Foundation and Karigar Training Institute along with
having created a unique redeemable endowment fund for Sukkur Institute of Business Administration.

Healthcare
MJSF believes it is the fundamental right of every human being to receive adequate and affordable healthcare.

Knowing how simple solutions can be effective for both prevention and treatment, MJSF supports provision of free
healthcare to the underprivileged. This deep commitment to public health is reflected by:

. Upgrading and adding specialist wards at existing hospitals

. Developing healthcare facilities in rural areas

. Providing mobile health care and surgical services in difficult to access areas
. Distribution of specialized wheelchairs
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MJSF is linked with numerous projects and organizations in the healthcare sector including Karachi National Hospital,
National Institute of Cardiovascular Diseases, Sindh Institute of Urology and Transplantation, Indus Hospital,
National Institute of Child Health and Walkabout Foundation.

MJSF initiated medical and eye camp programs in response to the critical healthcare needs of the rural population
who are deprived of basic healthcare services.

In 2017, over 18,000 patients were examined in these camps and almost 4,000 cataract surgeries were performed.
In addition, 9,500 patients were screened for Hepatitis B and C.

Social Enterprise & Sustainable Development (Sesd)

Social enterprise aims to provide services at affordable prices to low-income earners so that they may build their
own assets and improve their standard of living. The SESD program funds projects that are economically productive
and sustainable and which remove or reduce the need for ongoing grants. MJSF is linked with numerous initiatives
to help improve the lives of its fellow citizens by supporting organizations like Kashf Microfinance, Acumen Pakistan
and its Fellows program, First Response Initiative of Pakistan, along with providing Iftaar for underprivileged and
supporting the Magnus Kahl Seeds project to help improve the average yield of crops in the country.

Humanitarian Relief

Pakistan's geographical location and topography make it highly susceptible to natural disasters such as monsoon
flooding, landslides, droughts and earthquakes. MJSF has a strategy whereby funding is made available for disaster
relief enabling timely action. In addition, it continues support for disaster victims in the aftermath of catastrophes
so that they may rebuild their lives as effectively as possible. The Foundation has contributed with significant
humanitarian assistance during the following crises:

2005 - Earthquake in Azad Jammu & Kashmir(AJK) and Khyber-Pakhtunkhwa Province

2008 - Swat Conflict and related Internally Displaced Persons crisis

2010 - Super Floods

2014 - Thar Drought crisis

2015 - Earthquake in Khyber Pakhtunkhwa and Gilgit-Baltistan provinces
FUTURE TRUST (FT)
The following is an overview of philanthropic activities of Future Trust:
Education
FT has provided financial support to the following organizations: Allama Ghulam Mustafa Qasmi Chair, University of
Sindh, Jamshoro for promoting educational and scholarly activities. It also supported Cadet College Hasan Abdal for
the construction of a Services Block and in the establishment of the "Jahangir Siddiqui Career Counseling Center".

Healthcare

Future Trust provides financial support to individuals suffering from cancer and other such terminal diseases.
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Improvement of Socio-economic Conditions

Future Trust supported "The i-Care Foundation" in its mission to improve the quality of life of underprivileged Paki-
stanis, by enhancing the level of philanthropic support to deserving charities. FT also works with them to improve
their capacity to deliver more, with greater impact.

FT in collaboration with MJSF has started the installation of deep well hand pumps in Tharparkar as it is a desert area with
the lowest Human Development index in Pakistan. The major source of income of a majority of the Thar villagers remains
rain-fed agriculture and livestock which is vulnerable to seasonal rains. These hand pumps will bring relief to those villages.

Women Empowerment
JSIL has supported the Pakistan Federation of Business and Professional Women's Organization (PFBPWO). PFBPWO's

principle objectives include organizing women in all parts of country to use their combined abilities and strength to
encourage women to acquire education in all fields.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
REPORT ON THE AUDIT OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Opinion

We have audited the annexed financial statements of JS Investments Limited (“the Company”), which comprise
the statement of financial position as at 31 December 2021, and the statement of profit or loss account, the state-
ment of comprehensive income, the statement of changes in equity, the statement of cash flows for the year then
ended, and notes to the financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies and other
explanatory information, and we state that we have obtained all the information and explanations which, to the
best of our knowledge and belief, were necessary for the purposes of the audit.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the statement of
financial position, the statement of profit or loss account, the statement of comprehensive income, the statement
of changes in equity and the statement of cash flows together with the notes forming part thereof conform with
the accounting and reporting standards as applicable in Pakistan and give the information required by the Com-
panies Act, 2017 (XIX of 2017), in the manner so required and respectively give a true and fair view of the state of
the Company's affairs as at 31 December 2021 and of the loss, other comprehensive loss, the changes in equity and
its cash flows for the year then ended.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (ISAs) as applicable in Pakistan.
Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of
the Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with the Inter-
national Ethics Standards Board for Accountants’ Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants as adopted by the
Institute of Chartered Accountants of Pakistan (the Code) and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in
accordance with the Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in our audit of
the financial statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the
financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on
these matters.
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Following are the Key audit matters:

Key audit matter How our audit addressed the key audit matter
Valuation of investments
Refer Note 4.4 and 11 to the financial statements. Our audit procedures included the following:
The carrying value of investments held by the Company + Assessed the design and tested operating effectiveness
amounted to Rs. 1,352 million, which constitutes 68% of of the relevant controls in place relating to valuation
the Company's total assets as at 31 December 2021. of investments;
The significant portion of the investments comprise of - Compared and recalculated the fair valuation of
units of mutual funds classified as “Fair Value through investments with available external quoted market
profit or loss”. price; and
We identified assessing the carrying value of the invest- + Considered the Company’s disclosures of investments
ment as a key audit matter because of its significance to in accordance with the requirements of accounting
the financial statements. and reporting standards as applicable in Pakistan.

Information Other than the Financial Statements and Auditor’s Report Thereon

Management is responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the information included in
the Annual Report, but does not include the financial statements and our auditor's report thereon.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express any form of
assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and, in
doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial statements or our
knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other informa-
tion, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of Management and Board of Directors for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in accordance with
the accounting and reporting standards as applicable in Pakistan and the requirements of Companies Act, 2017 (XIX
of 2017) and for such internal control as management determines is necessary to enable the preparation of financial
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company’s ability to continue
as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of
accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic
alternative but to do so.

Board of directors are responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting process.
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Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion.
Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with
ISAs as applicable in Pakistan will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise
from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expect-
ed to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with ISAs as applicable in Pakistan, we exercise professional judgment and main-
tain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

. Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is suffi-
cient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement
resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, inten-
tional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

e  Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the
Company’s internal control.

. Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates
and related disclosures made by management.

. Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based
on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may
cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material
uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the
financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based
on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions
may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern.

. Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the disclosures,
and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that
achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with the board of directors regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the
audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during
our audit.

We also provide the board of directors with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements
regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably
be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

Annual Report 2021 |61 //JS investments

Managing Mutual Funds Better!



From the matters communicated with the board of directors, we determine those matters that were of most signifi-
cance in the audit of the financial statements of the current period and are therefore the key audit matters. We
describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter
or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report
because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest ben-
efits of such communication.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

Based on our audit, we further report that in our opinions:

a) proper books of account have been kept by the Company as required by the Companies Act, 2017
(XIX of 2017);

b) the statement of financial position, the statement of profit or loss account, the statement of comprehensive
income, the statement of changes in equity and the statement of cash flows together with the notes there
on have been drawn up in conformity with the Companies Act, 2017 (XIX of 2017) and are in agreement with
the books of account;

C) investments made, expenditure incurred and guarantees extended during the year were for the purpose of
the Company’s business; and

d) no zakat was deductible at source under the Zakat and Ushr Ordinance, 1980 (XVIII of 1980).
Other Matter

The financial statements of the Company as at and for the year ended 31 December 2020 were audited by another
auditor who expressed an unmodified opinion on those financial statements on 17 March 2021.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent auditor’s report is Muhammad Taufiq.

Date: 16 March 2022 KPMG Taseer Hadi & Co.
Chartered Accountants
Karachi

UDIN: AR202110106XyLUZvEua
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STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
AS AT DECEMBER 31, 2021

ASSETS

Non - current assets

Property and equipment

Intangible assets

Long-term investment in subsidiary

Long-term loans and prepayments - considered good

Current assets

Balances due from funds under management - related parties
Loans and advances - considered good

Trade deposits, short term prepayments and other receivables
Other financial assets - investments

Taxation - net

Cash and bank balances

Total assets

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES

Share capital and reserves

Share capital
Authorised capital

Issued, subscribed and paid-up capital
Unappropriated profit

LIABILITIES

Non - current liabilities

Deferred Liabilities

Long-term financing

Lease liabilities

Current liabilities

Accrued and other liabilities

Unclaimed dividend

Current maturity of long term financing
Current maturity of lease liabilities

Total liabilities

Total equity and liabilities
Contingencies and commitments

The annexed notes 1 to 36 form an integral part of these financial statements.

Chief Executive Officer

Chief Financial Officer

Note

wv

10
1

12

13

14
15
17

18

15
17

19

2021 2020
Rupees

341,147,973 399,187,334
10,994,010 12,235,839
- 37,500,000
1,454,417 2,252,802
353,596,400 451,175,975
105,157,354 109,501,155
3,258,499 3,810,261
56,660,058 56,610,095
1,352,102,015 1,585,292,142
87,941,712 89,466,101
26,145,280 9,433,434

1,631,264,918

1,854,113,188

1,984,861,318

2,305,289,164

2,500,000,000 2,500,000,000
617,742,560 617,742,560
886,705,096 1,157,244,225

1,504,447,656

1,774,986,785

- 1,301,172

- 38,999,575
235,185,675 260,150,050
235,185,675 300,450,797
167,884,028 166,112,387
4,945,642 5,182,716
38,778,533 36,582,363
33,619,784 21,974,117
245,227,987 229,851,582
480,413,662 530,302,379

1,984,861,318

2,305,289,164

Director
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STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS ACCOUNT
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2021

Income

Remuneration from funds under management - net

Commission from open end funds under management

Dividend income

Net unrealised gain/(loss) on revaluation of investments classified
as at fair value through profit or loss

Net gain on sale of investments classified as at fair value
through profit or loss

Return on bank deposits

Remuneration and share of profit from management
of discretionary and non discretionary client portfolio

Return on debt security

Administrative expenses
Selling and distribution expenses

Operating Loss

Financial charges

Other income

Loss before taxation
Taxation - net

Loss for the year

Loss per share for the year - basic and diluted

The annexed notes 1 to 36 form an integral part of these financial statements.

Chief Executive Officer Chief Financial Officer

Note

20
21
22

23

24

25

26

27

28

29

2021 2020
154,827,719 172,974,760
465,252 4,096,138
8,199,539 15,644,418
(137,639,293) 114,009,775
11,076,059 6,913,914
1,957,860 3,343,723
2,533,960 1,859,231
11,428,554 14,804,122
52,849,650 333,646,080
(326,757,876) (303,651,642)
(5,070,782) (32,805,782)
(278,979,008) (2,811,344)
(34,400,093) (35,002,110)
(313,379,101) (37,813,454)
24,643,830 14,821,145
(288,735,271) (22,992,309)
(11,340,313) (16,808,691)
(300,075,584) (39,801,000)
(4.86) (0.64)
Director
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STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2021

2021 2020
Rupees
Loss for the year (300,075,584) (39,801,000)
Other comprehensive income / (loss) - -
Total comprehensive loss for the year (300,075,584) (39,801,000)
The annexed notes 1 to 36 form an integral part of these financial statements.
Chief Executive Officer Chief Financial Officer Director
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STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2021

Note
Balance as at January 01, 2020

Total comprehensive loss
for the period ended December 31,2020

Balance as at December 31, 2020

Balance as at January 01, 2021

Transfer upon merger 31.1.13

Total comprehensive loss
for the period ended December 31,2021

Balance as at December 31, 2021

The annexed notes 1 to 36 form an integral part of these financial statements.

Chief Executive Officer Chief Financial Officer

Issued,
subscribed and
paid-up capital

Unappropriated

profit

Total

Rupees

617,742,560 1,197,045,225  1,814,787,785
- (39,801,000) (39,801,000)
617,742,560 1,157,244,225 1,774,986,785
617,742,560 1,157,244,225 1,774,986,785
29,536,455 29,536,455
- (300,075,584)  (300,075,584)
617,742,560 886,705,096  1,504,447,656
Director

Annual Report 2021 |66 //JS investments

Managing Mutual Funds Better!



STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2021

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Loss for the period before taxation

Adjustment for:

Remuneration from funds under management - net

Remuneration from discretionary & non discretionary client portfolio

Commission from open end funds under management

Dividend income

Return on debt securities

Depreciation expense

Amortization expense

Financial charges

Return on bank deposits under interest / mark-up arrangements

Net gain on sale of investments classified as 'at fair value
through profit or loss'

Net unrealised loss / (gain) on revaluation of investments
classified as 'at fair value through profit or loss'

Gain/loss on disposal of property and equipment

Working capital changes
Loans and advances - considered good
Trade deposits, short term prepayments and other receivables
Accrued and other liabilities

Taxes paid - net
Remuneration and commission received from funds under management
Net cash used in operating activities

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES

Investment made

Proceeds from sale of investments

Payments for purchase of property, equipment and intangible assets
Amalgamation of wholly owned subsidiary company

Dividends received

Return on bank deposits under interest / mark-up arrangements
Return on debt securities

Sale proceeds from disposal of property and equipment

Net cash generated from investing activities

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Deferred Liabilities

Long-term financing

Dividend paid

Payment of lease liability

Financial charges paid

Running Finance Facility obtained

Running Finance Facility settled

Net cash used in financing activities

Net (decrease) / increase in cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of the year
Transfer upon merger

Cash and cash equivalents at end of the year

The annexed notes 1 to 36 form an integral part of these financial statements.

Chief Executive Officer Chief Financial Officer

Note

20

21
22

51&5.2

26

(O, N
o=
L

31.1.13
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2021 2020
(288,735,271) (22,992,309)
(154,827,719) (172,974,760)

(2,533,960) (1,859,231)
(465,252) (4,096,138)
(8,199,539) (15,644,418)
(11,428,554) (14,804,122)
68,847,027 70,362,524
5,441,776 4,977,922
34,400,093 35,002,110
(1,957,860) (3,343,723)
(11,076,059) (6,913,914)
137,639,293 (114,009,775)
(16,309,097) (8,191,921)
(249,205,122) (254,487,755)
1,350,147 1,297,583
(49,963) 2,899,413
36,332,936 (19,413,118)
35,032,752 (15,216,122)
(284,237,874 (269,703,877)
(9,815,871) (18,490,302)
162,170,732 192,502,913
(131,883,013) (95,691,266)

(1,972,704,001) (268,919,192)

2,079,330,844 546,496,451

(23,024,540) (6,764,383)
37,500,000 -
8,199,539 15,644,418
1,957,860 3,343,723
11,428,554 14,804,122
25,644,400 19,603,396
168,332,656 324,208,535
- 1,301,172
- 75,581,938
(237,074) (244,867,113)
(17,777,527) (29,537,997)
(31,259,651) (35,002,110)
340,844,067 -
(340,844,067) -
(49,274,252) (232,524,110)
(12,824,609) (4,006,841)
9,433,434 13,440,272
29,536,455 -
26,145,280 9,433,434
Director




1.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2021

1.1

1.2

STATUS AND NATURE OF BUSINESS

JS Investments Limited (the Company) is a public listed company incorporated in Pakistan on February 22,
1995 under the repealed Companies Ordinance, 1984. The shares of the Company are quoted on the
Pakistan Stock Exchange Limited since April 24, 2007. The registered office of the Company is located at
The Centre, 19th Floor, Plot No. 28, SB-5, Abdullah Haroon Road, Saddar, Karachi. The Company is a
subsidiary of JS Bank Limited (which has 84.56 percent direct holding in the Company) which is a
subsidiary of JSCL (Jahangir Siddiqui & Co. Limited), the ultimate parent.

The Company has obtained the license of an “Investment Advisor” and “Asset Management Company”
(AMC) under the Non-Banking Finance Companies (Establishment and Regulation) Rules, 2003 (the NBFC
Rules) and the Non-Banking Finance Companies and Notified Entities Regulations, 2008 (the NBFC
Regulations). In addition, the Company also acts as Pension Fund Manager under the Voluntary Pension
System Rules, 2005. JSIL has also acquired the Private Equity and Venture Capital Fund Management
Services license and REIT Management Services license from Securities and Exchange Commission of
Pakistan (SECP).

Geographical location and addresses of business units of the Company are as under:

Location Address Purpose

Karachi The Centre, 19th Floor, Plot No. 28, SB-5 Abdullah Haroon Road Saddar, Karachi Head Office

Karachi Plot No.16 - C, 4rth Floor, 21 East Street, Phase 1, DHA near KE Office, Karachi. DR Site

Lahore Ground Floor, No 25, Block 13, Plot No.1-4, Usman Block, New Garden Branch Office
Town, Lahore

Islamabad Office # 414, 4th Floor, PSX Building, Jinnah Avenue, Islamabad Branch Office

The Company is an asset management company, pension fund and private equity and venture capital
manager for the following funds for the year ended December 31, 2021.

1.2.1 Open-end mutual funds
- JSGrowth Fund
- JSValue Fund - Merged in JS Growth Fund in September 2021
- JSCashFund
- JSlslamic Fund
- Unit Trust of Pakistan
- JSIncome Fund
- JSFund of Funds
- JSlislamic Income Fund
- JSlarge Cap Fund
- JSlIslamic Hybrid Fund of Funds
- JSlIslamic Hybrid Fund of Funds - 2 - Fully matured in March 2021
- JSlIslamic Hybrid Fund of Funds - 3
- JSlIslamic Dedicated Equity Fund
- JSlIslamic Daily Dividend Fund
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Private Equity and Venture Capital Fund
- JSMotion Picture Fund

Pension funds
- JS Pension Savings Fund
- JSlslamic Pension Savings Fund

2. SIGNIFICANT EVENTS

On 19 February 2021, the Board of Directors of the Company passed a resolution approving a Scheme of
Amalgamation under Section 284(1) of the Companies Act, 2017, to amalgamate its wholly owned
subsidiary, JS ABAMCO Commodities Limited with and into the Company, which was approved by SECP
on 24 June 2021. As such, as of the Effective Date 31 March 2021, the entire undertaking of JS ABAMCO
Commodities Limited will stand merged with and into the Company. Accordingly on 31 March 2021, the
entire business of JS ABAMCO Commodities Limited including its assets, liabilities and rights and
obligations are vested into the Company. Since, JS ABAMCO Commodities Limited was a group company
under common control, the merger has been accounted for as a common control transaction and
predecessor accounting has been applied. Under predecessor accounting, the acquired net assets of JS
ABAMCO Commodities Limited are included in the financial statements of the Company at the same
carrying values as recorded in JS ABAMCO Commodities Limited's own financial statements as on 31
March 2021. The results and the statement of financial position of JS ABAMCO Commodities Limited are
consolidated prospectively from the date of merger.

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION

3.1 Statement of compliance

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the accounting and reporting

standards as applicable in Pakistan. The accounting and reporting standards applicable in Pakistan

comprise of:

- International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) issued by the International Accounting Standards
Board (IASB) as notified under the Companies Act, 2017; and

- Provisions of and directives issued under the Companies Act, 2017 along with part VIIIA of the
replead Companies Ordinance, 1984; and

- Provisions of the Non-Banking Finance Companies (Establishment and Regulation) Rules, 2003 (the
NBFC Rules), the Non-Banking Finance Companies and Notified Entities Regulations, 2008 (the
NBFC Regulations);

Where the provisions and directives issued under the Companies Act, 2017, part VIIIA of the replead
Companies Ordinance, 1984, the NBFC Rules and the NBFC Regulations differ from the IFRS, the provisions
of and directives issued under the Companies Act, 2017, part VIIIA of the replead Companies Ordinance,
1984, the NBFC Rules and the NBFC Regulations have been followed.
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3.2

3.3

3.4

3.5

Consolidation of mutual fund by the asset management company

The Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan (SECP) vide SRO 56 (1) / 2016 dated January 28,2016,
has notified that the requirements of IFRS 10 (Consolidated Financial Statements) and Section 237 of the
Companies Ordinance, 1984 are not applicable in case of investments made by companies in mutual
funds established under Trust structure. Accordingly, the Company has not consolidated the financial
position and result of operations of mutual funds managed by it in their financial statements.

Basis of measurement

These financial statements have been prepared under historical cost convention except for certain
investments which are stated at fair value.

Functional and presentation currency

These financial statements have been presented in Pakistani Rupees, which is the Company's functional
and presentation currency.

Use of estimates and judgments

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with approved accounting standards, as applicable
in Pakistan, requires management to make judgments, estimates and assumptions that affect the
application of policies and the reported amounts of assets, liabilities, income and expenses.

The estimates and associated assumptions are based on historical experience and various other factors
that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances, the results of which form the basis of making
the judgments about the carrying values of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other
sources. Actual results may differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting
estimates are recognized in the period in which the estimate is revised if the revision affects only that
period, or in the period of the revision and future periods if the revision affects both current and future
periods.

The estimates and judgments that have a significant effect on the financial statements are as follows:
i) Amortisation of intangible assets (notes 4.3 and 6);

i) Provision for taxation (notes 4.9 and 28);

iii)  Classification and valuation of investments (notes 4.4 and 11);

iv) Determination and measurement of useful life and residual value of property and equipment
(notes 4.2 and 5.1);

V) Recognition and measurement of deferred tax assets and liabilities (notes 4.9 and 16); and

Vi) Leases (note 4.13).
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3.6

New accounting standards / amendments and IFRS interpretations that are not yet effective

The following International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS Standards) as notified under the
Companies Act, 2017 and the amendments and interpretations thereto will be effective for accounting
periods beginning on or after 1 January 2022:

Onerous Contracts - Cost of Fulfilling a Contract (Amendments to IAS 37) effective for the annual
periods beginning on or after 1 January 2022 amends IAS 1 by mainly adding paragraphs which
clarifies what comprises the cost of fulfilling a contract, Cost of fulfilling a contract is relevant when
determining whether a contract is onerous. An entity is required to apply the amendments to
contracts for which it has not yet fulfilled all its obligations at the beginning of the annual reporting
period in which it first applies the amendments (the date of initial application). Restatement of
comparative information is not required, instead the amendments require an entity to recognize
the cumulative effect of initially applying the amendments as an adjustment to the opening
balance of retained earnings or other component of equity, as appropriate, at the date of initial
application.

Annual Improvements to IFRS standards 2018-2020

The following annual improvements to IFRS Standards 2018-2020 are effective for annual reporting
periods beginning on or after 1 January 2022:

- IFRS 9 — The amendment clarifies that an entity includes only fees paid or received between the
entity (the borrower) and the lender, including fees paid or received by either the entity or the
lender on the other’s behalf, when it applies the ‘10 per cent’ test in paragraph B3.3.6 of IFRS 9 in
assessing whether to derecognize a financial liability.

- IFRS 16 — The amendment partially amends lllustrative Example 13 accompanying IFRS 16 by
excluding the illustration of reimbursement of leasehold improvements by the lessor. The
objective of the amendment is to resolve any potential confusion that might arise in lease
incentives.

- IAS 41 - The amendment removes the requirement in paragraph 22 of IAS 41 for entities to
exclude taxation cash flows when measuring the fair value of a biological asset using a present
value technique.

- Property, Plant and Equipment: Proceeds before Intended Use (Amendments to IAS 16) effective
for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2022 clarifies that sales proceeds and costs of
items produced while bringing an item of property, plant and equipment to the location and
condition necessary for it to be capable of operating in the manner intended by management e.g.
when testing etc., are recognized in profit or loss in accordance with applicable Standards. The
entity measures the cost of those items by applying the measurement requirements of IAS 2. The
standard also removes the requirement of deducting the net sales proceeds from cost of testing. An
entity shall apply those amendments retrospectively, but only to items of property, plant and
equipment that are brought to the location and condition necessary for them to be capable of
operating in the manner intended by management on or after the beginning of the earliest period
presented in the financial statements in which the entity first applies the amendments. The entity
shall recognize the cumulative effect of initially applying the amendments as an adjustment to the
opening balance of retained earnings (or other component of equity, as appropriate) at the
beginning of that earliest period presented.
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Reference to the Conceptual Framework (Amendments to IFRS 3) - Reference to the
Conceptual Framework, issued in May 2020, amended paragraphs 11, 14, 21, 22 and 23 of and
added paragraphs 21A, 21B, 21C and 23A to IFRS 3. An entity shall apply those amendments to
business combinations for which the acquisition date is on or after the beginning of the first annual
reporting period beginning on or after 1 January 2022. Earlier application is permitted if at the
same time or earlier an entity also applies all the amendments made by Amendments to
References to the Conceptual Framework in IFRS Standards, issued in March 2018.

Classification of liabilities as current or non-current (Amendments to IAS 1) amendments
apply retrospectively for the annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2023. These
amendments in the standards have been added to further clarify when a liability is classified as
current. The standard also amends the aspect of classification of liability as non-current by requiring
the assessment of the entity’s right at the end of the reporting period to defer the settlement of
liability for at least twelve months after the reporting period. An entity shall apply those
amendments retrospectively in accordance with IAS 8.

Disclosure of Accounting Policies (Amendments to IAS 1 and IFRS Practice Statement 2) — the Board
has issued amendments on the application of materiality to disclosure of accounting policies and
to help companies provide useful accounting policy disclosures. The key amendments to IAS 1
include:

requiring companies to disclose their material accounting policies rather than their significant
accounting policies;

- clarifying that accounting policies related to immaterial transactions, other events or
conditions are themselves immaterial and as such need not be disclosed; and

- clarifying that not all accounting policies that relate to material transactions, other events or
conditions are themselves material to a company’s financial statements.

The Board also amended IFRS Practice Statement 2 to include guidance and two additional
examples on the application of materiality to accounting policy disclosures. The amendments are
effective for annual reporting periods beginning on or after 1 January 2023 with earlier application
permitted.

Definition of Accounting Estimates (Amendments to IAS 8) - The amendments introduce a
new definition for accounting estimates clarifying that they are monetary amounts in the financial
statements that are subject to measurement uncertainty.

The amendments also clarify the relationship between accounting policies and accounting
estimates by specifying that a company develops an accounting estimate to achieve the objective
set out by an accounting policy. The amendments are effective for periods beginning on or after 1
January 2023 and will apply prospectively to changes in accounting estimates and changes in
accounting policies occurring on or after the beginning of the first annual reporting period in which
the company applies the amendments.
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- Deferred Tax related to Assets and Liabilities arising from a Single Transaction
(Amendments to IAS 12) - The amendments narrow the scope of the initial recognition
exemption (IRE) so that it does not apply to transactions that give rise to equal and offsetting
temporary differences. As a result, companies will need to recognize a deferred tax asset and a
deferred tax liability for temporary differences arising on initial recognition of a lease and a
decommissioningprovision. For leases and decommissioning liabilities, the associated deferred
tax asset and liabilities will need to be recognizedfrom the beginningof the earliestcomparative
period presented, with any cumulative effect recognizedas an adjustmentto retained earningsor
other components of equity at that date. The amendments are effective for annual reporting
periods beginning on or after 1 January 2023 with earlier application permitted.

- Sale or Contribution of Assets between an Investor and its Associate or Joint Venture
(Amendmentsto IFRS 10 and IAS 28) - The amendmentamendsaccountingtreatmenton loss of
control of business or assets. The amendments also introduce new accounting for less frequent
transactionthat involvesneither cost nor full step-up of certain retainedinterests in assets that are
not businesses. The effective date for these changes has been deferred indefinitely until the
completion of a broader review.

The above amendments are effective from annual periods beginning on or after 01 January, 2022
and are not likely to have an impact on the company's financial statements.

4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

4.1 The accounting policies adopted in the preparation of these financial statements are consistent with
those of the previous financial year.

4.2 Property and equipment
a) Owned assets

Property and equipment are stated at cost or revalued amounts less accumulated depreciation and
accumulatedimpairment losses, if any, except for capital work-in-progresswhich is stated at cost less
impairment, if any. All expenditures connected with specific assets incurred during installation and
construction period are carried under capital work-in-progress.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset's carrying amounts or recognized as a separate asset, as
appropriate, only when it is probable that future benefits associated with the item will flow to the
Company and the cost of the item can be measuredreliably. All other subsequentcosts includingrepair
and maintenance are charged to the statement of profit or loss account as and when incurred.

Depreciationis chargedto statement of profit or loss by applyingthe straight-linemethod, wherebythe
cost or revalued amount of an asset is written off over its estimated useful life. The residual values and
useful lives are reviewed, and adjusted, if required, at each reporting date.

Depreciation on fixed assets is charged from the month in which the asset is available for use. No
depreciation is charged for the month in which the asset is disposed off.

The residual value, useful lives and depreciation methods are reviewed at each reporting period and
adjusted, if appropriate, to reflect the current best estimate.
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4.3

4.4

Intangible assets

Intangible assets includes software with a finite useful life and are stated at cost less accumulated
amortization and accumulated impairment losses, if any. Such intangible assets are amortized using the
straight-line method taking into account residual value, if any, at the rate specified in note 5 to these
financial statements. Amortization is charged from the date the asset is available for use while in the case
of assets disposed off, it is charged till the date of disposal. The useful lives and amortization method are
reviewed and adjusted, if appropriate, at each reporting date.

Financial instruments

Bank balances and loans and advances to employees / counter parties are recognised when funds are
transferred to the banks / employees / counterparties. The Company recognises due to counterparties
when funds reach the Company.

All financial instruments are measured initially at their fair value plus transaction costs, except in the case
of financial assets and financial liabilities recorded as 'at fair value through profit or loss'

4.4.1 Classification - IFRS 9

In accordance with IFRS 9, the Company classifies its financial assets and financial liabilities at initial
recognition into the categories of financial assets and financial liabilities discussed below.

In applying that classification, a financial asset or financial liability is considered to be 'at fair value
through profit or loss'if:

i) Itis acquired or incurred principally for the purpose of selling or repurchasing it in the near term;

i) On initial recognition, it is part of a portfolio of identified financial instruments that are managed
together and for which, there is evidence of a recent actual pattern of short-term profit-taking; or

iii) It is a derivative (except for a derivative that is a financial guarantee contract or a designated and
effective hedging instrument).

Financial assets

The Company classifies its financial assets as subsequently measured 'at amortised cost' or
measured 'at fair value through profit or loss' on the basis of both:

- The entity’s business model for managing of the financial assets
- The contractual cash flow characteristics of the financial asset

Financial assets measured 'at amortised cost’

A debt instrument is measured at amortised cost if it is held within a business model whose
objective is to hold financial assets in order to collect contractual cash flows and its contractual
terms give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest
on the principal amount outstanding. The Company includes in this category short-term non-
financing receivables, accrued income and other receivables.

Financial assets measured 'at fair value through profit or loss'

A financial asset is measured 'at fair value through profit or loss' if:

(@) Its contractual terms do not give rise to cash flows on specified dates that are solely payments
of principal and interest (SPPI) on the principal amount outstanding; or

(b) It is not held within a business model whose objective is either to collect contractual cash
flows, or to both collect contractual cash flows and sell; or
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(c) At initial recognition, it is irrevocably designated as measured at FVPL when doing so
eliminates or significantly reduces a measurement or recognition inconsistency that would
otherwise arise from measuring assets or liabilities or recognising the gains and losses on them
on different bases.

Financial liabilities

Financial liabilities measured at amortised cost

This category includes all financial liabilities, other than those measured 'at fair value through profit
or loss'. The Company includes in this category short-term payables, including accrued and other
liabilities.

4.4.2 Measurement of financial asset

Initial measurement

A financial asset is initially measured at fair value plus, for an item not at FVTPL, transaction costs that are
directly attributable to its acquisition.

Subsequent measurement

Debt Investments These assets are subsequently measured at fair value. Interest / markup income

at FVOCI calculated using the effective interest method, and impairment are recognised
in the statement of profit or loss. Other net gains and losses are recognised in
other comprehensive income. On de-recognition, gains and losses
accumulated in other comprehensive income are reclassified to the statement
of profit and loss.

Equity Investments These assets are subsequently measured at fair value. Dividends are recognised

at FVOCI as income in the statement of profit or loss unless the dividend clearly
represents arecovery of part of the cost of the investment. Other net gains and
losses are recognised in other comprehensive income and are never
reclassified to the statement of profit and loss.

Financial assets These assets are subsequently measured at fair value. Net gains and losses,
at FVTPL including any interest / markup or dividend income, are recognised in the
statement of profit and loss.

Financial assets These assets are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective
measured at interest method. The amortised cost is reduced by impairment losses. Interest /
amortised cost markup income, and impairment are recognised in the statement of profit and
loss.
4.4.3 Non-derivative financial assets

All non-derivative financial assets are initially recognised on trade date i.e. date on which the Company
becomes party to the respective contractual provisions. Non-derivative financial assets comprise loans
and receivables that are financial assets with fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in
active markets. The Company derecognises the financial assets when the contractual rights to the cash
flows from the asset expires or it transfers the rights to receive the contractual cash flows in a transaction
in which substantially all of the risk and rewards of ownership of the financial assets are transferred or it
neither transfers nor retain substantially all of the risks and rewards of ownership and does not retain
control over the transferred asset.
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4.4.4 Offsetting of financial assets and financial liabilities

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the unconsolidated
financial statements only when the Company has a legally enforceable right to offset and the Company
intends to either settle on a net basis, or to realise the assets and to settle the liabilities simultaneously.
Income and expense items of such assets and liabilities are also offset and the net amount is reported in
the unconsolidated financial statements only when permitted by the accounting and reporting standards
as applicable in Pakistan.

4.4.5 Financial liabilities

Financial liabilities are initially recognised on trade date i.e. date on which the Company becomes party
to the respective contractual provisions. Financial liabilities include mark-up bearing borrowings and
trade and other payables. The Company derecognises the financial liabilities when contractual
obligations are discharged, cancelled or expire. Financial liability other than at fair value through profit or
loss are initially measured at fair value less any directly attributable transaction cost. Subsequent to initial
recognition, these liabilities are measured at amortised cost using effective interest rate method.

4.4.6 Derecognition

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset or a part of a group of similar financial
assets) is derecognised where the rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired, or the
Company has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from the asset, or has assumed an obligation to
pay the received cash flows in full without material delay to a third party under a pass-through
arrangement and the Company has:

(a) Transferred substantially all of the risks and rewards of the asset; or

(b) Neither transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, but has
transferred control of the asset.

When the Company has transferred its right to receive cash flows from an asset (or has entered into a pass-
through arrangement), and has neither transferred nor retained substantially all of the risks and rewards of
the asset nor transferred control of the asset, the asset is recognised to the extent of the Company’s
continuing involvement in the asset. In that case, the Company also recognises an associated liability. The
transferred asset and the associated liability are measured on a basis that reflects the rights and
obligations that the Company has retained. The Company derecognises a financial liability when the
obligation under the liability is discharged, cancelled or expired.

4.4.7 Impairment

4.4.7.1 Financial assets

The Company recognises loss allowances for Expected Credit Losses (ECLs) in respect of financial assets
measured at amortised cost.

The Company measures loss allowances at an amount equal to lifetime ECLs, except for the following,
which are measured at 12-month ECLs:

- debt securities that are determined to have low credit risk at the reporting date; and

- other debt securities and bank balance for which credit risk (i.e. the risk of default occurring over
the expected life of the financial instrument) has not increased significantly since initial
recognition.
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Loss allowances for trade receivables are always measured at an amount equal to lifetime ECLs.

When determining whether the credit risk of a financial asset has increased significantly since initial
recognition and when estimating ECLs, the Company considers reasonable and supportable information
that is relevant and available without undue cost or effort. This includes both quantitative and qualitative
information and analysis, based on the Company's historical experience and informed credit assessment
and including forward-looking information.

The Company assumes that the credit risk on a financial asset has increased significantly if it is more than
past due for a reasonable period of time. Lifetime ECLs are the ECLs that result from all possible default
events over the expected life of a financial instrument. 12-month ECLs are the portion of ECLs that result
from default events that are possible within the 12 months after the reporting date (or a shorter period if
the expected life of the instrument is less than 12 months). The maximum period considered when
estimating ECLs is the maximum contractual period over which the Company is exposed to credit risk.

Loss allowances for financial assets measured at amortised cost are deducted from the Gross carrying
amount of the assets.

The gross carrying amount of a financial asset is written off when the Company has no reasonable
expectations of recovering of a financial asset in its entirety or a portion thereof. The Company
individually makes an assessment with respect to the timing and amount of write-off based on whether
there is a reasonable expectation of recovery. The Company expects no significant recovery from the
amount written off. However, financial assets that are written off could still be subject to enforcement
activities in order to comply with the Company's procedures for recovery of amounts due.

Based on the management assessment no ECL was required since the Company's financial assets at
amortized cost are held with related parties or counterparties with low credit risk. Further, ECL calculated
on Trade Debts was not required as the amount assessed was immaterial to the unconsolidated financial
statement.

4.4.7.2 Non-financial assets

The carrying amounts of the Company's non-financial assets are reviewed at each balance sheet date to
determine whether there is any indication of impairment. If such indication exists, the asset's recoverable
amount, being higher of value in use and fair value less costs to sell, is estimated. In assessing value in use,
the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that
reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset. For the
purpose of impairment testing, assets that cannot be tested individually are grouped together into the
smallest group of assets that generates cash inflows from continuing use that are largely independent of
the cash inflows of other assets or groups of assets. An impairment loss is recognised whenever the
carrying amount of an asset exceeds its recoverable amount. Impairment losses are recognised in the
unconsolidated statement of profit or loss.

4.5 Revenue recognition

- Remuneration for management services and asset investment advisory services are recognized on
an accrual basis by applying pre-defined remuneration percentage on daily net asset value of the
respective funds. The fee so charged does not exceed the limit prescribed in the NBFC Regulations
/ Voluntary Pension System Rules 2005.

- Realised gains / losses on sale of investments is recognized in the statement of profit or loss at the
time of sale.

- Dividend income is recorded when the right to receive the dividend is established.
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4.6

4.7

4.8

- Return on bank deposits, mark-up on term finance certificate, mark-up on letter of placements and
mark-up on commercial papers are recognized on time proportionate basis by using effective rate
of interest.

- Commission income from open end funds is recognized at the time of sale of units.

- Commission income and share of profit from management of discretionary and non discretionary
client portfolios is recognized as services are rendered.

Staff retirement benefits - Staff Provident Fund

The Company operates an approved contributory provident fund for all of its permanent employees. The
Company and employees make equal monthly contributions to the fund at the rate of 7.33 percent of the
basic salary.

Provisions

Provisions are recognized when the Company has a present legal or constructive obligation as a result of
past events, it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to
settle the obligation and a reliable estimate of the outflow can be made. Provisions are reviewed at each
reporting date and adjusted to reflect the current best estimate.

Taxation

Income tax expense comprises current and deferred tax. Income tax expense is recognized in the
statement of profit and loss account, except to the extent that it relates to items recognized directly in
equity or other comprehensive income, in that case it is recognized in equity or other comprehensive
income respectively.

Current

Provision for current taxation is based on taxability of certain income streams of the Company under
presumptive / final tax regime at the applicable tax rates and remaining income streams chargeable at
current rate of taxation under the normal tax regime after taking into account tax credits and tax rebates
available, if any.

Deferred

Deferred tax is recognized using the balance sheet liability method on all major temporary differences
between the carrying amount of assets and liabilities used for financial reporting purposes and the
amounts used for taxation purposes. Deferred tax is measured at the rates that are expected to be applied
to the temporary differences when they reverse, based on the laws that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the reporting date.

A deferred tax asset is recognised for all deductible temporary differences and carry-forward of unused tax
losses, to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit or taxable temporary differences will be
available against which the deductible temporary differences and / or carry-forward of unused tax losses
can be utilised. Deferred tax assets are reviewed at each reporting date and reduced to the extent that it is
no longer probable that the related tax benefit will be realized. Deferred tax is charged or credited to the
profit and loss account.
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4.9 Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents for cash flow purposes include cash in hand, current and deposit accounts held
with banks, running finance facilities availed by the Company (if any), which are payable on demand and
form an integral part of the Company's cash management.

4.10 Earnings per share

Earnings per share is calculated by dividing the profit after tax for the year by the weighted average
number of shares outstanding during the year.

4.11 Dividend and other appropriation to reserves

Dividend and appropriation to reserves are recognized in financial statements in the periods in which
these are approved.

4.12 Leases

The Company applies a single recognition and measurement approach for all leases, except for short-
term leases and leases of low-value assets. The Company recognises lease liabilities to make lease
payments and right-of-use assets representing the right to use the underlying assets.

Right-of-use assets

The Company recognises right-of-use assets at the commencement date of the lease (i.e., the date the
underlying asset is available for use). Right-of-use assets are measured at cost, less any accumulated
depreciation and impairment losses, and adjusted for any remeasurement of lease liabilities. The cost of
right-of-use assets includes the amount of lease liabilities recognised, initial direct costs incurred, and
lease payments made at or before the commencement date less any lease incentives received. Unless
the Company is reasonably certain to obtain ownership of the leased asset at the end of the lease term,
the recognised right-of-use assets are depreciated on a straight-line basis over the shorter of its estimated
useful life and the lease term. Right-of-use assets are subject to impairment.

Lease liabilities

At the commencement date of the lease, the Company recognises lease liabilities measured at the
present value of lease payments to be made over the lease term. The lease payments include fixed
payments (including in-substance fixed payments) less any lease incentives receivable, variable lease
payments that depend on an index or a rate, and amounts expected to be paid under residual value
guarantees.

In calculating the present value of lease payments, the Company uses the incremental borrowing rate at
the lease commencement date if the interest rate implicit in the lease is not readily determinable. After
the commencement date, the amount of lease liabilities is increased to reflect the accretion of interest
and reduced for the lease payments made. In addition, the carrying amount of lease liabilities is
remeasured if there is a modification, a change in the lease term, a change in the in-substance fixed lease
payments or a change in the assessment to purchase the underlying asset.
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5.1

Significant judgement in determining the lease term of contracts with renewal options

The Company determines the lease term as the non-cancellable term of the lease, together with any
periods covered by an option to extend the lease if it is reasonably certain to be exercised, or any periods
covered by an option to terminate the lease, if it is reasonably certain not to be exercised.

The Company has the option, under some of its leases to lease the assets for additional terms of one to
five years. The Company applies judgement in evaluating whether it is reasonably certain to exercise the
option to renew. That is, it considers all relevant factors that create an economic incentive for it to
exercise the renewal. After the commencement date, the Company reassesses the lease term if there is a
significant event or change in circumstances that is within its control and affects its ability to exercise (or
not to exercise) the option to renew (e.g., a change in business strategy).

The Company included the renewal period as part of the lease term for leases of Company's head office
and branches due to the significance of these assets to its operations. These leases have a short non-
cancellable period (i.e., three to five years) and there will be a significant negative effect on operations ifa
replacement is not readily available.

2021 2020
Note  ------------ Rupees ------------
5. PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT

Operating fixed assets 5.1 146,269,405 172,558,300
Right-of-use assets 52 194,099,697 225,017,100
Capital work-in-progress - advance against capex 53 778,871 1,611,934

341,147,973 399,187,334

2021
Lease hold  Furniture and Office Vehicles Total
improvement fixtures equipment
Operating fixed assets
Rupees

At January 01, 2021
Cost / revalued amount 133,230,064 41,042,313 151,115,263 57,959,368 383,347,008
Revaluation - - - - -
Accumulated depreciation (24,979,901) (27,058,149) (124,831,426) (33,919,232) (210,788,708)
Net book value 108,250,163 13,984,164 26,283,837 24,040,136 172,558,300
Year ended December 31, 2021
Opening net book value 108,250,163 13,984,164 26,283,837 24,040,136 172,558,300
Revaluation - - - - -
Additions - 3,247,999 4,788,973 10,008,750 18,045,722
Disposals - (538,269) (43,202) (8,753,832) (9,335,303)
Depreciation charge for the year (13,023,917) (1,880,139) (13,223,200) (6,872,058) (34,999,314)
Closing net book value 95,226,246 14,813,755 17,806,408 18,422,996 146,269,405
At December 31, 2021
Cost / revalued amount 133,230,064 43,752,043 155,861,034 59,214,286 392,057,427
Accumulated depreciation (38,003,818) (28,938,288) (138,054,626) (40,791,290) (245,788,022)
Net book value 95,226,246 14,813,755 17,806,408 18,422,996 146,269,405
Depreciation rate % per annum 10% 10% 25% 20%
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At January 01, 2020

Cost / revalued amount
Revaluation

Accumulated depreciation
Net book value

Year ended December 31, 2020
Opening net book value
Revaluation

Additions

Disposals

Depreciation charge for the year
Closing net book value

At December 31, 2020
Cost / revalued amount
Accumulated depreciation
Net book value

Depreciation rate % per annum

5.1.1 Details of operating fixed assets disposed of:

*

Vehicles
Honda City

Wagon R VXL

Honda Civic

Honda Civic

Toyota Corolla Gli
Mercedes Benz
Honda City

Honda City

Furniture and Fixtures

Items having Book Values of Less than
Rs.500,000 each*

As at December 31, 2021

As at December 31, 2020

2020

Includes Disposals of all other class of operating fixed assets.

Lease hold Furniture and Office .
. X R Vehicles Total
improvement fixtures equipment
Rupees
130,466,248 41,042,313 149,431,648 69,242,536 390,182,745
(12,209,334) (25,254,381) (111,099,880) (26,094,318) (174,657,913)
118,256,914 15,787,932 38,331,768 43,148,218 215,524,830
118,256,914 15,787,932 38,331,768 43,148,218 215,524,832
2,763,816 - 1,811,924 - 4,575,740
- - (128,309) (11,283,168) (11,411,477)
(12,770,567) (1,803,768) (13,731,546) (7,824,914) (36,130,796)
108,250,163 13,984,164 26,283,837 24,040,136 172,558,300
133,230,064 41,042,313 151,115,263 57,959,368 383,347,008
(24,979,901) (27,058,149) (124,831,426) (33,919,232) (210,788,709)
108,250,163 13,984,164 26,283,837 24,040,136 172,558,300
10% 10% 25% 20%
Cost A lated Mode of Particul f
ost/ ccumlf a.e Net book value Sale proceeds Gain /(loss) ‘o o articutars o
revalued depreciation disposal buyer
Rupees
1,929,410 747,646 1,181,764 2,415,000 1,233,236 Third party via Syed Najaf
bid Hussain Jaffri
1,089,690 640,193 449,497 1,250,000 800,503 Third party via Parvaiz Siddique
bid Masih
2,423,960 1,605,874 818,086 2,925,000 2,106,914 Third party via Wasim Nazar Ali
bid
2,423,960 1,636,173 787,787 2,925,000 2,137,213  Third party via Muneer
bid Associates
1,886,629 1,297,055 589,574 2,400,000 1,810,426 Third party vi .
" Ei; yvia Syed Ali Abbas
7,870,470 5,115,806 2,754,664 8,900,000 6,145,336  Third party via Victory Cars,
bid Lahore
1,932,660 1,111,280 821,380 2,300,000 1,478,620 Third party via Noman Usman
bid
2,219,321 868,241 1,351,080 2,175,000 823,920 Third party via Syed Anwar Ali
bid
745,923 207,654 538,269 132,400 (405,869) Third party via Tip top dry
bid cleaner
1,881,312 1,838,110 43,202 222,000 178,798 Third party via Others
bid
24,403,335 15,068,032 9,335,303 25,644,400 16,309,097
17,882,859 6,471,382 11,411,477 19,603,396 8,191,919
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5.1.2 The cost of fully depreciated assets as at December 31,2021 is Rs.38.659 (2020: Rs.36.629) million.

5.2 Right-of-use assets

As at January 01
Modification of lease
Depreciation expense
As at December 31

5.3 Advance against Capital Work in Progress

Opening Balance
Additions
Transfers

Closing Balance

INTANGIBLE ASSETS

At January 01
Cost
Accumulated amortization
Net book value

Year ended December 31
Opening net book value
Additions during the year
Amortization for the year
Closing net book value

At December 31
Cost
Accumulated amortization

Net book value

Amortization rate % per annum

2021 2020
------------ Rupees ------------
225,017,100 259,248,828
2,930,310 -
(33,847,713) (34,231,728)
194,099,697 225,017,100
1,611,934 1,313,212
21,412,606 6,764,382
(22,245,669) (6,465,660)
778,871 1,611,934
2021 2020
------------ Rupees ------------
58,718,633 56,828,713
(46,482,794) (41,504,872)
12,235,839 15,323,841
12,235,839 15,323,841
4,199,947 1,889,920
(5,441,776) (4,977,922)
10,994,010 12,235,839
62,918,580 58,718,633
(51,924,570) (46,482,794)
10,994,010 12,235,839
20% 20%
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Note @~ ---------em- Rupees ------------
LONG-TERM LOANS AND PREPAYMENTS -
CONSIDERED GOOD

Loans to employees 7.1 419,913 1,177,630
Less: Current portion 9 (343,636) (696,502)
76,277 481,128
Long term prepayment 7.2 3,935,342 3,935,342
Less: Amortisation (2,163,668) (1,770,134)
Less: Current portion (393,534) (393,534)
1,378,140 1,771,674
1,454,417 2,252,802
7.1 These represent loans given to employees for purchase of motor vehicles loans and staff personal loans.

These loans are recovered through deduction from salaries over varying periods from four to fifteen
years. These loans are granted in accordance with the terms of employment. The motor vehicle loans are
secured by way of title to the motor vehicles being held in the name of the Company and house loans
are secured by way of equitable mortgage. Motor vehicle loans, house loans and staff personal loan carry
mark-up at rates ranging from 3.58% to 8.17% (2020: 5.15% to 13.74%) per annum. The Company has
not discounted these loans at market interest rates as the effect of such discounting is not material to
these financial statements.

During the year, the company has introduced a new policy of house loan in which the company
reimburses mark up on house loans over and above KIBOR rate not exceeding the cap of 2%.

The maximum aggregate amount due from employees outstanding at the end of any month during the
year was Rs.0.43 (2020: Rs.1.17) million.

7.2 This represents payment made in respect of club membership fee for ten years to Karachi Boat Club.
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BALANCES DUE FROM FUNDS UNDER
MANAGEMENT - RELATED PARTIES

8.1 Balances due from funds under management 2021 2020
------------ Rupees ------------
Open end Funds (note 8.2)

JS Value Fund 14,349,827 15,534,089
JS Growth Fund 37,888,132 37,295,467
JS Large Cap Fund 11,861,856 12,042,332
Unit Trust of Pakistan 17,181,228 17,333,925
JSIncome Fund 5,214,940 5,510,284
JSlIslamic Fund 6,109,768 6,357,504
JS Fund of Funds 536,215 518,302
JS Pension Savings Fund 3,587,936 3,600,240
JSIslamic Pension Savings Fund 1,915,593 1,952,563
JSIslamic Income Fund 1,478,388 1,509,513
JS Cash Fund 4,391,018 7,143,377

JS Islamic Hybrid Fund of Funds 2,682 -
JSIslamic Dedicated Equity Fund 365,048 100,769
JS Islamic Hybrid Fund of Funds - 3 14,562 102,684
JS Motion Picture Fund 81,087 368,738
JSIslamic Daily Dividend Fund 179,074 131,367
105,157,354 109,501,155
8.2 Balances due from funds under management primarily represent accrual of management fee, sales tax

and federal excise duty. Management fee is received within next month from the date of accrual.

LOANS AND ADVANCES - CONSIDERED GOOD

Current portion of long-term loans to employees

Unsecured advances to
- employees
- suppliers

2021 2020
------------ Rupees ------------
343,636 696,502
2,231,362 2,938,758
683,501 175,001
2,914,863 3,113,759
3,258,499 3,810,261
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10.

11.

TRADE DEPOSITS, SHORT TERM PREPAYMENTS
AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

Sindh Sales Tax on rent & other receivable from related parties
Deposits

Prepayments

Others

Provision against other receivable from related parties

10.1 32,574,180 40,029,929
4,548,956 4,228,956
12,871,063 8,692,175
6,962,212 3,659,035
56,956,411 56,610,095

10.2 (296,353) -
56,660,058 56,610,095

10.1  This represents balances due from related parties on account of rent and other expenses incurred on
their behalf. It also includes Rs.3.087 (2020: Rs.3.236) million of expenses incurred on the formation cost

on behalf of funds under management.

10.2 Movement in provision against other receivable
Opening balance
Provision made during the year
Closing balance
OTHER FINANCIAL ASSETS - INVESTMENTS
Investments by category
At fair value through profit or loss'

Units of mutual funds - related parties

Unlisted debt security - Term Finance Certificate
[25,000 certificates (2020: 25,000 certificates)]

2021 2020
------------ Rupees ------------
296,353 -
296,353 -
2021 2020
------------ Rupees ------------

11.1 1,227,102,015

11.2 125,000,000

1,460,292,142

125,000,000

1,352,102,015

1,585,292,142

1,352,102,015

1,585,292,142
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11.2

Units of mutual funds - 'At fair value through profit or loss' (related parties)

Number of units 2021 2020
2021 2020 Average cost Fair value Fair value
Rupees
461,361 456,110 ||4S Income Fund (note11.1.1) 44,017,642 46,362,212 45,150,314
- 382,292 ||JS Islamic Income Fund - - 40,435,029
419,093 - JS Cash Fund 44,172,670 44,633,403 -
- 3,305 ||[JSIHFOF - Mustahkem - - 217,563
- 76,142 ||JSIHFOF - Mufeed - - 3,659,391
61,443 49,068 |[JSIHFOF - Mutanasib 4,465,652 3,182,770 3,698,234
1,000,000 1,000,000 |[JS Motion Picture Fund 97,700,000 21,520,000 97,700,000
- 1,343,094 ||JS Value Fund - - 286,643,090
3,175,696 || 1,937,116 ||JS Growth Fund (note 11.1.1) 581,077,183 527,229,067 348,448,361
205,210 205,210 ||JS Pension Savings Fund - Equity 98,131,485 93,957,510 98,131,485
137,349 137,349 |(|JS Pension Savings Fund - Debt 41,339,299 44,453,001 41,339,299
JS Pension Savings Fund -
177,463 177,463 Money Market 43,073,920 46,257,614 43,073,920
3,373,965 || 2,822,294 ||JS Fund of Funds 214,359,670 | 199,603,765 179,582,560
JSIslamic Pension Savings
147,900 182,354 Fund - Equity 97,301,913 94,130,938 119,968,655
JSIslamic Pension Savings
213,852 213,852 Fund - Debt 51,942,438 55,635,657 51,942,438
JSIslamic Pension Savings
222,303 222,303 Fund - Money Market 47,159,436 50,136,078 47,159,436
- 407,754 ||JS Islamic Daily Dividend Fund - - 40,775,361
- 123,571 ||JSIslamic Fund - - 12,367,005
1,364,741,308 1,227,102,015 1,460,292,142
Unrealised gain on
remeasurement at fair value - net (137,639,293) - -
1,227,102,015 1,227,102,015 1,460,292,142
11.1.1 450,000 units of JS Income Fund and 285,000 units of JS Growth Fund are pledged with JS Bank Ltd.

against the Refinance Scheme for payment of Wages & Salaries to the Workers and Employees of
Business Concerns issued by SBP under Covid-19 relief package through its circular IH&SMEFD
Circular No. 07 dated April 10,2020.

Investment in Debt Security - Term Finance Certificate

This represents investment in AA rated, unsecured, subordinated, perpetual and non-cumulative term finance
certificate of Bank AL Habib Limited, having face value of Rs.5,000 per certificate and carries profit at the rate of 6
Months KIBOR + 1.50% per annum.
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12. CASH AND BANK BALANCES Note W  -———-mmmmmeo Rupees ------------
Cashin hand 100,124 75,302

Cash at bankin:

Current accounts 569,933 1,168,596
Saving accounts 12.1 25,475,223 8,189,536
26,045,156 9,358,132
26,145,280 9,433,434

12.1 These carry mark-up at the rates ranging from 5.50% to 8.75% (2020: 5.50% to 13.70%) per annum. It
includes Rs. 23.694 (2020: Rs. 6.563) million held with JS Bank Limited (the Parent Company).

13. SHARE CAPITAL

2021 2020 2021 2020
------------ Shares ------------ ------------ Rupees ------------
Authorised capital
200,000,000 200,000,000 Ordinary shares of Rs.10 each 2,000,000,000 2,000,000,000
Convertible preference
50,000,000 50,000,000 shares of Rs.10 each 500,000,000 500,000,000
250,000,000 250,000,000 2,500,000,000 2,500,000,000

Issued, subscribed and paid-up capital
Ordinary shares of Rs.10 each
21,250,000 21,250,000 issued as fully paid in cash 212,500,000 212,500,000

Fully paid ordinary shares
of Rs.10 each issued on
700,000 700,000 amalgamation with Confidence 7,000,000 7,000,000
Financial Services Limited

Ordinary shares of Rs.10 each
78,050,000 78,050,000 issued as fully paid bonus shares 780,500,000 780,500,000

Shares repurchased (2015:19.8
(38,225,744) (38,225,744) millionand 2019: 18.4 million) (382,257,440) (382,257,440)

61,774,256 61,774,256 617,742,560 617,742,560

13.1 As at year end, JS Bank Limited, the Parent Company, holds 52,236,978 (2020: 52,236,978) shares in the
Company.

13.2 There is only one class of ordinary shares issued.

13.3 Voting rights, board selection, right of first refusal and block voting are in proportion to their
shareholding.
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Note  ------------- (Rupees) -------------
14. DEFERRED LIABILITIES
Government Grant 14.1 - 1,301,172
14.1 Movement of Government grant
Opening balance 1,301,172 -
Received during the year - 4,604,021
Closing balance 1,301,172 4,604,021
Current Portion of Government Grant 14.2 1,301,172 3,302,849
Long - term Portion of Government Grant - 1,301,172
1,301,172 4,604,021

14.2 The Government grant has been recorded against subsidized rate loan obtained to a refinance scheme
introduced by State Bank of Pakistan to provide working capital loan at concessional mark-up rates for
businesses to finance salary expense during the COVID-19 outbreak. The grant is conditional upon the
fact that the Company would not terminate any employee, due / owing to cash flow limitations, for a
period of three months from the date of receipt of the first tranche.

2021 2020
------------- (Rupees) -------------
15. LONG-TERM FINANCING
- Salaries and Wages
Long-term financing - 38,999,575
Current maturity 38,778,533 36,582,363
15.1 38,778,533 75,581,938

15.1 In prior year, the Company availed salary refinance facility from JS Bank under the State Bank of Pakistan's
(SBP) "Refinance scheme for payment of wages and salaries to the workers and employees of Business
concern" due to coronavirus pandemic for a period of two years and six months (inclusive of grace period
of six months). In prior year, the Company obtained the loan in two tranches in Augest 2020 and October
2020. This facility is secured by pledge of JS Income fund and JS Growth fund. This facility carries mark-up
at concessional rate of 3% per annum. Principal amount is payable in 8 equal quarterly installment and
repayment of financing has been started from January 2021.

16. DEFERRED TAXATION

Net deferred tax asset to the extent of Rs. 173.684 (2020: Rs. 138.922) million on accumulated losses of Rs.
598.910 (2020: Rs. 479.039) million has not been recognized in these financial statements as the management
of the Company is of the view that it is not probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available in the
foreseeable future against which deductible temporary differences, unused tax losses and unused tax credits
can be utilised.
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17.

18.

LEASE LIABILITIES

Lease liabilities as on 01 January
Effect of lease modification
Additions during the year

Interest expense

Disposals during the year

Rental payments

Lease liabilities as on 31 December

Less: Current portion of lease liabilities
Non Current portion of lease liabilities

17.1 Lease liabilities are payable as follows:

Not later than one year
Later than one year and not later
than 5 years

Less: Current portion

2021 2020
------------ Rupees ------------
282,124,167 311,662,164
214,516 -
8,557,200 -
30,274,605 33,970,978
(4,312,897) (8,796,397)
(48,052,132) (54,712,578)
268,805,459 282,124,167
(33,619,784) (21,974,117)
235,185,675 260,150,050
2021

Minimum Lease

Future Finance Present Value

Payments (MLP) Cost of MLP
92,823,242 27,011,405 65,811,837
273,100,129 70,106,507 202,993,622
365,923,371 97,117,912 268,805,459
(33,619,784)
235,185,675

17.2 The liability against assets subject to finance lease represents the lease entered into with a
Modaraba for 13 different vehicles (2020: 22 vehicle). The periodic lease payments include profit
rates ranging from KIBOR 3M to 6M plus 1% to 1.5% with floor of 7% to 7.5% and ceiling of 20%
(2020: KIBOR 3M to 6M plus 1% to 1.5% with floor of 7% to 7.5% and ceiling of 20%) per annum. The
Company, shall subject to compliance with the conditions specified in the lease agreements,
purchase the assets from the lessor. There are no financial restrictions in the lease agreements.

ACCRUED AND OTHER LIABILITIES

Federal excise duty payable

Sales tax payable

Staff bonus accrued

Accrued expenses

Provision for Sindh Workers' Welfare Fund
Salary payable

Fee and commission payable

Term finance - salaries and wages
Payable to Provident Fund

Other liabilities

Note

18.1

18.2

2021 2020

------------ Rupees ------------
92,244,587 92,244,587
18,365,338 17,862,834
16,901,259 17,000,002
15,326,094 13,657,586
11,286,114 10,839,562
2,047,965 2,684,798
1,868,828 2,000,340
1,301,172 3,302,850
- 11,877
8,542,671 6,507,952
167,884,028 166,112,387
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19.

18.1 This represents amount payable against Federal Excise Duty (FED) on management fees received /
receivable from the Funds under management. The amount is being held for payment to Federal
Board of Revenue on the basis of stay order of the Honorable High Court of Sindh dated September
04, 2013. The stay order was granted as a result of petition filed by asset management companies on
the forum of MUFAP against the amendment in Finance Act, 2013 which levied FED on the fees
received by asset management companies from funds under management.

The Honorable Sindh High Court in its decision dated July 16, 2016 maintained the previous order
passed against other constitutional petition whereby levy of FED is declared to be ‘Ultra Vires’ the
Constitution. On September 23, 2016, the Federal Government has filed an appeal against the said
order in the Honorable Supreme Court of Pakistan (SCP) and thus, the previous balance of FED has
not been reversed.

Further, the Federal Government vide Finance Act, 2016 has excluded asset management
companies and other non-banking finance companies from charge of FED on their services.
Accordingly, no provision for FED is made from July 01, 2016 onwards.

18.2 In view of promulgation of Sindh Workers Welfare Fund Act, 2014, wherein the financial institutions
have also been brought into definition of Industrial establishments, the Company has maintained an
aggregated provision against Sindh Workers Welfare Fund as the year end amounting to Rs.11.286
(2020: Rs.10.839) million. The Company is under litigation with Sindh Revenue Board vide
Constitution Petition No. 1005 dated February 13, 2019, filed before the Honorable Sindh High
Court, which is a pending adjudication.

CONTINGENCIES AND COMMITMENTS
19.1 Contingencies

19.1.1 Inrespect of the appeals filed by the Company before Commissioner Inland Revenue (Appeals) [CIR
(Appeals)] against orders passed for tax years 2006 and 2009 against demand of Rs. 162 million and
Rs. 66 million respectively, the CIR (Appeals) had not accepted the basis of additions by tax
authorities and set aside both the orders in respect of allocation of expenses between various
sources of income for fresh proceedings with the directions to apportion the common expenditure
according to actual incurrence of expenditure to the various sources of income.

In respect of the above said order of CIR (Appeals) for tax years 2006 and 2009, the Company filed second
appeal before the Appellate Tribunal Inland Revenue (ATIR) in respect of apportionment of expenses.
The ATIR vide order dated April 20, 2017 deleted the additions on proration of expenses for tax year 2006
however, confirmed the CIR(A)'s order whereby CIR(A) remanded back / set-aside the issue of
apportionment of expenses.

The Appellate Tribunal Inland Revenue vide order dated May 21, 2016 deleted the additions of tax
amortization of management rights and remanded back the issues of disallowed provisions and
advertisement expenses for the tax year 2009.

The tax authorities issued orders giving effect (hereinafter referred collectively as ‘appeal effect orders’)
to the order of CIR (Appeals) for both tax years 2006 and 2009 whereby demands for these tax years were
reduced to Rs. 77.33 million and Rs. 59.93 million respectively. As the allocation of expenditure in the
said appeal effect orders was not made according to actual incurrence of expenditure to the various
sources of income, therefore, the Company again filed appeals before the CIR (Appeals) against the said orders.
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In respect of second round of appeal filed by the Company before CIR (Appeals) against appeal effect
orders for tax years 2006 and 2009, the CIR (Appeals) for tax year 2006 confirmed apportionment of
expenditure made by the tax authorities in appeal effect order, however, adjustment of allowable
expenses were set aside. For the tax year 2009, CIR (Appeals) had set aside the appeal effect order in
entirety for fresh assessment, which is yet to be made by tax authorities.

The CIR (Appeals) also rectified the order passed by his predecessor for the tax year 2006, whereby the
addition regarding the portion of capital gain included in dividend received from mutual funds was held
deleted. Resulted appeal effect order reflects refund of Rs.29 million. The tax authorities have filed an
appeal before ATIR against said order of CIR (Appeals) in respect of deletion of addition regarding the
portion of capital gain included in dividend. The ATIR vide order dated December 07, 2016 set-aside with
the direction that the ACIR should examine the issue in the light of FBR Circular letter dated September
10, 2002.

In respect of tax year 2006, management contends, based on views of its tax advisor, that amendment of
assessment for such tax year by tax authorities is time barred. Accordingly, the Company has filed an
appeal before the Appellate Tribunal Inland Revenue. The ATIR is of the view that the amendment of
assessment is not time bared however, the ATIR deleted the addition of tax amortization of management
right vide order dated February 10,2017.

19.1.2 Order under section 122(1)/(5) dated December 30, 2017 for the tax year 2015 passed by the DCIR
created demand of Rs.40 million against which the Company has filed an appeal before the CIR(A). The
DCIR considered our request for rectification and passed order under section 221 dated February 27,
2017 as aresult of the above order the demand reduced to Rs.36.904 million. The CIR(A) vide order dated
May 6, 2019 partly considered our submissions put before him. The DCIR passed appeal effect order
dated February 17, 2020 determined refund of Rs 30.66 million. The company submitted appeal before
the CIR (Appeal) against the appeal effect order. The Company also submitted appeal before the ATIR
against the order of the CIR(A).

The DCIR passed order under section 122(1)/(5) of the Income Tax Ordinance, 2001 dated June 23, 2014
and reduced the refund claim of Rs.8.499 million to Rs.3.102 million for the tax year 2012. The learned
CIR (Appeal) vide order dated May 06, 2019 confirmed the ACIR's order and held that the appeal was not
entertainable being barred by time limitation for the tax year 2012. The Company submitted appeal
before the ATIR against the order of the CIR(A).
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19.2 Commitments in respect of:

Use of name and advisory payment - a related party

20. REMUNERATION FROM FUNDS
UNDER MANAGEMENT - NET

Open end Funds
JS Value Fund
JS Growth Fund
Unit Trust of Pakistan
JSIncome Fund
JSIslamic Fund
JS Fund of Funds
JSIslamic Hybrid Fund of Funds
JSIslamic Hybrid Fund of Funds - 2
JS Pension Savings Fund
JSIslamic Pension Savings Fund
JS Cash Fund
JSIslamic Income Fund
JSIslamic Dedicated Equity Fund
JS Large Cap Fund
JSIslamic Hybrid Fund of Funds - 3
JS Motion Picture Fund
JSIslamic Daily Dividend Fund

Less: Sindh sales tax

2021 2020
------------ Rupees ------------
15,000,000 15,000,000

2021 2020
------------ Rupees ------------
11,292,335 12,610,815
52,375,396 41,940,205
24,557,309 22,789,786
24,689,180 21,028,855
10,792,322 10,527,977

145,866 63,636
123,410 1,441,129

- 22,795,413
6,296,600 5,576,329
3,304,705 3,076,461
18,051,790 19,747,303
6,224,308 4,346,153
2,823,731 13,520,260
10,803,939 9,513,124
762,416 4,013,375
1,257,508 2,245,303
1,454,507 225,356
174,955,322 195,461,479
174,955,322 195,461,479
(20,127,603) (22,486,719)
154,827,719 172,974,760

20.1 Under the provisions of the NBFC Regulations and the NBFC Rules, the management company of the
Fund is entitled to an accrued remuneration at the maximum rate of management fee chargeable to
Collective Investment Scheme within allowed expense ratio limit. An Asset Management Company shall
be entitled to an accrued remuneration that has been verified by the trustee and is paid in arrears.
During the year ended December 31, 2021 the Company has charged management fee at the rates

ranging from 0.00% to 2.00% (2020: 0.00% to 2.00%).

20.2 Total net asset value of the Funds under management (excluding discretionary client portfolios) as at

December 31,2021 amounts to Rs.23.686 (2020: Rs.24.002) billion.
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21.

22,

23.

COMMISSION FROM OPEN END Note ~ ---—---——--—- Rupees ------------
FUNDS UNDER MANAGEMENT

Unit Trust of Pakistan 14,752 27,175
JSIslamic Fund 89,058 65,380
JS Fund of Funds 48,511 444
JS Value Fund 35,800 9,651
JS Growth Fund 9,188 319,792
JSlIslamic Income Fund 89,021 211,151
JSIncome Fund 70,276 14,517
JS Pension Savings Fund 47,710 24,412
JSIslamic Pension Savings Fund - 3,390
JS Cash Fund 41,373 695,156
JS Large Cap Fund 19,563 162,230
JSIslamic Hybrid Fund of Funds - 3 - 2,561,364
JSIslamic Hybrid Fund of Funds - 1,476

21.1 465,252 4,096,138

21.1  This represents gross commission income earned by the Company on account of sale of units made on
behalf of the funds under management.

2021 2020
------------ Rupees ------------
DIVIDEND INCOME
'At fair value through profit
or loss - held-for-trading' - Funds under Management
JSIncome Fund 4,714,357 -
JS Cash Fund 35,198 61,415
JSIslamic Hybrid Fund of Fund 2,161,415 -
JS Motion Picture Fund - 30,000
JS Fund of Funds - 3,002,848
JS Growth Fund - 11,423,404
JS Value Fund - 238,671
JSIslamic Daily Dividend Fund 1,288,569 888,079
8,199,539 15,644,418

REMUNERATION AND SHARE OF PROFIT FROM MANAGEMENT OF DISCRETIONARY CLIENT PORTFOLIOS
AND NON DISCRETIONARY CLIENT PORTFOLIO

This represents commission income and share of profit earned by the Company from management of
discretionary portfolios and non-discretionary portfolio. Currently, the Company is managing Nine (2020: Eleven)
discretionary and One (2020: One) non-discretionary portfolios. The total cost and total market value of the
unsettled client portfolios as at December 31, 2021 was Rs.657.173 (2020: Rs.1,813.769) million and Rs.630.053
(2020:Rs.1,822.239) million respectively.
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Note ~ - Rupees ------------
24. ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES

Salaries and benefits 24.2 108,590,338 104,750,962
Directors' fee 800,000 900,000
Staff retirement benefits 243 6,641,948 6,578,254
Staff bonus 16,901,256 17,000,000
Amortisation of intangible assets 6 5,441,776 4,977,922
Depreciation on property and equipments 5.1 34,999,314 36,130,796
Depreciation on right of use assets 5.2 33,847,713 34,231,728
Printing and stationery 2,617,921 2,346,084
Rent, rates, taxes and maintenance 4,982,387 4,206,157
Travelling, conveyance and vehicle maintenance 14,144,096 10,613,202
Share registrar / transfer agent remuneration 885,004 455,000
Postage and telephone 1,907,847 2,168,867
Legal and professional 18,893,413 16,430,427
Fees and subscription 11,486,882 9,197,029
IT services 23,077,142 18,200,815
Utilities 7,969,414 6,498,068
Office security 1,097,158 771,271
Insurance 8,434,118 7,713,598
Newspaper 32,542 49,386
Royalty Fees 244 15,000,000 15,000,000
Shariah advisory fee 24.5 102,076 73,774
Auditors' remuneration 24.6 1,819,530 1,912,680
Training and development 1,000,683 162,996
Miscellaneous expenses 5,788,965 3,282,626

Provision against other receivable from related parties 10.2 296,353 -
326,757,876 303,651,642

2021 2020
------------ Rupees ------------
24.1 Number of employees at the end of the year 20 97
Average number of employees during the year 97 100

24.2 Salaries and benefits include reimbursement amount from funds under management amounting to Rs.
5.820 million (2020 : 8.843) and charged @ 0.1% on certain funds.

24.3 Based on un-audited financial statements of the Fund, the investments out of provident fund have been
made in accordance with the provisions of section 218 of the Companies Act, 2017 and the Rules
formulated for this purpose.

24.4 This represents the "Use of Name" on account of use of "JS" as a part of Company's name and "Advisory"
fees paid to Mr. Jahangir Siddiqui (associated person) under two separate agreements dated August 01,
2006. His current address is House no. D-185, Clifton, Karachi.
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24.5 This represents shariah advisory payment being made for consultation for JS Islamic Pension Savings
Fund, JS Islamic Fund, JS Islamic Income Fund, JS Islamic Hybrid Fund of Funds series, JS Islamic Daily
Dividend Fund and JS Islamic Dedicated Equity Fund.

2021 2020
------------ Rupees ------------
24.6 Auditors' remuneration
Annual audit fee 1,100,000 1,100,000
Audit fee for consolidation - 75,000
Fee for review of the statement of compliance on Code of
Corporate Governance 75,000 75,000
Fee for review of half yearly financial statements 290,000 290,000
1,465,000 1,540,000
Out of pocket expenses 219,750 231,000
Sindh sales tax 134,780 141,680
1,819,530 1,912,680
2021 2020
Note  --—-------m-- Rupees ------------
25. SELLING AND DISTRIBUTION EXPENSES
Salaries and benefits 25.1 42,863,908 45,697,220
Staff retirement benefits 243 2,065,180 2,196,533
Utilities 2,255,393 1,967,977
Postage and telephone 575,401 677,790
Office security 464,691 763,554
Printing and stationery 176,746 97,322
Rent, rates, taxes and maintenance 8,915,740 7,931,715
IT services 4,064,576 4,086,720
Travelling, conveyance and vehicle maintenance 234,903 1,897,354
Fees and commission 5,159,830 15,482,275
Advertisement, selling and marketing expense 8,539,376 3,760,373
Miscellaneous expenses 729,314 480,294
76,045,058 85,039,126
Less: Reimbursement of selling and distribution expenses 252 (70,974,276) (52,233,344)
5,070,782 32,805,782

25.1 Salaries and benefits include reimbursement amount from funds under management amounting to Rs.
1.870 million (2020 :3.301) and charged @ 0.1% on certain funds.

25.2 Aspercircular 11/2019 dated July 05, 2019 of SECP, that superseded Circular No. 40 of 2016, Circular No.
05, 0f 2017 and Circular No. 05, of 2018. In this circular, selling and marketing expenses are allowed to be
charged on all categories of open ended mutual funds managed by the Asset Management Company
except for Fund of Funds. These expenses are counted in the Total Expense Ratio Cap of the Fund.
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26.

27.

28.

FINANCIAL CHARGES

Bank charges

Interest expenses on Term Finance (Wages & Salaries)
Financial charges for utilization of running finance facility from JSBL
Financial charges against lease liability

OTHER INCOME

Income from financial assets

Mark-up on loans to employees

Liabilities no longer required written back

Income from non-financial assets

Gain on disposal of property and equipment

Gain on termination of lease

Others

TAXATION - Net

Current

Note

5.1.1

2021 2020
------------ Rupees ------------
256,101 113,106
1,661,692 918,026
2,207,695 -
30,274,605 33,970,978
34,400,093 35,002,110
38,338 83,248
5,812,802 6,545,975
16,309,097 8,191,921
2,266,125 -
217,468 -
24,643,830 14,821,145
11,340,313 16,808,691
11,340,313 16,808,691

28.1 The Company computes tax provisions based on the generally accepted interpretations of the tax laws
to ensure that sufficient provision for the purpose of taxation is available. Accordingly, the management
of the Company has assessed the sufficiency of the tax provisions and believes that the tax provisions are

sufficient to reflect the actual tax liability of the Company.

28.2 The income tax assessments of the Company have been finalized up to and including the assessment
year 2002-2003 (financial year ended June 30, 2002). The income tax assessments for the tax years 2003
t0 2005, 2007, 2008 and 2010 to 2021 have been filed under self assessment scheme and are deemed to
be finalized under section 120 of the Income Tax Ordinance, 2001. The details of tax years 2006 and 2009

have been described in note 18.1 above.

28.3 The numerical reconciliation is not provided as the tax charge of the Company mainly comprises of
minimum tax and tax at reduced rates under the relevant sections of Income Tax Ordinance, 2001.
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29. LOSS PER SHARE - Basic and diluted

Loss for the year after taxation (300,075,584) (39,801,000)

Weighted average number of ordinary shares
outstanding during the year 61,774,256 61,774,256

Loss per share (Rupees) (4.86) (0.64)

29.1 Diluted earnings per share has not been presented as the Company does not have any convertible
instruments in issue as at December 31, 2021 and December 31, 2020 which would have any effect on
the earnings per share if the option to convert is exercised.

30. REMUNERATION OF CHIEF EXECUTIVE, DIRECTORS AND EXECUTIVES

The aggregate amounts charged in the financial statements in respect of the remuneration, including
benefits to the Chief Executive Officer, directors and executives of the Company are as follows:

Chief Executive Officer Executives
2021 2020 2021 2020
Rupees

Managerial remuneration 20,090,908 18,545,460 68,397,433 77,544,756
Bonus paid - 4,000,000 8,750,562 9,152,966
Retirement benefits 1,472,663 1,359,384 4,484,794 4,716,613
Medical allowance 2,009,092 1,854,540 6,839,731 7,754,452
Other benefits & reimbursements 508,701 29,256 5,268,177 5,051,610

24,081,364 25,788,640 93,740,697 104,220,398
Number of persons 2 1 23 23

30.1 These represent executives as prescribed under the Companies Act, 2017.

30.2 During the period, Ms. Iffat Zehra Mankani appointed as Chief Executive Officer in place of outgoing
CEO Mr. Hasnain Raza Nensey.

30.3 The Chief Executive Officer of the Company is provided with free use of company owned and
maintained vehicle during the year.

30.4 The Company may provide performance bonus to the Chief Executive Officer and executives. The
individual entitlements are being reported on paid basis.

30.5 In addition, meeting fees amounting to Rs.800,000 (2020: Rs.900,000) was paid to two non-executive
directors for meetings attended during the year (2020: three non-executive directors). The non-
executive directors are not entitled to any remuneration except meeting fees.

30.6 The number of persons does not include those who resigned during the year but remuneration paid to
them is included in the above amounts.
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31.

TRANSACTIONS AND OUTSTANDING BALANCES WITH RELATED PARTIES

Related parties comprise of JS Bank Limited (parent company), Jahangir Siddiqui & Co. Ltd. (ultimate parent
company), JS Global Capital Limited, funds under management and other companies with common
directorship, staff provident fund and key management employees. Contributions to the accounts in respect
of staff retirement benefits are made in accordance with terms of the contribution plans. Remuneration of
the key management personnel is in accordance with the terms of their employment. Other transactions are
carried out as per the agreed terms. Transactions and balances with related parties are summarised below:

2021 2020
------------ Rupees ------------
31.1 Transactions during the year
31.1.1 Funds under management
Remuneration - net of taxes 154,827,719 172,974,760
Commission received 465,252 4,096,138
Investments made 1,972,704,001 268,919,192
Investments disposed off / matured 2,079,330,844 546,496,451
Expenses incurred on behalf of funds 84,408,925 67,871,605
Expenses reimbured from funds 84,781,228 67,860,813
Dividend received 8,199,539 15,644,418
2021 2020
------------ Rupees ------------
31.1.2 Jahangir Siddiqui & Co. Ltd. (JSCL)
Basis of relationship - Ultimate parent company
Percentage of shareholding - JSCL holds 75.02% shares of
JS Bank Limited (JSBL)
Rent Paid 375,000 225,000
Reimbursement of annual subscription fee paid by JSCL
to World Economic Forum on behalf of the Company 8,319,375 2,397,000
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3113

31.1.4

31.1.5

31.1.6

31.1.7

JS Bank Limited (JSBL)

Basis of relationship - Parent company

Percentage of shareholding - JSBL holds 84.56% shares
of the Company

Rent paid

Management fee sharing on distribution of mutual funds

Return on bank deposits

Running Finance Facility Obtained

Running Finance Facility Settled

Amount paid against Refinance Scheme for Salaries and Wages
Amount received against Refinance Scheme for Salaries and Wages
Bank charges and Interest on Running Finance & Refinance Scheme

2,679,488
2,858,326
1,835,887
340,844,067
340,844,067
40,092,980

3,869,386

Associated company - Jahangir Siddiqui & Sons Limited (JSSONS)

Basis of relationship - Common directorship of the Group

Reimbursements of expenses by the company

Associated company - JS Private Equity (JSPE)

Basis of relationship - Common Substantial Shareholder

Reimbursements of expenses by the company

Associated company - Fakhr-e-Imdad Foundation (FIF)

Basis of relationship - common directorship of the Company

Reimbursements of expenses by the company

Associated company - EFU General Insurance
Percentage of shareholding - JSCL holds 21.10%

Insurance premium paid

558,385

720,000

3,419,409

2,676,634
9,667,565
3,224,053

80,185,959

101,780

720,197

3,473,278
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------------ Rupees
31.1.8 Associated company - EFU Life Assurance
Percentage of shareholding - JSCL holds 20.05%
Insurance premium paid 1,979,292
31.1.9 Associated company - JS Investments Limited Staff Provident Fund
(the Fund)
Basis of relationship - Employee benefit plan
Expenses paid on behalf of the company 377,435
Reimbursements of expenses by the company 63,980
Provident fund contributions made 8,707,128
31.1.10 Associated company - JS Global Capital Limited (JSGCL)
Basis of relationship - JSBL holds 92.90% shares of JSGCL
Rent paid 11,264,022
Expenses paid on behalf of the company 759,997
Reimbursements of expenses by the company 1,015,815
31.1.11 Common Substantial Shareholder - JS Lands (Private) Limited
Basis of Relationship - Common Substantial Shareholder
Rent paid 28,850,100
Miscellaneous expense paid 16,566,212
31.1.12 Common Directorship - Future Trust
Basis of relationship - common directorship of the Company
Amount paid under corporate social activity 10,000
31.1.13 Common Directorship - JS ABAMCO Commodities Limited
Basis of relationship - wholly owned subsidiary
(i)  Merger with JS Investments Limited 37,500,000
Based on approvals received during the period JS ABAMCO Commodities Limited
was merged into JS Investments Limited on March 31, 2021.
(ii)  Transfer upon merger of accumulated profit 29,536,455

1,728,866

299,797
299,797
8,774,787

628,235
782,553

37,940,000
15,171,246
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31.1.14 Transactions made with key personnel

Remuneration

Directors' fee

Disbursements of personal loans and advances
Repayments of loans and advances

Royalty and Advisory for the period

31.2 Balance outstanding with related parties
31.2.1 Funds under management

Basis of relationship - Funds managed by the Company

Receivable from funds under management
Payable to funds under management

31.2.2 Jahangir Siddiqui & Co. Ltd. (JSCL)
Basis of relationship - ultimate parent company

Percentage of shareholding - JSCL holds 75.02% shares of
JS Bank Limited (JSBL)

Other Payables
31.2.3 JSBankLimited (JSBL)
Basis of Relationship - parent company

Percentage of Shareholding - JSBL holds 84.56% shares
of JSIL

Bank balance

Other receivable

Rent payable

Rent receivable

Other payable
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100,467,195
800,000
3,111,000
4,170,030
15,000,000

126,934,470
2,317,092

75,000

23,694,615
1,465,064
2,409,149

41,156,888

112,120,461
900,000
3,348,000
2,994,084
15,000,000

131,242,385
337,601

75,000

6,563,839
1,465,064
33,942
2,409,149
80,925,089



------------ Rupees ------------

31.2.4 Associated company - Jahangir Siddiqui & Sons Limited (JSSONS)

Basis of relationship - Common directorship of the Group

Other receivable - 558,385

Rent receivable 2,486,352 2,486,352
31.2.5 Jahangir Siddiqui Securities Services Ltd

Other Related Party

Other Receivable 29,887 29,887

Rent receivable 94,429 94,429
31.2.6 Associated company - JS Private Equity (JSPE)

Basis of relationship - Common Substantial Shareholder

Other receivable 1,625,826 1,625,826

Rent receivable 930,938 930,938
31.2.7 Associated Company - Mahvash & Jahangir Siddiqui Foundation

(MJSF)

Basis of relationship - Common directorship of the Group

Other receivable 130,554 177,106

Rent receivable 379,929 379,929
31.2.8 Associated company - Fakhr-e-Imdad Foundation (FIF)

Basis of relationship - Common directorship of the Group

Other receivable 297,169 1,017,169
31.2.9 Associated company - JS Global Capital Limited (JSGCL)

Basis of relationship - JSBL holds 92.90% shares of JSGCL

Other receivable 526,856 782,674

Rent receivable 181,957 181,957

Rent payable - 1,272,831
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313

314

31.5

31.6

31.7

32.

------------ Rupees ------------

31.2.10 JS Investments Staff Provident Fund - (the Fund)

Post-Employment benefit fund

Other Receivable 238,955 -
31.2.11 Common Substantial Shareholder - JS Lands (Private) Limited

Basis of Relationship - Common Substantial Shareholder

Other payable 2,792,020 1,233,285

Rent payable 19,630 -
31.2.12 Outstanding from key management personnel

Receivable against loans and advances 700,000 1,758,994

Directors' fee payable 100,000 -

31.2.13 Key management personnel and directors hold 5,006 shares in the Company

Other balances outstanding with related parties as at the year end have been disclosed in the relevant balance
sheet notes.

Key management personnel are those persons having authority and responsibility for planning, directing and
controlling the activities of the Company. Management considers all members of the management team, including
the Chief Executive Officer and Directors to be key management personnel.

There are no transactions with key management personnel other than those under their terms of employment.

Details of the remuneration relating to Chief Executive officer and directors are disclosed in note 29 to the financial
statements.

Running finance facility was obtained from JS Bank Limited of Rs. 100 million @ one month KIBOR + 2% markup on
quarterly basis.

OPERATING SEGMENTS

The Company functions as a single operating segment. Income derived from the management fees of open end
collective investment schemes and pension funds and that derived from the management of the discretionary
portfolios account for 98% and 2% (2020: 99% and 1%) respectively of the total income earned during the year.
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33. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Company's overall risk management programme focuses on the unpredictability of financial markets and
seeks to minimise potential adverse effects on the Company's financial performance.

The Company's activities expose it to a variety of financial risks: market risk (including currency risk, interest rate
and other price risk), credit risk and liquidity risk. Risks of the Company are being managed by the Company's
management in accordance with the approved policies of the investment committee which provide broad
guidelines for management of the above mentioned risks. The Board of Directors of the Company has overall
responsibility for the establishment and oversight of the Company's risk management framework.

The Company's financial assets primarily comprise of balance with banks, balances due from funds under

management - related parties, loans and advances - considered good, other financial assets - investments classified
as: 'At fair value through profit or loss - held-for-trading' - units of mutual funds - related parties. The Company also
has profit receivable, deposits and other receivables. The Company's principal financial liabilities include accrued
and other liabilities.

33.1 Market risk

Market risk is the risk that the fair value or the future cash flows of a financial instrument may fluctuate as a
result of changes in market prices.

The Company manages market risk by monitoring exposure on marketable securities by following the
internal risk management policies and investment guidelines approved by the Board and regulations laid
down by the SECP, the NBFC Regulations and the NBFC Rules.

Market risk comprises of three types of risk: currency risk, interest rate risk and other price risk.

33.1.1 Currency risk
Currency risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate
because of changes in foreign exchange rates. The Company, at present is not exposed to currency
risk as all transactions are carried out in Pak Rupees.

33.1.2 Interest raterisk

Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will
fluctuate because of changes in market interest rates.

a) Sensitivity analysis for variable rate instruments

Presently, the Company does not hold any variable profit based investment except balances
with bank in deposit account and investment in term finance certificate exposing the Company
to cash flow profit rate risk. In case of 100 basis points increase / decrease as on December 31,
2021, with all other variables held constant, the equity of the Company and net profit for the year
would have been higher /lower by Rs.1.504 (2020: Rs.1.331) million.
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b) Sensitivity analysis for fixed rate instruments

As at December 31, 2021, the Company does not hold any fixed rate instruments, therefore the
Company is not exposed to fair value profit rate risk.

Yield/ interest rate sensitivity position for on-balance sheet financial instruments is based on the
earlier of contractual repricing or maturity date and for off-balance sheet instruments is based on

the settlement date.

2021
Exposed to yield / interest rate risk
More than
Yield / effective three Not e)fposed
interest rate (%) Upto three months and More than one . to yield / Total
months year interest risk
upto one
year
(Rupees)
On-balance sheet financial instruments
Financial assets
Long-term loans - considered good 3.58% to 8.17% - - 76,277 - 76,277
Balances due from funds under
management - related parties - - - 105,157,354 105,157,354
Loans and advances - considered good 3.58% to 8.17% - 343,636 - - 343,636
Trade deposits and other receivables - - - 44,085,348 44,085,348
Other financial assets - investments classified as:
'At fair value through profit or loss
- held-for-trading' 6M KIBOR+1.50% - - 125,000,000 1,227,102,015 1,352,102,015
'Available-for-sale' - - - - -
Cash and bank balances 5.50% to 8.75% 25,475,223 - - 670,057 26,145,280
25,475,223 343,636 125,076,277 1,377,014,774 1,527,909,910
Financial liabilities
Accrued and other liabilities - - - 36,009,366 36,009,366
Liability against asset subject
to finance lease 3,781,754 29,838,030 235,185,675 - 268,805,459
3,781,754 29,838,030 235,185,675 36,009,366 304,814,825
On-balance sheet gap 21,693,469 (29,494,394) (110,109,398) 1,341,005,408 1,223,095,085
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On-balance sheet financial instruments

Financial assets
Long-term loans - considered good
Balances due from funds under
management - related parties
Loans and advances - considered good
Trade deposits and other receivables
Other financial assets - investments classified as:
'At fair value through profit or loss
- held-for-trading'
'Available-for-sale'
Cash and bank balances

Financial liabilities

Accrued and other liabilities

Liability against asset subject
to finance lease

On-balance sheet gap

33.1.3 Other pricerisk

2020

Yield / effective
interest rate (%)

5.15%t0 13.74%

5.15% to 13.74%

6M KIBOR+1.50%

8.00% - 13.70%

Exposed to yield / interest rate risk

M(:Lerthan Not exposed
Upto three ee More than one to yield / Total
months and . .
months year interest risk
upto one
year
(Rupees)
- - 481,128 - 481,128
- - - 109,501,155 109,501,155
- 696,502 - - 696,502
- - - 47,917,920 47,917,920
- - 125,000,000 1,460,292,142 1,585,292,142
8,189,536 - - 1,243,898 9,433,434
8,189,536 696,502 125,481,128 1,618,955,114 1,753,322,281
- - - 35,201,046 35,201,046
3,781,754 18,192,363 260,150,050 - 282,124,167
3,781,754 18,192,363 260,150,050 35,201,046 317,325,213
4,407,782  (17,495,861) (134,668,922) 1,583,754,069 1,435,997,068

Other price risk is the risk that the fair value of the financial instrument will fluctuate as a result of changes in market prices (other than those arising from
interest rate risk or currency risk), whether caused by factors specific to an individual investment, its issuer or factors affecting all instruments traded in
the market. The Company manages its exposure to price risk by investing in Companies as per the trust deed.

In case of a 5% increase / decrease in rates determined by MUFAP as on December 31, 2021, the equity of the Company would increase / decrease by
Rs.61.355 (2020: Rs.73.014) million, as a result of reduction / increase in unrealized gains / (losses).

33.2 Creditrisk

Credit risk arises from the inability of the issuers of the instruments, the relevant financial institutions or counter parties to fulfil their obligations. There is a
possibility of default of issuers of the instrument, financial institutions or counter parties.
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Management of credit risk

The Company’s policy is to enter into financial contracts with reputable counterparties in accordance with
the internal risk management policies and investment guidelines approved by the Board of Directors. The
Investment Committee closely monitors the creditworthiness of the Company’s counterparties (e.g. issuer
of the instruments, brokers, banks, etc.) by reviewing their credit ratings, financial statements and press
releases on a regular basis. In addition the credit risk is also minimized due to the fact that the Company
only invests in liquid equity and money market based collective investment schemes (CIS).

Exposure to credit risk

The carrying amount of financial assets represents the maximum credit exposure. The maximum exposure
to credit risk at the reporting date is as follows:

2021 2020

---------- Rupees ----------
Long-term loans - considered good 76,277 481,128
Balances due from funds under management - related parties 105,157,354 109,501,155
Loans and advances - considered good 343,636 696,502
Trade deposits and other receivables 44,085,348 47,917,920
Other financial assets - investments 1,352,102,015 1,585,292,142
Cash and bank balances 26,145,280 9,433,434

1,527,909,910 1,753,322,281

Past due or impaired financial assets
None of the financial assets are considered to be past due or impaired as at December 31, 2021.
Concentration of the credit risk

Concentration of credit risk exists when changes in economic or industry factors similarly affect groups of
counterparties whose aggregate credit exposure is significant in relation to the Company’s total credit
exposure.

80.29% (2020: 83.29%) of the financial assets aggregating to Rs.1,227.102 (2020: Rs.1,460.292) million are
invested in the Funds managed by the Company. The Company believes that underlying assets held by
these funds are sufficiently diverse and therefore do not expose the Company to any major concentration
risk.

Details of the credit ratings of the bank balances are as follows:

2021 2020
Bank balances
%
AAA 0.3% 11.9%
AA+ 0.34% 0.27%
AA- 99.35% 87.83%
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33.3 Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Company will encounter difficulty in meeting its financial obligations
associated with its financial liabilities that are settled by delivering cash or another financial asset.
Liquidity risk arises because of the possibility that the Company could be required to pay its liabilities
earlier than expected or difficulty in raising funds to meet commitments associated with financial
liabilities as they fall due. Prudent liquidity risk management implies maintaining sufficient cash and
marketable securities, the availability of funding to an adequate amount of committed credit facilities and
the ability to close out market positions due to the dynamic nature of the business.

Maturity analysis for financial liabilities
The table shown below analyses the Company's financial liabilities into relevant maturity groupings based

the remaining period at the balance sheet date to the contractual maturity date. The amounts in the
table are the contractual undiscounted cash flows.

2021
. More than More than three
Carrying Upto one one month More than one
months and
value month upto three year
upto one year
months
(Rupees)
Liabilities
Accrued and
other liabilities 36,009,366 - 36,009,366 - -
Liabilities against
assets subject
to finance lease 268,805,459 1,269,535 2,512,219 29,838,030 235,185,675
304,814,825 1,269,535 38,521,585 29,838,030 235,185,675
2020
More than
one month More than three
Carrying Upto one upto three months and More than one
value month months upto one year year
(Rupees)
Liabilities
Accrued and
other liabilities 35,201,046 11,166,395 24,034,651 - -
Liability against
assets subject
to finance lease 282,124,167 1,269,535 2,512,219 18,192,363 260,150,050
317,325,213 12,435,930 26,546,870 18,192,363 260,150,050

Annual Report 2021 | 108 //JS investments

Managing Mutual Funds Better!



33.4 Financial instruments by category

Assets
Long-term loans - considered good
Balances due from funds under
management - related parties
Loans and advances - considered good
Trade deposits and other receivables
Other financial assets - investments
Cash and bank balances

Liabilities
Accrued and other liabilities

Liability against asset subject to finance lease

Assets
Long-term loans - considered good
Balances due from funds under
management - related parties
Loans and advances - considered good
Trade deposits and other receivables
Other financial assets - investments
Cash and bank balances

2021
Fair value
At fai |
Amortized airva ue. through other
through profit . Total
Cost comprehensive
and loss .
income
(Rupees)
76,277 - - 76,277
105,157,354 - - 105,157,354
343,636 - - 343,636
44,085,348 - - 44,085,348
- 1,352,102,015 - 1,352,102,015
670,057 - - 670,057
150,332,672 1,352,102,015 - 1,502,434,687
2021
Amortised Total
cost
----------- (Rupees) -----------
36,009,366 36,009,366
268,805,459 268,805,459
304,814,825 304,814,825
2020
At fair value .
th h fit Fair value
Amortized rough profi through other
and loss' - . Total
Cost comprehensive
held-for- .
. income
trading
(Rupees)
481,128 - - 481,128
109,501,155 - - 109,501,155
696,502 - - 696,502
47,917,920 - - 47,917,920
- 1,585,292,142 - 1,585,292,142
1,243,898 - - 1,243,898
159,840,603 1,585,292,142 - 1,745,132,744
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2020

Other financial

Total
liabilities ota
----------- (Rupees) -----------
Liabilities
Accrued and other liabilities 35,201,046 35,201,046
Liability against asset subject to finance lease 282,124,167 282,124,167

317,325,213 317,325,213

33.5 Operational risk

Operational risk is the risk of direct or indirect loss arising from a wide variety of causes associated with the
processes, technology and infrastructure supporting the Company’s operations either internally within
the Company or externally at the Company's service providers, and from external factors other than credit,
market and liquidity risks such as those arising from legal and regulatory requirements and generally
accepted standards of investment management behaviour. Operational risks arise from all of the
Company’s activities.

The Company’s objective is to manage operational risk so as to balance limiting of financial losses and
damage to its reputation with achieving its investment objective of generating returns for investors.

The primary responsibility for the development and implementation of controls over operational risk
rests with the board of directors. This responsibility encompasses the controls in the following areas:

- requirements for appropriate segregation of duties between various functions, roles and responsibility;
requirements for the reconciliation and monitoring of transactions;

compliance with regulatory and other legal requirements;

documentation of controls and procedures;

requirements for the periodic assessment of operational risks faced, and the adequacy of controls and
procedures to address the risks identified;

- ethical and business standards; and

- risk mitigation, including insurance where this is effective.

34. FAIRVALUE OF FINANCIAL AND OTHER ASSETS

IFRS 13 - 'Fair Value Measurement' establishes a single source of guidance under IFRS for all fair value
measurements and disclosures about fair value measurement where such measurements are required as
permitted by other IFRSs. It defines fair value as the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to
transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date (i.e. an exit
price).

Financial assets which are tradable in an open market are revalued at the market prices prevailing on the
balance sheet date. The estimated fair value of all other financial assets and liabilities is considered not
significantly different from book value.

The following table shows financial instruments recognised at fair value, analysed between those whose fair
value is based on:
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Fair value measurements using quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets

Fair value measurements using inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are

observable for the asset or liability, either directly (i.e. as prices) or indirectly (i.e. derived from

Level 1:

or liabilities.
Level 2:

prices).
Level 3:

market data (i.e. unobservable inputs).

Fair value measurements using inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable

The table shown below analyses the financial instruments measured at the end of the reporting period by the
level in the fair value hierarchy into which the fair value measurement is categorised:

Financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss
Units of mutual funds - related parties

Term finance certificate

Financial assets classified as
'at fair value through profit or loss
- held-for-trading'

Units of mutual funds - related parties

Term finance certificate

2021
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
(Rupees)
- 1,227,102,015 - 1,227,102,015
- - 125,000,000 125,000,000
- 1,227,102,015 125,000,000 1,352,102,015
2020
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
(Rupees)

1,460,292,142 -

- 125,000,000

1,460,292,142

125,000,000

1,460,292,142 125,000,000

1,585,292,142

34.1 Valuation techniques used in determination of fair values within level 2:

34.1.1 Fair values of investment in mutual funds are measured on the basis of closing net asset value as
announced by the respective Asset Management Company.

34.2 During the year ended December 31, 2021, there were no transfers between level 1 and level 2 fair
value measurements, and no transfer into and out of level 3 fair value measurements.
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35. CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The primary objective of the Company's capital management is to maintain healthy capital ratios, strong
credit rating and optimal capital structures in order to ensure ample availability of finance for its existing and
potential investment projects, to maximise shareholder value and reduce the cost of capital.

The Company manages its capital structure and makes adjustment to it, in light of changes in economic
conditions. In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Company may adjust the amount of
dividends paid to shareholders, return capital to shareholders or issue new shares.

36. GENERAL

36.1 These financial statements were authorised for issue on February 23, 2022 by the Board of Directors of
the Company.

36.2 In compliance of the NBFC Rules read with SRO 1002(1)/2015 dated October 15, 2015 of SECP, the
management would like to report that the Company has sufficient insurance coverage from an
insurance company, rated AA by a rating agency registered with the Commission, against financial
losses that may be caused as a result of gross negligence of its employees.

36.3 Corresponding figures have been reclassified / re-arranged wherever necessary to facilitate comparison
in the presentation in the current year. However, there are no material reclassification / re-arrangement

toreport.

36.4 The figures in the financial statements have been rounded off to the nearest rupees.

Chief Executive Officer Chief Financial Officer Director
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PATTERN OF SHAREHOLDING

AS AT DECEMBER 31, 2021
# Of Shareholders Shareholdings'Slab Total Shares Held
499 1 to 100 7,763
513 101 to 500 226,854
180 501 to 1000 170,438
221 1001 to 5000 577,978
57 5001 to 10000 451,241
16 10001 to 15000 213,000
13 15001 to 20000 246,755
5 20001 to 25000 117,100
5 25001 to 30000 141,000
6 30001 to 35000 195,000
1 35001 to 40000 40,000
3 45001 to 50000 150,000
1 60001 to 65000 62,000
2 65001 to 70000 136,500
3 70001 to 75000 219,822
1 80001 to 85000 82,500
2 95001 to 100000 199,168
1 110001 to 115000 113,100
2 115001 to 120000 234,500
1 125001 to 130000 130,000
2 150001 to 155000 306,559
1 170001 to 175000 171,500
1 200001 to 205000 202,000
1 245001 to 250000 250,000
1 295001 to 300000 300,000
1 325001 to 330000 330,000
1 430001 to 435000 433,500
1 475001 to 480000 480,000
1 3345001 to 3350000 3,349,000
1 52235001 to 52240000 52,236,978
1,543 61,774,256
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Particulars Shareholders Shares Held Per %
Directors and their spouse(s) and minor children
MR. SULEMAN LALANI 1 2 0.00
MS. IFFAT ZEHRA MANKANI 1 500 0.00
MR. HASAN SHAHID 1 1,000 0.00
MR. IMRAN HALEEM SHAIKH 2 501 0.00
MR. ASIF REZA SANA 1 1 0.00
MR. ZAHID ULLAH KHAN 1 500 0.00
MR. MIRZA MUHAMMAD SADEED HASSAN BARLAS 1 500 0.00
MS. AISHA FARIEL SALAHUDDIN 1 500 0.00
Associated companies, undertakings and related parties
JS BANK LIMITED. 1 52,236,978 84.56
JAHANGIR SIDDIQUI & SONS LIMITED 1 5 0.00
Executives 4 1,502 0.00
NIT & ICP - - -
Banks, development finance institutions, non-banking finance companies, 1 19 0.00
Insurance Companies 1 5,215 0.01
Modarabas and Mutual Funds 2 3,782,500 6.12
General Public
a. Local 1497 5,440,489 8.81
b. Foreign - - -
Foreign Companies - - -
Others 27 304,044 0.49
Totals 1,543 61,774,256 100
Share holders holding 10% or more Shares Held Percentage|
JS BANK LIMITED. 1 52,236,978 84.56
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Share holders holding 5% or more I I Shares Held I Percentage I

J S BANK LIMITED. 1 52,236,978 84.56
CDC - TRUSTEE AKD OPPORTUNITY FUND 1 3,349,000 5.42

B Directors and their spouse(s) and
minor children

B Associated companies,
undertakings and related parties

MW Executives

W NIT & ICP

B Banks, development finance
institutions, non-banking finance

companies,
B Insurance Companies

B Modarabas and Mutual Funds

B Foreign Investors
B Others

M Individual - Local
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NOTICE OF ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

Notice is hereby given that the 27" Annual General Meeting of the members of JS Investments Limited, (the
“Company”) will be held at 10:30 a.m. on April 11,2022 through Zoom Video Conference to transact the following
business:

Ordinary Business:

1. To receive, consider and adopt the audited financial statements of the Company for the year ended
December 31, 2021, together with the Directors' and Auditors' reports thereon and Chairman’s
Review Report.

2. To re-appoint Auditors of the Company and fix their remuneration. The members are hereby notified
that the Audit Committee and the Board of Directors have recommended the re-appointment of
retiring auditors, Messrs KPMG Taseer Hadi & Co., Chartered Accountants for ensuing year, who being
eligible, offer themselves for re-appointment.

Special Businesses:

3. To ratify and approve balances and the transactions carried out by the Company and funds under its
management in the ordinary course of business on arm’s length basis with JS Bank Limited (Related Party)
as at and during the financial year ended December 31, 2021 under the authority of the resolution passed by
the members in the last Annual General Meeting held on April 09, 2021.

4, To authorize the Chief Executive Officer of the Company to approve all transactions carried out or to be
carried out with Related Parties in the ordinary course of business on arm’s length basis till next Annual
General Meeting.

Attached to this Notice is a statement of material facts in relation to the aforesaid special business, as required
under Section 134(3) of the Companies Act, 2017.The said statement also contains the precise text of the resolutions
to be passed in this regard. The notice of meeting as well as statement has also been placed on the Company’s
website: (www.jsil.com).

By order of the Board

Muhammad Khawar Igbal
Karachi: March 21, 2022 Company Secretary
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CORONA VIRUS CONTINGENCY PLANNING FOR AGM

The Securities & Exchange Commission of Pakistan (SECP) through its Circular No. 6 of 2021 dated March 3, 2021 read
with recent letter bearing reference No.SMD/SE/2(20)/2021/117 dated December 15,2021 issued by the Commission
regarding clarification on the circulars issued on Covid-19 contingency planning for General Meetings. In view of
these it is permitted to the Companies which are facing difficulties in holding general meeting physically, to opt to
hold such meeting through electronic mode.

Considering the above referred regulatory permissibility, and in view of threat posed by the fifth wave of COVID-19,
the highly contagious nature of the virus with new strong variant Omicron, the practical difficulties in maintaining
social distancing in public gathering, and the number of Covid-19 cases, the Company intends to convene this AGM
electronically through webinar in order to safeguard the health and wellbeing of its members, Officers and Directors.

In view of the above, please note that the Company has made proper arrangements for the shareholders who will
be participating in the AGM proceedings through Zoom Link. For that purpose, the shareholders are requested to
email the following information with subject “Registration for 27th AGM of JSIL” at email address AGM@jsil.com.
Zoom link to join the AGM will be shared with only those shareholders from whom all required particulars are
received at the given email address not less than 48 hours before the time of holding the AGM. The shareholders
can also provide their comments and questions relating to agenda items of the AGM on email at AGM@jsil.com.

Folio/CDS

>r.No. Name Account Number

CNIC No. Mobile Number | Email Address

The Company will follow the best practices and comply with the instructions of the Government and SECP to
ensure protective measure are in place for well being of its shareholders.

NOTES:

1. The Company, in accordance with Section 223(7) of the Companies Act 2017, has placed the Audited Financial
Statements for the year ended December 31, 2021 along with Auditors’and Directors’ Reports thereon and
Chairman’s Review Report on its website www.jsil.com.

2, The share transfer books of the Company will remain closed from April 05, 2022 to April 11, 2022 (both days
inclusive) for attending the Annual General Meeting. Physical transfers and deposit requests under Central
Depository System received at the close of business on April 04, 2022 by the Independent Share Registrar of
the Company, M/s. CDC Share Registrar Services Limited, CDC House, 99-B, Block "B", S.M.C.H.S, Main
Shahra-e-Faisal, Karachi, will be treated as being in time for entitlement to attend the meeting.

3. A member entitled to attend and vote at the meeting may appoint another person as proxy to attend, speak
and vote for him/ her. An instrument of proxy or power of attorney or other authority (if any) under which it
is signed or a notarial certified copy of such power of attorney or such authority to be valid, be deposited
with the registered office of the Company not later than 48 hours before the scheduled time of the meeting.
The proxy form in English and Urdu Languages is attached with this report and has also been placed on
Company’s website.
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Beneficial owners of the shares registered in the name of Central Depository Company of Pakistan Limited (CDC)
and/or their proxies will have to follow the following guidelines as laid down by the Securities and Exchange
Commission of Pakistan in Circular No. 1 of 2000:

A. For Attending the Meeting

a.

In case of Individuals, the account holder and/or sub-account holder whose registration details are
uploaded as per the CDC Regulations, shall authenticate his/her identity by showing his/her original
CNIC or original Passport along with Participant ID number and the account number at the time of
attending the meeting.

In case of corporate entity, the Board’s resolution / power of attorney with specimen signature of the
nominee shall be produced (unless it has been provided earlier) at the time of the meeting.

B. For Appointing Proxies

a. In case of individuals, the account holder and/or sub-account holder whose registration details are
uploaded as per the CDC Regulations, shall submit the proxy form as per above requirements.

b. The proxy form shall be witnessed by two persons, whose names, addresses and CNIC numbers shall be
mentioned on the form.

c. Attested copies of the CNIC or the passport of beneficial owners and the proxy shall be furnished with the
proxy form.

d. The proxy shall produce his original CNIC or original passport at the time of the meeting.

e. In case of corporate entity, the Board’s resolution / power of attorney with specimen signature shall be
furnished (unless it has been provided earlier) along with proxy form to the Company.

Shareholders are requested to immediately notify the Share Registrar of the change in their addresses, if any.

Computerized National Identity Card ("CNIC") : Shareholders are requested to provide immediately if not
already provided, copy of their valid CNIC to the Company’s Independent Share Registrar, M/s. CDC Share Registrar
Services Limited, CDC House, 99-B, Block "B", S.M.C.H.S, Main Shahra-e-Faisal, Karachi. A legible scanned copy
of the same can also be forwarded at CNIC@jsil.com along with folio number and updated address for
correspondence.

Payment of cash dividend through electronic mode: The provisions of Section 242 of the Companies Act,
2017 provides that any cash dividend declared by a listed company must be paid through electronic mode
directly into the bank account designated by the entitled shareholder. Accordingly, the shareholders of the
Company are requested to provide electronic dividend mandate on E-Dividend Form available on the Company’s
website (www.jsil.com) enabling the Company to credit their future cash dividends, if any, directly to their
designated bank accounts.
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10.

11.

Electronic Transmission of Annual Financial Statement and Notices (Optional) : In pursuance of the directions
given by the Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan (SECP) under S.R.O 787 (1)/2014, the SECP has
allowed companies to circulate annual Audited Financial Statements, along with the notice of Annual General
Meeting (Notice) to its members through e-mail subject to compliance with the conditions outlined in the
referred SRO of SECP.

The transmission of Annual Audited Financial Statements with Notice to members through e-mail shall be
considered compliance with the relevant requirements of Sections 223 and 233 of the Companies Act 2017,
subject to certain conditions, prescribed in the said notification.

For the convenience of its Shareholders, the Company has placed a Standard Request Form on the Company’s
website (www.jsil.com), so that the members may use it to communicate their e-mail address and consent for
electronic transmission of Annual Audited Financial Statement and Notice thereon.

SECP through its SRO 40(1)/2016, dated May 31, 2016 and Section 223 (6) has allowed companies to circulate the
annual balance sheet, profit and loss account, Auditors’ Report and Directors’ Report etc. (“Annual Audited
Accounts”) to its members through digital recording devices such as, CD/DVD/USB at their registered addresses.
In view of the above, the Company has sent its Annual Report, 2021 to its shareholders in the form of CD (Digital
Disc). Any member requiring printed copy of Annual Report, 2021 may send a request using a Standard Request
Form placed on Company’s website.

Unclaimed Dividend and Bonus Shares

Shareholders, who by any reason, could not claim their dividend or bonus shares or did not collect their physical
share, if any, are advised to contact our Share Registrar M/s CDC Share Registrar Services Limited, to
collect/enquire about their unclaimed dividend or pending shares, if any.

In compliance with Section 244 of the Companies Act, 2017, after having completed the stipulated procedure,
all such dividend and shares outstanding for a period of 3 years or more from the date due and payable shall be
deposited to the credit of Federal Government in case of unclaimed dividend and in case of shares, shall be
delivered to the SECP.

E-Voting

Members can exercise their right to poll subject to the meeting of requirement of Section 143-145 of the Com-
panies Act, 2017 and applicable clauses of Companies (Postal Ballot) Regulations, 2018.
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STATEMENT OF MATERIAL FACTS CONCERNING SPECIAL BUSINESS
PURSUANT TO SECTION 134(3) OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2017

This statement sets out the material facts concerning the Special Business proposed to be transacted at the Annual
General Meeting.

Agenda Item No. 3 of the Notice - Ratification / Approval of Transactions carried out with related parties during the
year ended December 31, 2021.

The Company and funds under its management carried out transactions as detailed in the below draft resolution with JS
Bank Limited in the ordinary course of business on arm’s length basis and under the authority of the special resolution of
the members as approved by them during the last Annual General Meeting held on April 09, 2021. All such transactions
and balances appearing on balance sheet date are presented before the Board of Directors for their review and
consideration on recommendation of the Audit Committee on quarterly basis pursuant to Clause 15 of Listed Companies
(Code of Corporate Governance) Regulations, 2019 and Regulation 5 of Companies (Related Party Transactions and
Maintenance of Related Records) Regulations, 2018.

However, since majority of the Company’s Directors (namely Mr. Tahir Ali Sheikh, Mr. Imran Haleem Shaikh, Mirza M.
Sadeed H. Barlas and Mr. Hasan Shahid) were considered interested in the transactions carried out with JS Bank Limited
as mentioned in the below draft resolution, therefore, these transactions conducted by the Company and Funds under its
management with JS Bank Limited during the calendar year ended December 31, 2021 are being placed before the
shareholders for their consideration and approval. These transactions with related party are entered in ordinary course of
business on arm’s length basis, and have been duly cleared by the Audit Committee of JSIL.

The following resolution is proposed to be passed as Special Resolution with or without any modification:
“Resolved that following transactions carried out by the Company and Funds under its management in the ordinary

course of business with JS Bank Limited during the financial year ended December 31, 2021 be and are hereby ratified,
approved and confirmed.

Amount
Management
payable
Bank fee
Return . under
. . Rent balance sharing on . Other
Entity Rent paid R . on bank e Refinancing R
receivable with JS . distribution receivable
deposits Scheme for
Bank Ltd. of mutual .
Salaries &
funds
Wages
JS Investments Limited 2,679,488 | 2,409,149 | 23,694,615(1,835,887| 2,858,326 | 40,396,148 | 1,465,064
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. Bank balance/ Mark up Mark up Unit

Fund / Entity TDR balance income receivable Issuanc?/
in JSBL Redemption

JS Income Fund 309,540,547 | 25,402,780 1,997,090 -

JS Islamic Income Fund 3,321,582 - - -

JS Fund of Funds 1,684,871 551,782 82,796 -

JS Cash Fund 334,998,454 495,024 144,867 950,000,000

JS Growth Fund 97,042,702 | 4,428,108 742,711 -

JS Pension Savings Fund - Equity sub fund 130,943 26,549 - -

JS Large Cap. Fund 6,785,248 646,280 59,399 -

Unit Trust of Pakistan 3,686,260 1,203,198 187,945 -

JS Islamic Fund 602,722 - - -

JS Islamic Hybrid Fund of Funds Mutanasib 10,000 - - -

Agenda Item No. 4 of the Notice - Authorization to the Chief Executive Officer for the approval of
transactions carried out and to be carried out with JS Bank Limited (related party) till next Annual
General Meeting.

The Company and funds under its management shall continue to carry out transactions with JS Bank Limited
in the ordinary course of business on arm’s length basis till next Annual General Meeting. Such transactions
shall be routine’in nature and shall not involve any material or special deals or arrangements.

As our majority of the Directors of JSIL are considered interested in these transactions, therefore, these
transactions with JS Bank Limited (as a related party) have to be approved by the shareholders in terms of
Section 208 of the Companies Act, 2017, Clause 15 of Listed Companies (Code of Corporate Governance)
Regulations, 2019 and Regulation 5 of Companies (Related Party Transactions and Maintenance of Related
Records) Regulations, 2018.

In order to ensure smooth business operations, the shareholders may authorize the Chief Executive Officer
to approve routine transactions to be carried out in the ordinary course of business on arm’s length basis
with related parties as mentioned in the following draft resolution (with or without modifications) till next
Annual General Meeting. However, these transactions shall be placed before the shareholders in the next
AGM for their approval/ratification. Such proposal has been cleared by the Audit Committee of JSIL.

“Resolved that the Chief Executive Officer of the Company be and is hereby authorized to approve transactions
to be carried out with JS Bank Limited in the ordinary course of business on arm’s length basis till next

Annual General Meeting.

Resolved further that these transactions shall be placed before the shareholders in the next Annual General
Meeting for ratification/approval.”

Interest of Directors:

The majority of the Directors are employees of JSBL and are interested to the extent of their shareholding in
the Company.
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Notice to Shareholders

Dear Shareholders,

Subject: Conversion of all Physical shares in Book-Entry-Form

In order to ensure compliance with the provision of Section 72 of the Companies Act, 2017 and subsequent letter
No.CSD/ED/Misc/2016-639-640 dated March 26, 2021 of SECP addressed to all listed Companies on the captioned
subject. All Members who hold physical shares are hereby requested to make necessary arrangements for conver-
sion of their physical shares into book-entry form in order to avail the following key benefits:

1. Physical share certificates may be lost, stolen or spoilt and their duplicate issuance is very cumber
some activity.

2. Physical shares are not saleable in stock exchange and book-entry shares can instantly be traded/sold.

3. For transfer/sale of book-entry shares, there is no need of preparation and verification of transfer deeds.

4. Only book-entry shares can be pledged for any financing facility.

5. Shareholders held share in book-entry form could get instant credit of bonus and right shares
entitlements in CDS Accounts.

6. Online access is allowed on book-entry shares kept in CDS Account for reviewing portfolio information

and/or obtaining any statement/report, as and when required by you.

In order to convert physical shares into book-entry form you are requested to kindly follow the procedure provided
hereunder:

1. Shareholder must open an account in CDS with any CDC Participant (Stock Broker) or with CDC
Investors Account Services (IAS).
2. Fill the necessary columns of Transfer Deed (TD) form available on the Company’s website (www.

jsil.com), sign, attach valid CNIC copy of yourself & witnessing person and get it verified by our
Registrar before submission of physical shares for conversion. If Transfer Deed already verified skip
this step.

3. Transfer duty is to be affixed @0.15% of the face value of shares on the reverse of transfer deed in
form of share transfer stamps.

4, Obtain prescribed Securities Deposit Form (SDF) from your respective CDC Participant or CDC IAS
Department and fill and sign the same.

5. Lodge original physical share certificates together with verified transfer deeds and Security Deposit
Form to your respective CDC Participant (Stock Broker) or CDC IAS Department.

6. CDC Participant (Stock Broker) or CDC IAS Deposit Section initiates deposit request in CDS, on behalf
of shareholder, after receiving original share certificates and verified transfer deeds and signed
Security Deposit Form.

7. CDC Participant (Stock Broker) or CDC IAS Deposit Section sends physical share certificate, verified
transfer deed and Security Deposit Form (obtained after initiating deposit request in CDS) to the
Share Registrar.

8. Share Registrar after verifying the documents and getting necessary endorsement from the Company
will deposit shares in CDS.

For any clarification in this regards please contact us or our share registrar at following contact details:

CDC Share Registrar Services Limited
Email: info@cdcsrsl.com, Website: www.cdcsrsl.com
Contact Number: 92-21-111-111-500

JS Investments Limited

Email: info@jsil.com,

Website: www.jsil.com

Contact Number: 92-21-111-222-626

Yours Sincerely,
Muhammad Khawar Igbal
Company Secretary
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FORM OF PROXY

ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

The Company Secretary,

JS Investments Limited

19th Floor, The Centre, Plot # 28,
SB-5 Abdullah Haroon Road,
Saddar, Karachi-75600

I/We of being member(s) of
JS Investments Limited, holding ordinary shares as per Registered Folio No. / CDC A/c No. (for
members who have shares in CDS) hereby appoint Mr. / Mrs. / Miss
of (Folio no. CDC A/c No.) or
failing him/her Mr./ Mrs. / Mss of (Foliono.CDC A/c No.)

being member of the company, as my / our proxy to attend, act and vote for me / us
and my / our behalf at the Annual General Meeting of the Company to be held on April 11, 2022 and / or any
adjournment thereof.

As witness my / our hand seal this day of ,2022.

Signed by

In the presence of

Witnesses:

1. Name
Signature
Address

CNIC / Passport No. Signature on Rs. 5/-
Revenue Stamp

2. Name
Signature
Address

The Signature should

CNIC/ Passport No. agree with the specimen
registered with the

Important:

1. A member of the Company entitled to attend and vote may appoint another member as his/her proxy to attend and vote
instead of him/her.

2. This proxy form, duly completed and signed, must be received at the office of Company situated at The Centre, 19th
Foor, Plot # 28 SB-5, Abdullah Haroon Road, Saddar Karachi- 75600 not later than 48 hours before the scheduled time of
the meeting.

3. No person shall act as proxy unless he / she himself / herself is a member with the Company, except that a Corporation
may appoint a person who is not a member.

4. Ifamemberappoints more than one proxy and more than one instruments of proxy are deposited by a member with the
Company, all such instruments of proxy shall be rendered invalid.

5. Beneficial Owner of physical shares and the shares registered in the name of Central Depository Company of Pakistan
Limited (CDC) and/or their proxy are required to produce their original CNIC or passport for identification purpose at the
time of attending the meeting. The form of proxy must be submitted within the stipulated time, duly witnessed by two
persons whose names, addresses and CNIC numbers must be mentioned on the form, along with attested copies of CNIC
or the passport of the beneficial owner and the proxy. In case of corporate entity, the Board of Directors’ Resolution /
power of attorney with specimen signature shall be submitted along with proxy form.
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The Company Secretary

JS Investments Limited

19th Floor, The Centre, Plot # 28,
SB-5 Abdullah Haroon Road,
Saddar, Karachi-75600

AFFIX
CORRECT
POSTAGE

Annual Report 2021 ‘ 129 //JS investments

Managing Mutual Funds Better!



Lﬁ/?L’/.(JG
ruqueuuv

S
g,&c}ﬂuﬂlg,
Jpg
<SB-528 1k
St

~74400 L/ esu”

S (& A P2 DO A i1 563 51 A3 b AL 2 9 e bl Al
£9) it b e S ee S uni A it St L P

LS 10t PSP L s il st foe Gl Gt S 12022y btz 0L ¥ e o AL G e A
Sede 1 55,p 3L Ut 202200 , et Tt B (it Dowd”

.;»fb/ u}g;&rguo
JeZss, | A WK H A

:rt _r
N R A )
el Ly xg

......... A WK FESHA
:&j(ﬂ
<9CCZ}”(J74)UJK“A£4;¢5;/5!4¢< Lyiﬁlauf.'u'ﬂ?U,f(,i'VX&/;/})JE:”&}(K&{Q{J'L'%J&})/}IL/;'«-?J:JU?'U'/:”(U" -i
gﬁ./ﬂ/’c}[d:ﬁgé:gﬁuﬁu@ul////ugpﬁ/&ﬁLbézogaM1OJMail:!(fﬁ.@é//ﬁdﬁJU?’(ﬁ{)@ﬁ&a@iéﬁ{/%{/ﬁ&b’/ i
e G P 7 e G e o6y - 2 15 I

o arlpbon vy G uue fsuuuy,buﬁss-s‘zugfdyqy&u/w;(ux.du’w/i&{ S 48ﬁ![c,;L’a’zJ!L(lqug!(/GJ@oih%uU‘iﬁGg -i

L oL i e o S D e L e (S PSS i

et B oL 3 LWCNIOSK PGS F 1l Pl =t e TIPS L M SIL PP SS L SRS v
s Sl P a L St B FEG T cxp L sitlis Pttt cf/?;:uu}*u:&?u o Mot
a'/’ér/Gu’q/?c%/ﬁ)’glg(jb/?j'é_/éﬁ’:;{&/E’LJT/}&/J';/'/..d/J/"'g//‘ﬁ.JI’L;fuf;«/}"u(gﬂﬂa./g/KLLU’/}/U}GH@J{J%PQMJLA;’“&LK(?lﬁ'd}
(J S

Annual Report 2021 | 130 //JS investments

Managing Mutual Funds Better!



SIEFE
‘,‘Q«Juﬁ)"jul;;
P
SB-5:28 1k

rf;/uuLLAbLy’

744008, sn’

Annual Report 2021 | 131 //JS investments

Managing Mutual Funds Better!



4.JS investments

JS INVESTMENTS’ OFFICES

19th Floor, The Centre, Ground Floor, No.25, Block -13, Office # 414, 4th Floor,
Plot No. 28, SB-5 Plot No. 1- 4, Usman Block, PSX Tower, Jinnah Avenue,
Abdullah Haroon road, Saddar, New Garden Town, Islamabad - North

Karachi - South Lahore - Central 051-2894423
021-111-222-626 042-383-020-94

AN

¢, 0800-00887 ¥ “Invest” to 8027 524 ir@jsil.com &= wwwjsil.com

f www.facebook.com/jsinvestments M http://twitter.com/JSinvestment

in http://www.linkedin.com/company/js-investments-limited





